
 
 A meeting of the OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL (SOCIAL 

WELL-BEING) will be held in CIVIC SUITE 0.1A, PATHFINDER 
HOUSE, ST MARY'S STREET, HUNTINGDON, CAMBS, PE29 3TN 
on TUESDAY, 4 DECEMBER 2012 at 7:00 PM and you are requested 
to attend for the transaction of the following business:- 

 
 Contact 

(01480) 
 

 APOLOGIES   
 

 

1. MINUTES  (Pages 1 - 6) 
 

 

 To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting of the 
Panel held on 6th November 2012. 
 
2 Minutes. 
 

Miss H Ali 
388006 

2. MEMBERS' INTERESTS   
 

 

 To receive from Members declarations as to disclosable pecuniary, 
non-disclosable pecuniary or non-pecuniary interests in relation to 
any Agenda Items. See Notes below. 
 
2 Minutes.  
 

 

3. NOTICE OF EXECUTIVE DECISIONS  (Pages 7 - 12) 
 

 

 A copy of the current Notice of Executive Decisions, which was 
published on 14th November 2012 is attached. Members are invited 
to note the Decisions and to comment as appropriate on any items 
contained therein. 
 
10 Minutes. 
 

Mrs H Taylor 
388008 

4. NHS CAMBRIDGESHIRE AND PETERBOROUGH: FINANCE AND 
PERFORMANCE COMMITTEE REPORT  (Pages 13 - 68) 

 
 

 To receive Finance and Performance Reports from NHS 
Cambridgeshire and Peterborough in relation to Hinchingbrooke 
Hospital. 
 
The reports as submitted to NHS Cambridgeshire’s Board meeting 
on 26th September 2012 are attached. The next meeting will be held 
on 5th December 2012 – papers will be made available via the 
following link from 30th November 2012 onwards: - 
http://www.cambridgeshire.nhs.uk/About-us/board-meetings.htm.  
 
Mrs S Shuttleworth, Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Clinical 
Commissioning Groups, will be in attendance for this item. 
 
30 Minutes. 

 



 
 

5. HUNTINGDONSHIRE CITIZENS ADVICE BUREAU   
 

 

 Pursuant to the last meeting, the Panel will receive a further update 
on recent developments with the Citizens Advice Bureau (CAB) in 
Huntingdonshire. 
 
Councillors J D Ablewhite, Executive Leader of the Council and Mr M 
Mealing, Chairman of the Huntingdonshire CAB will be in attendance 
at the meeting. 
 
20 Minutes. 
 

Dr S Lammin / D Smith 
388280 / 388377 

6. COUNCIL TAX SUPPORT  FROM 1ST APRIL 2013  (Pages 69 - 
80) 

 
 

 To receive a report from the Head of Customer Services on Council 
Tax Support from 1st April 2013. 
 
Members of the Overview and Scrutiny Panel (Economic Well-Being) 
have been invited to attend for discussion on this item. 
 
20 Minutes. 
 

Mrs J Barber 
388105 

7. POTENTIAL MERGER BETWEEN CAMBRIDGESHIRE AND 
SUFFOLK FIRE AND RESCUE SERVICES: CONSULTATION 
RESPONSE  (Pages 81 - 96) 

 

 

 Pursuant to the last meeting, to endorse the content of a response to 
the consultation currently being undertaken by the Cambridgeshire 
Fire and Rescue Service on the proposed merger between 
Cambridgeshire and Suffolk Fire and Rescue Services. 
 
20 Minutes. 
 

Miss H Ali 
388006 

8. CAMBRIDGESHIRE ADULTS, WELLBEING AND HEALTH 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  (Pages 97 - 104) 

 
 

 To receive an update from Councillor R J West on the outcome of 
recent meetings of the Cambridgeshire Adults, Wellbeing and Health 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 
 
5 Minutes. 
 

 

9. WORK PLAN STUDIES  (Pages 105 - 112) 
 

 

 To consider, with the aid of a report by the Head of Legal and 
Democratic Services, the current programme of Overview and 
Scrutiny studies. 
 
10 Minutes. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Miss H Ali 
388006 



 
10. OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL (SOCIAL WELL-BEING) - 

PROGRESS  (Pages 113 - 120) 
 

 

 To consider a report by the Head of Legal and Democratic Services 
on the Panel’s programme of studies. 
 
15 Minutes. 
 

Miss H Ali 
388006 

11. SCRUTINY   
 

 

 To scrutinise decisions as set out in the Decision Digest (TO 
FOLLOW) and to raise any other matters for scrutiny that fall within 
the remit of the Panel. 
 
5 Minutes. 
 

 

   
 Dated this 23 day of November 

2012 
 

   

  Head of Paid Service 
 

Notes 
 
A. Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 
 
 (1) Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests and unless you 

have obtained dispensation, cannot discuss or vote on the matter at the meeting and 
must also leave the room whilst the matter is being debated or voted on. 

 
 (2) A Member has a disclosable pecuniary interest if it 
 

 (a) relates to you, or 
  (b) is an interest of - 
 
   (i) your spouse or civil partner; or 
   (ii) a person with whom you are living as husband and wife; or 
   (iii) a person with whom you are living as if you were civil partners 
 
  and you are aware that the other person has the interest. 
 
 (3) Disclosable pecuniary interests includes - 
 
   (a) any employment or profession carried out for profit or gain; 
  (b) any financial benefit received by the Member in respect of expenses incurred 

carrying out his or her duties as a Member (except from the Council); 
  (c) any current contracts with the Council; 
  (d) any beneficial interest in land/property within the Council's area; 
  (e) any licence for a month or longer to occupy land in the Council's area; 
  (f) any tenancy where the Council is landlord and the Member (or person in (2)(b) 

above) has a beneficial interest; or 
  (g) a beneficial interest (above the specified level) in the shares of any body which has 

a place of business or land in the Council's area. 
 
 
 
 



 
B. Other Interests 
 
 (4) If a Member has a non-disclosable pecuniary interest or a non-pecuniary interest then 

you are required to declare that interest, but may remain to discuss and vote. 
 
 (5) A Member has a non-disclosable pecuniary interest or a non-pecuniary interest where - 
 

(a) a decision in relation to the business being considered might reasonably be regarded 
as affecting the well-being or financial standing of you or a member of your family or a 
person with whom you have a close association to a greater extent than it would affect 
the majority of the council tax payers, rate payers or inhabitants of the ward or 
electoral area for which you have been elected or otherwise of the authority's 
administrative area, or 

  (b) it relates to or is likely to affect any of the descriptions referred to above, but in respect 
of a member of your family (other than specified in (2)(b) above) or a person with 
whom you have a close association 

 
 and that interest is not a disclosable pecuniary interest. 
 

Please contact Miss H Ali, Democratic Services Officer, Tel No: (01480) 388006 / email: 
Habbiba.Ali@huntingdonshire.gov.uk if you have a general query on any Agenda Item, 
wish to tender your apologies for absence from the meeting, or would like information 
on any decision taken by the Panel. 
Specific enquiries with regard to items on the Agenda should be directed towards the 
Contact Officer. 
Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting as observers except during 
consideration of confidential or exempt items of business. 

 
 

Agenda and enclosures can be viewed on the District Council’s website – 
www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk (under Councils and Democracy). 

 
 

If you would like a translation of Agenda/Minutes/Reports 
or would like a large text version or an audio version  
please contact the Democratic Services Manager and  

we will try to accommodate your needs. 
 
 

Emergency Procedure 
In the event of the fire alarm being sounded and on the instruction of the Meeting 
Administrator, all attendees are requested to vacate the building via the closest emergency 
exit. 

 
 



 

 

HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
 
 MINUTES of the meeting of the OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL 

(SOCIAL WELL-BEING) held in Meeting Rooms 0.1 A and B, Ground 
Floor, Pathfinder House, St Mary's Street, Huntingdon, PE29 3TN on 
Tuesday, 6 November 2012. 

   
 PRESENT: Councillor S J Criswell – Chairman. 
   
  Councillors S Akthar, K M Baker, 

P Kadewere, Ms L Kadic, M C Oliver, 
J W G Pethard and R J West. 
 
R Coxhead and Mrs M Nicholas – Co-opted 
Members. 

   
 APOLOGIES: Apologies for absence from the meeting were 

submitted on behalf of Councillors R C Carter 
and Mrs P A Jordan. 

 
52. MINUTES   

 
 The Minutes of the meeting of the Panel held on 2nd October 2012 

were approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.  
 

53. MEMBERS' INTERESTS   
 

 Councillors S J Criswell, Mrs L Kadic and R J West declared non-
disclosable pecuniary interests in Minute No. 12/58 by virtue of their 
Membership of Cambridgeshire County Council’s Safer and Stronger 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 
 

54. NOTICE OF EXECUTIVE DECISIONS   
 

 The Panel considered and noted the current Notice of Executive 
Decisions (a copy of which is appended in the Minute Book) which 
had been prepared by the Executive Leader of the Council for the 
period 1st November 2012 to 28th February 2013. 
 

55. POTENTIAL MERGER BETWEEN CAMBRIDGESHIRE AND 
SUFFOLK FIRE AND RESCUE SERVICES   

 
 (Councillor F Brown, Chairman of Cambridgeshire Fire Authority, and 

Mr M Warren, Director of Resources and Treasurer to the 
Cambridgeshire Fire Authority, were in attendance for consideration 
of this item). 
 
(Councillor P J Downes was in attendance for this item) 
 
Councillor F Brown and Mr M Warren delivered a presentation to 
Members on the background to the consultation currently being 
undertaken by Cambridgeshire Fire and Rescue Service on proposals 
for further collaboration up to a full merger between Cambridgeshire 
and Suffolk Fire and Rescue Services. By way of background, 

Agenda Item 1

1



 

 

Members were advised that the proposals had been developed 
because of anticipated reductions in the level of Government grant 
expected to be awarded to both Fire and Rescue Services in future 
years. It was explained that there was an expectation that the 
spending formula for allocating Fire Service funding would change 
and be less favourable for Cambridgeshire in 2013/14 and 2014/15. 
These financial pressures had led the Fire Authority to consider its 
options for further collaboration, up to a full merger, with Suffolk Fire 
and Rescue Service. 
 
Members expressed the view that the consultation had been 
undertaken too early in light of the fact that no specific information 
was available at the present time. Furthermore, Members queried 
whether there would be a further opportunity to comment on the 
proposals if a business plan was produced. In response, it was 
reported that the exercise had been undertaken to meet central 
Government deadlines. It was also confirmed that a further 
consultation exercise would be undertaken if it was decided to 
proceed. 
 
Members were informed that concerns existed over the property and 
fleet of the Suffolk Fire and Rescue Service. They were advised of 
potential liabilities for these assets which were reported as being in a 
poor condition. Historically, Cambridgeshire had invested heavily in its 
assets and, therefore, a merger could be detrimental to 
Cambridgeshire. 
 
Members also expressed reservations over the ability of collaboration 
to respond to calls in a timely manner and the associated negative 
impacts on the current performance levels achieved by the 
Cambridgeshire Fire and Rescue Service. Councillor F Brown 
reported that these concerns also existed within the Cambridgeshire 
Fire Authority. He then went on to indicate that Suffolk had advised 
that they were able to run their services at one third of the cost of the 
Cambridgeshire service. Clarification in this respect was currently 
being sought from Suffolk. 
 
It was suggested that extensive investigations should continue to be 
undertaken by the Cambridgeshire Fire and Rescue Service, with a 
view to ensuring that any decisions made in the future were for the 
benefit of Cambridgeshire residents. Members expressed strong 
views that a sound business plan, which demonstrated financial and 
operational resilience, was required before any final decisions were 
made. Whilst it was reported that preliminary enquiries with other 
neighbouring Fire Authority areas had not elicited any interest in 
collaboration, Members were of the view that this option should 
further be explored by the Cambridgeshire Fire and Rescue Service. 
 
Given that the consultation period would close on 14th January 2013, 
it was agreed that a draft response to the consultation would be 
submitted back to the Panel’s meeting in December 2012. 
 
Having thanked Councillor F Brown and Mr M Warren for their 
attendance at the meeting, it was 
 
RESOLVED 

2



 

 

 
 that a draft response to the consultation undertaken by 

Cambridgeshire Fire and Rescue Service on the proposals 
for further collaboration up to a full merger between 
Cambridgeshire and Suffolk Fire and Rescue Services be 
submitted to the Panel’s next meeting. 

 
56. HUNTINGDONSHIRE CITIZENS ADVICE BUREAU   

 
 (Councillor T D Sanderson, Executive Member for Healthy and Active 

Communities, and Mr M Mealing, Chairman of the Huntingdonshire 
Citizens Advice Bureau, were in attendance for consideration of this 
item). 
 
(Councillor P J Downes was in attendance for this item). 
 
Pursuant to Minute No.12/46, the Panel received a further update on 
recent developments in connection with the Citizens Advice Bureau 
(CAB) in Huntingdonshire. In so doing, Mr M Mealing, Chairman of 
the CAB reported that the CAB Board would be meeting with the 
organisation’s potential liquidators the following week with a view to 
determining the final steps to be taken to wind down the organisation. 
Whilst it had originally been anticipated that a service would be 
provided until December 2012, it was now likely that it would cease to 
operate at the end of November 2012. Assurances were delivered 
that the existing client base was continuing to be serviced; however, 
new clients were referred to other service providers, including 
neighbouring CABs. 
 
The Community Health Manager then provided an outline of the 
Council’s new voluntary sector funding arrangements, which would 
take effect from 1st April 2013 onwards. Five submissions had been 
received from various organisations to deliver advice and information 
services across the District. All funding applications received would 
be determined by the relevant Executive Members at the end of the 
month. A challenge remained to secure the service until 31st March 
2013. Whilst some expressions of interest had been received in 
taking on this temporary role, it was reported that this matter would be 
reviewed pending the outcome of Executive Members’ deliberations 
on the voluntary sector funding applications. Particular consideration 
would need to be given to the interim arrangements for December 
2012. 
 
The Panel discussed a number of matters including the storage 
arrangements for confidential files held by the CAB, the requirement 
for successful funding applications to offer District-wide services, the 
value placed upon the CAB’s volunteers, the organisation’s pension 
liabilities, the utilisation of surplus funding to assist with the interim 
arrangements and the importance of maintaining positive 
communications with the public. 
 
Having thanked the Executive Councillor for Healthy and Active 
Communities, the Community Health Manager and Mr M Mealing for 
their attendance at the meeting, it was agreed that a further update 
would be provided at the Panel’s meeting in December 2012. 
 

3



 

 

57. HUNTINGDONSHIRE TOWN AND PARISH CHARTER   
 

 (Councillor T D Sanderson, Executive Member for Healthy and Active 
Communities, was in attendance for consideration of this item). 
 
With the aid of a report by the Head of Environmental and Community 
Health Services (a copy of which is appended in the Minute Book) the 
Panel was apprised of details of the draft Huntingdonshire Town and 
Parish Charter, which was currently in its early stages of 
development.  
 
In introducing the report, the Executive Councillor for Healthy and 
Active Communities reported upon the background to the Charter, 
which had emerged as a result of the Localism Act 2012. A Parish 
Charter Working Group had been established, comprising 
representatives of the three tiers of local government to develop the 
Charter document. The Community Health Manager reported that 
owing to delays by the Department for Communities and Local 
Government in the publication of guidance on neighbourhood 
planning and the Community Infrastructure Levy, the Charter could 
not yet be finalised. It was expected that the document would obtain 
the Cabinet’s endorsement in April 2013. 
 
Members were encouraged to note that positive support had been 
received from the Town and Parish Councils on the Charter, which 
outlined how the three tiers of local government would work together 
for the benefit of the local community whilst recognising and 
respecting their individual rights as separate democratic bodies. 
Following a suggestion made by the Chairman, it was agreed that 
reference to the pilot Local Joint Committee in North Huntingdonshire 
should be included within the document. 
 
A Member then suggested that each Town and Parish Council should 
appoint a “champion” to embed the Charter within their respective 
organisations. It was held that this would help them to embrace and 
gain an understanding of Localism. Furthermore, through the Charter, 
Parishes could be encouraged to adopt a more holistic vision of their 
communities, such as taking a more active interest in the health and 
wellbeing needs of their residents and including measures for their 
promotion within their community plans. 
 
Other matters that were discussed included the level of engagement 
with all Town and Parish Councils on the proposed Charter, including 
the feedback received, the proposed extension to the number of days 
given to Town and Parish Councils to comment upon planning 
applications and the importance of communication between the three 
tiers of local government. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
 that the content of the report now submitted be noted.  
 

58. CONSIDERATION OF DOMESTIC ABUSE JOINT MEMBER LED 
REVIEW: FINAL REPORT   

 
 (See Members’ Interests) 

4



 

 

 
Pursuant to Minute No. 12/33, the Panel received a report by the 
Head of Environmental and Community Health Services (a copy of 
which is appended in the Minute Book) outlining the feedback 
received from the Huntingdonshire Community Safety Partnership on 
the findings of the joint Member-led review on domestic abuse by 
Cambridgeshire County Council and Huntingdonshire and Fenland 
District Councils. 
 
Whilst the Partnership has expressed their support for a number of 
the recommendations arising from the review, the Head of 
Environmental and Community Health Services who was also the 
Chairman of the Partnership, reported upon her concerns relating to 
the action plan which had been reproduced for the Domestic Abuse 
Steering Group. It was felt that too much emphasis had been placed 
upon promoting the Domestic Abuse Partnership and that instead 
there should have been more focus on clients and achieving 
outcomes. In noting that the Chairman of the Partnership had been 
invited to join the Steering Group, the Panel supported a suggestion 
that she should seek to refocus the Action Plan in the way which was 
suggested. An area of particular concern to Huntingdonshire was the 
level of repeat cases of domestic abuse. As this currently represented 
40% of cases, it was suggested that it should be adopted as a priority. 
 
Members’ attention was drawn to the fact that the District Council’s 
only funding for domestic abuse was through the Huntingdonshire 
Community Safety Partnership. In light of the fact that this funding 
would not be available next year, there was little chance of 
establishing a pooled budget with contributions from the District 
Council. Furthermore, it was noted that there currently was no invest-
to-save justification for the District Council to fund measures to 
reduce domestic abuse as costs were only incurred when victims 
presented themselves to the Council as homeless and this equated to 
around 6% of homelessness applications received. The Panel, 
therefore, endorsed a suggestion that the Executive Leader of the 
Council, as the District Council’s representative on the Police and 
Crime Panel, should exert influence on the Police and Crime 
Commissioner to fund measures to tackle domestic abuse. 
 
The Panel agreed that in order that all relevant organisations’ 
practices relating to domestic abuse were as efficient and effective as 
possible, there should be improved links between those working in 
the field of domestic abuse and social services. It was therefore 
concluded that there should be appropriate representation at 
Huntingdonshire Community Safety Partnership meetings, with the 
Area Manager for Localities and Partnerships and a representative of 
Social Services attending meetings. 
 
In their concluding remarks, Members indicated their wish to have 
sight of the County Council’s Scrutiny review next year of progress 
against the study’s recommendations. Members also concurred with a 
suggestion that they should revisit this matter as part of their annual 
scrutiny of the Huntingdonshire Community Safety Partnership. 
 
RESOLVED 
 

5



 

 

 that the report now submitted be noted.  
 

59. CAMBRIDGESHIRE ADULTS, WELLBEING AND HEALTH 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE   

 
 A brief update was delivered by Councillor R J West on the meeting 

of the Cambridgeshire Adults, Wellbeing and Health Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee held on 25th October 2012. He drew attention to 
the fact that the Committee had discussed changes to emergency 
services proposed by East of England Ambulance Services NHS 
Trust, received a presentation from the Cambridgeshire and 
Peterborough Clinical Commissioning Groups on governance, 
accountability and patient and public involvement and considered an 
update on the Cambridgeshire Health and Wellbeing Strategy. 
 

60. WORK PLAN STUDIES   
 

 The Panel received and noted a report by the Head of Legal and 
Democratic Services (a copy of which is appended in the Minute 
Book) which contained details of studies being undertaken by the 
Overview and Scrutiny Panels for Economic Well-Being and for 
Environmental Well-Being. 
 

61. OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL (SOCIAL WELL-BEING) - 
PROGRESS   

 
 The Panel received and noted a report by the Head of Legal and 

Democratic Services (a copy of which is appended in the Minute 
Book) which contained details of actions taken in response to recent 
discussions and decisions. 
 
The Chairman reported upon the outcome of a joint scrutiny meeting 
held the previous day with Members from the County Council’s 
Adults, Wellbeing and Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee to 
discuss the financial performance and operational activities of 
Hinchingbrooke Hospital. A copy of the notes from this meeting were 
tabled and are also appended in the Minute Book. 
 
Members were informed that a meeting of the Corporate Plan 
Working Group would be held on 12th November 2012 to refine 
further the Council Delivery Plan and to consider future monitoring 
arrangements. 
 
The Panel agreed to remove the potential future study on Gypsy and 
Traveller Welfare from the Panel’s work programme as this was 
expected to be addressed within the new Local Plan. 
 

62. SCRUTINY   
 

 The 128th Edition of the Decision Digest was received and noted. 
 

 
Chairman

6



 

 
 

NOTICE OF EXECUTIVE DECISIONS INCLUDING THOSE TO BE CONSIDERED IN PRIVATE 
 

Prepared by Councillor J D Ablewhite  
Date of Publication: 14 November 2012 
For Period: 1 December 2012 to 31 March 2013 
 

Membership of the Cabinet is as follows:- 
 

Councillor J D Ablewhite  - Leader of the Council, with responsibility for 
  Strategic Economic Development 

3 Pettis Road 
St. Ives 
Huntingdon   PE27 6SR 
 
Tel:  01480 466941          E-mail:  Jason.Ablewhite@huntingdonshire.gov.uk  

Councillor N J Guyatt  - Deputy Leader of the Council with responsibility for  
  Strategic Planning and Housing 

6 Church Lane 
Stibbington 
Cambs           PE8 6LP 
 
Tel:  01780 782827        E-mail:  Nick.Guyatt@huntingdonshire.gov.uk  

Councillor B S Chapman - Executive Councillor for Customer Services 6 Kipling Place 
St. Neots 
Huntingdon   PE19 7RG 
 
Tel:  01480 212540        E-mail:  Barry.Chapman@huntingdonshire.gov.uk  

Councillor J A Gray   - Executive Councillor for Resources Shufflewick Cottage 
Station Row 
Tilbrook        PE28 OJY 
 
Tel:  01480 861941             E-mail: Jonathan.Gray@huntingdonshire.gov.uk 

Councillor D M Tysoe - Executive Councillor for Environment Grove Cottage 
Maltings Lane 
Ellington 
Huntingdon  PE28 0AA 
 
Tel:  01480 388310 E-mail:  Darren.Tysoe@huntingdonshire.gov.uk  

 

Councillor T D Sanderson  - Executive Councillor for Healthy and Active 
  Communities 

29 Burmoor Close 
Stukeley Meadows 
Huntingdon   PE29 6GE  
 
Tel:  (01480) 412135 E-mail:  Tom.Sanderson@huntingdonshire.gov.uk  

 

A
genda Item

 3

7



 
Notice is hereby given of: 
 

• Key decisions that will be taken by the Cabinet (or other decision maker) 
• Confidential or exempt executive decisions that will be taken in a meeting from which the public will be excluded (for whole or part). 

 
A notice/agenda together with reports and supporting documents for each meeting will be published at least five working days before the date of the meeting.  In order to enquire about the 
availability of documents and subject to any restrictions on their disclosure, copies may be requested by contacting Mrs Helen Taylor, Senior Democratic Services Officer on 01480 388008 or E-
mail Helen.Taylor@huntingdonshire.gov.uk. 
 
Agendas may be accessed electronically at www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk. 
 
Formal notice is hereby given under The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012 that, where indicated part of the meetings 
listed in this notice will be held in private because the agenda and reports for the meeting will contain confidential or exempt information under Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government 
(Access to Information) Act 1985 (as amended) and that the public interest in withholding the information outweighs the public interest in disclosing it.  See the relevant paragraphs below. 
 
Any person who wishes to make representations to the decision maker about a decision which is to be made or wishes to object to an item being considered in private may do so by emailing 
Legal&DemServDemocratic@huntingdonshire.gov.uk or by writing to the Senior Democratic Services Officer. If representations are received at least eight working days before the date of the 
meeting, they will be published with the agenda together with a statement of the District Council’s response.  Any representations received after this time will be verbally reported and considered at 
the meeting. 
 
Paragraphs of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 (as amended) (Reason for the report to be considered in private) 
 
1. Information relating to any individual 
2. Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual 
3. Information relating to the Financial and Business Affairs of any particular person (including the Authority holding that information) 
4. Information relating to any consultations or negotiations or contemplated consultations or negotiations in connection with any labour relations that are arising between the Authority or a 

Minister of the Crown and employees of or office holders under the Authority 
5. Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege could be maintained in legal proceedings 
6. Information which reveals that the Authority proposes:- 

(a) To give under any announcement a notice under or by virtue of which requirements are imposed on a person; or 
(b) To make an Order or Direction under any enactment 

7. Information relating to any action taken or to be taken in connection with the prevention, investigation or prosecution of crime. 
 
 

Colin Meadowcroft 
Head of Legal and Democratic Services 

 
Huntingdonshire District Council 
Pathfinder House 
St Mary's Street 
Huntingdon PE29 3TN. 
 
 
Notes:- (i) Additions changes from the previous Forward Plan are annotated *** 
 (ii) Part II confidential items which will be considered in private are annotated ## and shown in italic. 
 

 

8



Subject/Matter 
for Decision 

Decision/ 
recommendation 
to be made by 

Date 
decision to 
be taken 

Documents 
Available 

How relevant Officer 
can be contacted 

Reasons for the 
report to be 
considered in 

private 

Relevant    
Executive 
Councillor 

Relevant 
Overview & 

Scrutiny Panel 

 
Council Tax Base*** 
 
 
 

 
Chairman of 
Corporate 
Governance and 
Section 151 
Officer 

 
12 Dec 2012 
 

 
None 
 

 
Julia Barber, Head of Customer Services Tel 
No. 01480 388105 or email 
Julia.Barber@huntingdonshire.gov.uk 
 

 
  

 
J A Gray 
 

 
All 
 

 
Review of Lettings 
Policy 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
13 Dec 2012 
 

 
Overview and 
Scrutiny Report - 4th 
September 2012 
 

 
Julia Barber, Head of Customer Services Tel 
No 01480 388105 or email 
Julia.Barber@huntingdonshire.gov.uk 
 

 
  

 
B S Chapman 
 

 
Social Well-
Being 
 

 
Sale of Land, St. 
Mary's Street, 
Huntingdon***### 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
13 Dec 2012 
 

 
None. 
 

 
Chris Allen, Project and Assets Manager Tel 
No. 01480 388380 or email 
Chris.Allen@huntingdonshire.gov.uk 
 

 
Exempt under 
paragraph 3  

 
J A Gray 
 

 
Economic Well-
Being 
 

 
Business Plan One 
Leisure - Quarterly 
Performance 
Reports## 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
13 Dec 2012 
 

 
None 
 

 
Simon Bell, General Manager, One Leisure 
Tel No. 01480 388049 or email 
Simon.Bell@huntingdonshire.gov.uk 
 

 
Exempt under 
paragraph 4.  

 
T D Sanderson 
 

 
Economic Well-
Being 
 

 
Waste Collection - 
Round Optimisation 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
13 Dec 2012 
 

 
None 
 

 
Eric Kendall, Head of Operations Tel No. 
01480 388635 or e-mail 
Eric.Kendall@huntingdonshire.gov.uk 
 

 
  

 
D M Tysoe 
 

 
Environmental 
Well-Being 
 

 
Council Tax Support 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
13 Dec 2012 
 

 
None. 
 

 
Julia Barber, Head of Customer Services Tel 
No. 01480 388105 or email 
Julia.Barber@huntingdonshire.gov.uk 
 

 
  

 
B S Chapman 
 

 
Economic and 
Social Well-
Being 
 

 
Local Government 
Finance Act 2012 
NNDR1 Approval 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
13 Dec 2012 
 

 
None. 
 

 
Julia Barber, Head of Customer Services Tel 
No. 01480 388105 or email 
Julia.Barber@huntingdonshire.gov.uk 
 

 
  

 
J A Gray 
 

 
Economic Well-
Being 
 

9



Subject/Matter 
for Decision 

Decision/ 
recommendation 
to be made by 

Date 
decision to 
be taken 

Documents 
Available 

How relevant Officer 
can be contacted 

Reasons for the 
report to be 
considered in 

private 

Relevant    
Executive 
Councillor 

Relevant 
Overview & 

Scrutiny Panel 

 
Ratification of 
Technical Reforms of 
Council Tax 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
13 Dec 2012 
 

 
None. 
 

 
Julia Barber, Head of Customer Services Tel 
No. 01480 388105 or email 
Julia.Barber@huntingdonshire.gov.uk 
 

 
  

 
B S Chapman 
 

 
Economic Well-
Being 
 

 
Carbon Management 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
13 Dec 2012 
 

 
None. 
 

 
Chris Jablonski, Environment Team Leader 
Tel No. 01480 388368 or e-mail 
Chris.Jablonski@huntingdonshire.gov.uk 
 

 
  

 
D M Tysoe 
 

 
Environmental 
Well-Being 
 

 
Draft MTP 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
13 Dec 2012 
 

 
None 
 

 
Steve Couper, Head of Financial Services 
Tel No. 01480 388103 or e-mail 
Steve.Couper@huntingdonshire.gov.uk 
 

 
  

 
J A Gray 
 

 
Economic Well-
Being 
 

 
Revision of the Wind 
Power 
Supplementary 
Planning 
Document*** 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
24 Jan 2013 
 

 
None. 
 

 
Paul Bland, Planning Service Manager 
(Policy) Tel No. 01480 388430 or email 
Paul.Bland@huntingdonshire.gov.uk 
 

 
  

 
N J Guyatt 
 

 
Environmental 
Well-Being 
 

 
A14 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
24 Jan 2013 
 

 
None. 
 

 
Steve Ingram, Head of Planning Services 
01480 388400 or email 
Steve.Ingram@huntingdonshire.gov.uk 
 

 
  

 
N J Guyatt 
 

 
Environmental 
Well-Being 
 

 
Bearscroft Farm 
Urban Design 
Framework 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
14 Feb 2013 
 

 
None. 
 

 
Paul Bland, Planning Service Manager 
(Policy) Tel No. 01480 388430 or email 
Paul.Bland@huntingdonshire.gov.uk 
 

 
  

 
N J Guyatt 
 

 
Environmental 
Well-Being 
 

 
Budget and MTP 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
14 Feb 2013 
 

 
Draft MTP - previous 
year's budget report - 
various annexes 
 

 
Steve Couper, Head of Financial Services 
Tel No. 01480 388103 or e-mail 
Steve.Couper@huntingdonshire.gov.uk 
 

 
  

 
J A Gray 
 

 
Economic Well-
Being 
 

10



Subject/Matter 
for Decision 

Decision/ 
recommendation 
to be made by 

Date 
decision to 
be taken 

Documents 
Available 

How relevant Officer 
can be contacted 

Reasons for the 
report to be 
considered in 

private 

Relevant    
Executive 
Councillor 

Relevant 
Overview & 

Scrutiny Panel 

 
Treasury 
Management 
Strategy and 
Prudential Indicators 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
14 Feb 2013 
 

 
Previous year's 
Strategy 
 

 
Steve Couper, Head of Financial Services 
Tel No. 01480 388103 or e-mail 
Steve.Couper@huntingdonshire.gov.uk 
 

 
  

 
J A Gray 
 

 
Economic Well-
Being 
 

 
Local Plan*** 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
21 Mar 2013 
 

 
None 
 

 
Paul Bland, Planning Service Manager 
(Policy) Tel No. 01480 388430 or email 
Paul.Bland@huntingdonshire.gov.uk 
 

 
  

 
N J Guyatt 
 

 
Environmental 
Well-Being 
 

 
St. Neots Town 
Centre Urban Design 
Framework*** 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
21 Mar 2013 
 

 
None. 
 

 
Paul Bland, Planning Service Manager 
(Policy) Tel No. 01480 388430 or email 
Paul.Bland@huntingdonshire.gov.uk 
 

 
  

 
N J Guyatt 
 

 
Environmental 
Well-Being 
 

 

11



12

T
his page is intentionally left blank



PCT Cluster Board Meeting in Public 26.09.2012 
Agenda Item 3.1 Page 1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
MEETING:  BOARD MEETING IN PUBLIC  
 
AGENDA ITEM: 3.1 SECTION: FINANCE & PERFORMANCE 
 
DATE:  26 SEPTEMBER 2012 
  
TITLE:  FINANCE AND PERFORMANCE SUB-COMMITTEE 
 
FROM: PETER SOUTHWICK 
 CHAIR OF FINANCE & PERFORMANCE SUB-COMMITTEE  
 
FOR:   FOR INFORMATION 
 
 
 
1 ISSUE 
 
 1.1 The Finance and Performance Committee is a formal sub-committee of the 

PCT Board.  It meets on a monthly basis and its aim is to monitor finance and 
performance on behalf of the Board, to forecast future performance, and 
engender a high performance culture. 

 
 1.2 The latest meeting of the sub-committee will take place on Tuesday 

25 September 2012 and a verbal report will be provided at the Board 
meeting.   

 
 1.3 The minutes of meetings that have been approved since the July Cluster 

Board are attached as Appendix A, 26 June 2012 and Appendix B, 
17 July 2012.  

 
 
2. CORPORATE OBJECTIVE AND BOARD ASSURANCE FRAMEWORK LINK 
 

2.1 This Report links specifically to the following risks set out in the Combined 
Board Assurance Framework: 

 
BAF 1 – Risk of delivery of QIPP and system reform 
BAF 2 – Risk to delivering financial balance in 2012/13 
BAF 4 – Failure to achieve key performance targets 
BAF 5 – Risk to Specialised Commissioning Group financial position and     

governance arrangements 
  
 2.2 It is also directly linked to Corporate Object three – Finance and QIPP. 
 

Agenda Item 4

13



PCT Cluster Board Meeting in Public 26.09.2012 
Agenda Item 3.1 Page 2 
 

3 RECOMMENDATION 
 
 3.1 The Board is asked to note that a verbal report on the September Sub-

Committee meeting will be provided at the Board meeting on Wednesday 26 
September 2012. 

 
 
Author: Simon Barlow 
   Integrated Governance Manager 
   18 September 2012 
 
 
 Appendix A – Finance and Performance Committee minutes of 26 June 2012 
 Appendix B – Finance and Performance Committee minutes of 17 July 2012  

14



F&P Summary Minutes 26 June 2012 
Page 1 of 5 

 

 
 

 
Minutes of the Finance and 
Performance Sub Committee Meeting held on Tuesday, 26 June 2012 at 8.30 am in 
The Ramparts Room, (Bailey Suite), Shire Hall, Castle Hill, Cambridge, CB3 OAP 
 
 
Present:- Peter Southwick (Chair), 
  John Barratt  

Dr Sushil Jathanna 
John Leslie 
Anna Gillard (from 10,00 am) 
Dr Gerald Linehan  
Keith Mansfield 
Alan Mack 
Dr Neil Modha 
Maureen Donnelly 
Andy Vowles 
Catherine Mitchell 
Sarah Shuttlewood 
Professor Colin-Coulson Thomas 

  Melissa Mottram 
 
1. Apologies for Absence 

 
Apologies for absence were received from Glen Clark, Sally Williams Dr Neil Modha 
and Russ Platt.  Peter Southwick chaired the meeting in Glen Clark’s absence/ 

 
2. Declarations of Interest 

 
There were no declarations of interest. 

 
3. Notification of Any Other Items of Business 
 
 There were no items of any other business to be discussed during the meeting. 
 
4. Minutes of the Last Meeting 
 
 The minutes of the last meeting were agreed as a true record. 
 
5. Matters Arising 
 
 5.1 Actions List 
 
  The Action List was updated and is appended to the minutes. 

Appendix A 

15



F&P Summary Minutes 26 June 2012 
Page 2 of 5 

 

 
 5.2 Budget Allocation 2012/13 – Outcome from CCG 
 

The Committee noted that work was underway to finalise the CCG and LCG 
budget allocations and they would be sent out by 30 June 2012. 
 

6. Finance Reports 
 
 6.1 NHS Cambridgeshire 
 
 John Leslie presented the Finance Report for Month 2.  The Committee noted that 

the PCT was currently forecasting breakeven, with a small surplus.  There were, 
however, a number of risks to achieving financial balance, most notably the over-
performance on acute contracts which has come to light at CUHFT and 
Hinchingbrooke. 

 
 John Leslie advised the Committee that there was currently no Month 2 Data for 

Specialised Commissioning.  Dr Sushil Jathanna agreed to raise this at the SCG 
Board meeting, and to also flag this to Paul Watson.  ACTION: Dr Sushil Jathanna 

 
 Peter Southwick commented on the Fast Track data, noting that the 

Hinchingbrooke Conversion rate was up by 2% since the day that CIRCLE took 
over.  He added that GP referral rates to CUHFT were up by 10% and non-GP 
referrals were up 30%.  First Attendant Outpatient Rates were also 15% over plan. 

 
 6.2 NHS Peterborough 
 
  John Leslie presented the Finance Report for Month 2.  The Committee noted that 

the PCT was currently forecasting breakeven, with a small surplus.  There were, 
however, a number of risks to achieving financial balance, most notably the over-
performance on acute contracts which has come to light at CUHFT and 
Hinchingbrooke. 

 
7. QIPP 2012-2013 
 
 In Russ Platt’s absence, John Leslie provided a brief summary on QIPP progress.  The 

Committee expressed concern about the current status of the QIPP Savings Programme.  
The Committee discussed that the External Auditors had issued a qualified value for 
money opinion in relation to QIPP delivery. The Committee noted the update. 

 
8. Combined Acute Contract Performance Report 
 
 The Committee noted the Combined Acute Contract Performance Report which had been 

circulated prior to the meeting. 
 
 Sarah Shuttlewood advised the Committee that the GP in ED pilot at PSHFT was not 

working and an escalation meeting would be held next week. 

16



F&P Summary Minutes 26 June 2012 
Page 3 of 5 

 

 
9. Emergency Readmissions 
 
 Anna Gillard presented the latest activity data in relation to emergency readmissions.  The 

Committee noted the Report. 
 
10. Combined Performance Report 
 
 Alan Mack presented the Combined Performance Report for NHS Cambridgeshire and 

NHS Peterborough.  The Committee noted the following issues:- 
 
 Referral to Treatment (RTT) - Admitted performance for NHSP is below the 

operational standard at PSHFT and CUHFT.  Recovery plans are in place for both 
Trusts.  CUHFT performance is forecast to improve over Quarter 1 for the majority 
of services and extending into Quarter 2 for Orthopaedics, Ear, Nose and Throat 
(ENT) and Urology.  This means national standards for every specialty will not be 
met during this period.  At PSHFT, admitted performance will be resolved during 
Quarter one at Trust level. 

 
 A&E 4 Hour Waits - The 95% operational standard is not being delivered at 

CUHFT or PSHFT.  Quarter 1 to 6th May 2012 is 90.41% for CUHFT and 91.34% 
for PSHFT, although daily and weekly performance is notably improved on the 
recent past.  An action plan has been developed and agreed between the PCT and 
PSHFT following the Intensive Support Team (IST) review.  At CUHFT an Action 
plan to improve processes is underway and is being closely monitored by the PCT.  
There will also be an Intensive Support Team visit to the Trust. 

 
 Cancer - Cluster level performance has been above threshold for all standards 

except 62 days.  CUHFT has not delivered the 62 day standard for five consecutive 
months to February 2012 and 62 day screening for three consecutive months.  HHT 
and PSHFT also failed the 62 day standard in February.   Long term sustainable 
recovery plan is in place for CUHFT cancer services, where particular issues exist 
around urology capacity.  Additional consultant appointments are underway, with 
posts anticipated being taken up in June/July.  HHT has a remedial action plan in 
place which the PCT monitors through the Service and Performance Review Group 
(SPRG) and the Cambridgeshire Cancer Board. 

 
 Stroke - Further progress needs to be made in order to meet targets at all main 

providers to NHSC.  Whilst there have been improvements, there is an ongoing 
failure to deliver the high risk Transient Ischemic Attack measure.  As such, specific 
project support has been arranged for the Anglia Stroke and Heart Network to work 
with CUHFT on a TIA improvement plan which is being closely monitored by the 
PCT.  NHS Peterborough performance against the TIA indicator has dipped and 
reasons are currently being investigated. 

 
 Delayed Transfers of Care (DTOC) – DTOC levels have reduced at NHSC 

providers, but remain high compared to other providers in the region.  Work is being 
undertaken to review demand on step down services from CUHFT patients and to 
model capacity requirements going forward. 

17



F&P Summary Minutes 26 June 2012 
Page 4 of 5 

 

 
 Hospital Acquired Infections -  All organisations have performed well for 

CDifficile showing a considerable reduction in cases.  NHSP is over the full year 
ceiling for MRSA (4 cases).  For 2012/13 all elements of the cluster have 
challenging HCAI ceilings which will require further notable improvements.  Full 
investigation of the reported cases will be performed and necessary actions taken in 
order 

 
 Andy Vowles advised the Committee that an escalation review meeting had been held with 

CUH, in light of the breadth of issues that Trust faces – performance, quality and finance. 
It had been agreed to hold review meetings with the Trust every two weeks. 

 
 The Committee noted the Combined Performance Report. 
 
11. Choose and Book 
 
 A report setting out the key issues in relation to Choose and Book had been circulated 

prior to the meeting.   
 
12. Board Assurance Framework 
 
 Sharon Fox presented the Board Assurance Framework working document.   
 
 The Committee made the following comments:- 
 
 BAF1 QIPP The Committee noted that the Audit Committee had requested that this risk 

be raised to 25 
 
 BAF2 Finance The Committee noted that the Audit Committee had requested that this risk 

be raised to 25 
 
 BAF 5 Specialised Commissioning -The Committee requested that the risk was increased 

to reflect the lack of Month 2 data. 
 
 BAF4 – Performance – The Committee requested that the risk was increased to reflect 

current performance 
 
 ACTION: Sharon Fox to update. 
 
 The Committee noted the Version 2 Assurance Framework 
 
12. Workforce Performance Reports 
 
 Alan Mack presented the workforce performance reports for NHS Cambridgeshire and 

NHS Peterborough.  The Committee commented that the section on appraisals had not 
been completed with the latest statistics.  ACTION: Alan Mack to address. 

18



F&P Summary Minutes 26 June 2012 
Page 5 of 5 

 

 
13. Finance and Performance Sub-Committee – Annual Cycle of Business 
 
 The Committee noted the Annual Cycle of Business 
 
14. Date of Next Meeting 
 
 The date of the next meeting was confirmed as Tuesday 17 July 2012 at 8.30 am in the 

Ramparts Room, Shire Hall, Cambridge 
 
 
 
Sharon Fox, Trust Board Secretary 
20 June 2012 
 
Circulation  
Glen Clark (Chair) 
John Barratt 

Sushil Jathanna 
John Leslie 

Anna Gillard 
Dr Gerald Linehan 

For Info: Jill Houghton 
For Info: Keith Mansfield 

Dr Peter David Southwick Alan Mack Dr Neil Modha  
Maureen Donnelly Sharon Fox Andy Vowles  
Sally Williams Catherine Mitchell Russ Platt  
Prof Colin Coulson-Thomas Sarah Shuttlewood   
 

19



20

This page is intentionally left blank



 
Finance and Performance Sub-Committee Minutes 17.07.2012 

Page 1 of 4 

 
 
 
Minutes of the Finance and Performance Sub Committee Meeting held on Tuesday, 
17 July 2012 at 8.30 am in The Ramparts Room, (Bailey Suite), Shire Hall, Castle Hill, 
Cambridge, CB3 OAP 
 
 
Present:- Glen Clark 

Professor Colin-Coulson Thomas 
Dr Sushil Jathanna 
Dr Gerald Linehan 
Keith Mansfield 
Andy Vowles 
Catherine Mitchell 
Sarah Shuttlewood 
Peter Wightman 
Sharon Fox 
 

  Kevin Downing 
Alex Ridgeon 
Melissa Mottram 
Sarah Goddard 
 

1. Apologies for Absence 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Maureen Donnelly, Peter Southwick, 
John Barratt and Sally Williams and John Leslie. 

 
2. Declarations of Interest 

 
There were no declarations of interest. 

 
3. Notification of Any Other Items of Business 
 
 An update on Minor Injuries and Illness Procurement was requested. 
 
4. Minutes of the Last Meeting 
 
 The summary  minutes of the last meeting were amended as follows:- 
 

Referral to Treatment to read “For the Clustered PCT”> 
 
The summary minutes were agreed as a true record. ACTION: Simon Barlow to 
review against notes. 

Appendix B 

21



 
Finance and Performance Sub-Committee Minutes 17.07.2012 

Page 2 of 4 

 
5. Matters Arising 
 
 5.1 Actions List 
 
  The Action List was updated and is appended to the minutes. 
 
6. Finance Report 
 
 The Finance Reports for NHS Cambridgeshire and NHS Peterborough had been 

circulated prior to the meeting.  Kevin Downing presented the Reports.  He advised 
the Committees that NHSC was forecasting breakeven at the end of the year, with a 
£29k surplus at Month 3 NHSP was forecasting breakeven at the end of the year, 
with a £14k surplus at Month 3.  Key risks to the financial position in both PCTs 
were:-   

 
- over-performance on acute contracts 
- non-delivery of QIPP savings (special Development Session being planned with 

Board and CCG. 
- over performance in our Acute Trust providers against agreed contract values 

poses a considerable risk to the cluster PCT unless this is appropriately 
managed. We are reviewing all referrals and demand management interventions 
to ensure that these are appropriate. 

- risk around PSHFT block contract – procedure invoked to review block by 
PSHFT.  

- PSHFT System-wide Activity Action Plan being developed. 
- prescribing appears to be on target – prudent forecasts in both PCTs.  Still 

awaiting Month 2 data from the PPA 
- Specialised Commissioning – currently forecasting under but up and down 

across East of England 
- the retrospective review of Continuing Healthcare – the BAF risk remains high to 

reflect uncertainty. 
 
The Chair thanked Kevin Downing for his Report.  The Committee noted the 
Finance Reports for Month 3 for NHS Cambridgeshire and NHS Peterborough. 
 
The Committee noted that a detailed discussion on QIPP would take place at the 
Board Development Session tomorrow. 

 
7. Acute Performance Report / Performance Report 
 

The Committee received the Acute Performance Report and the Integrated 
Performance Report which had been circulated prior to the meeting.  Sarah 
Shuttlewood advised the Committee that data awaited so some areas not updated 
since last report.  The key issues highlighted to the through both reports Committee 
are set out below:- 

 
PSHFT 
- RTT should deliver within recovery plan,  
- A&E and Cancer Waits still not achieving targets 
- Concern regarding Cost Improvement Plans. 
- A further Never Event reported 

22



 
Finance and Performance Sub-Committee Minutes 17.07.2012 

Page 3 of 4 

 
CUHFT 
- RTT - concerned regarding ability to improve performance.   
- A&E  Intensive Support Team visited and recommendations made.  Need to 

resolve issues by end of August  
- A number of issues remain.  Escalation meetings continuing with the Trust on 

fortnightly basis.  
- Information Notice issued – contract penalties if not improved 

 
HHT 
- Nearly reached CDifficile Ceiling – 6 cases against 7 for annual target.  Root 

Cause analysis underway.   
 

The Committee discussed the Reports.  There was significant concern about the 
performance of PSHFT and CUHFT in relation to A&E and Referral to Treatment.  
The Committee noted the Acute Performance and Integrated Performance Reports. 

 
8. Wheelchair Contract 
 
 A paper setting out information in relation to the Wheelchair Contract had been 

prepared by Catherine Mitchell and circulated prior to the meeting.  She advised the 
Committee that the issue had been referred by the Quality and Patient Safety 
Committee  due to 7 PALS issues which had arisen in the last quarter.  Further 
investigation had identified only 3 cases linked to new service and these issues had 
been addressed by the Provider. 

 
 The Chair thanked Catherin Mitchell for her paper.  Following a short discussion, 

the Committee determined that no further action was required other than regular 
contract monitoring. 

 
9. ECF Diabetic Retinopathy Screening Contract 
 

A paper updating the Committee on the ECF Diabetic Retinopathy Screening 
Contract had been prepared by Sarah Goddard and circulated prior to the meeting.  
She advised the Committee that the issue had been referred by the Quality and 
Patient Safety Committee as there were a number of issues which had been 
highlighted.  These included Issues around backlog, information governance, data 
matching and quality.  NHS Mid Essex was the  Lead Commissioner.  Performance 
being monitored by Programme Board which was meeting later in the day. 
 
Following a short discussion, the Chair said that the Committee determined that 
there were no immediate safety concerns.  The Committee agreed no further action 
was required at this stage but agreed that the PCG must hold contractors to 
account through proactive contract monitoring and the Programme Board.  There 
was also a need to highlight performance issues to the National Commissioning 
Board through the Handover process. 

  

23



 
Finance and Performance Sub-Committee Minutes 17.07.2012 

Page 4 of 4 

 
10. Primary Care Premises 
 
 The Committee received and noted a paper on Primary Care Premises.  The 

Committee supported the proposals in principle in relation to East Peterborough 
and Orton Bushfield. 

 
The Committee requested that the financial information was checked and that 
access issues had been addressed.  There was a need to strengthen agreements 
and to highlight the proposals to the National Commissioning Board.  ACTION: Dr 
Sushil Jathanna. 

 
10. Any Other Business 
 

10.1 Minor Injuries and Illness Centre Procurement 
 
 Sarah Shuttlewood updated the Committee on the Minor Injuries and Illness 

Centre Procurement which was in line with the Primary Care and Urgent 
Care Strategy.  A new service would be procured from April 2013.  The 
Strategic Projects Team engaged to undertake procurement – costs £150k.  
The Committee supported the approach to proceed to PQQ.  A full update 
would be provided to CCG and Board in August. 

 
11. Date of Next Meeting 
 

The date of the next meeting was confirmed as Tuesday 28 August 2012 – Meeting 
Room A, Town Hall, Peterborough 

 
 
 
 
Sharon Fox 
Trust Board Secretary 
17 July 2012 

24



PCT Cluster Board Meeting in Public 26.09.2012 
Agenda Item 3.2a Page 1 of 3 

   
 
MEETING:     FINANCE AND PERFORMANCE COMMITTEE 
 
AGENDA ITEM: 3.2A 
 
DATE:  26 SEPTEMBER 2012 
 
TITLE:  FINANCE REPORT – NHS CAMBRIDGESHIRE 
 
FROM:  JOHN LESLIE 
   DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 
 
FOR:   INFORMATION 
 
 
 
1 ISSUE 
 
 The purpose of this report is to present to the Finance and Performance Committee 

the financial position of NHS Cambridgeshire for the five months to August 2012, 
including the financial performance of the main budget areas, an update of the 
savings programmes, and the risks in achieving the forecast position. 

 
 
2 CORPORATE OBJECTIVE AND BOARD ASSURANCE FRAMEWORK LINK 
 
 This report links to a number of risks in the Board Assurance Framework (BAF) 

including:- 
 

BAF05 – Risk to specialist commissioning financial position and governance 
arrangements, 
BAF07 – Financial position for 2012/13 and beyond, 

 
 
3 KEY POINTS 
 

The overall PCT revenue position to date is a £29k underspend and with a 
combination of non-recurrent resources and identifying further savings, the forecast 
is now to deliver a breakeven position at year end. 
 
 
Table 1 below summarises the PCT’s main budget performance: 
 
 
 
 
 

25



PCT Cluster Board Meeting in Public 26.09.2012
Agenda Item 3.2a Page 2 of 3 

 

 
Table 1 
 
 

4 RECOMMENDATION 
 

The Committee is asked to note the financial position of the PCT for the five months 
to August 2012 and the forecast position for the year ended March 2013. 

 
 
5 REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 

It is acknowledged that this forecast position is being achieved with a combination 
of savings delivery and by utilising a portion of the contingency and identifying 
additional non-recurrent savings.  The PCT must ensure recurrent delivery of its 
savings plans to achieve financial balance in the future. 

 
 
6 BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 

6.1 ACUTE COMMISSIONING 
 

 Cambridge University Hospital FT 
 

The month 5 fast track data received from CUHFT is forecasting an 
overspend of £7,198m. This assumes that only £550k QIPP was achieved 
against the forecast plan for the first 5mths of the year and only £4.0m 
further will be achieved to the year end. 
 

 Hinchingbrooke 
 
The forecast outturn for this contract shows an overspend of £1,843k, which 
includes the assumption that only 75% of QIPP will be achieved by the year 
end.  Current overspend of £1.555m The main forecast outturn variances 
from the contract include:

A & E - £421k overspend  

Gross Budgets Annual Year to Date Forecast Month 12 
 Budget 

£’000 
Budget 
£’000 

Actual 
£’000 

Variance 
£’000 

Outturn 
£’000 

Variance 
£’000 

Acute Commissioning 356,246 154,107 158,557 (4,450) 368,049 (11,803) 

Other Commissioning 189,593 78,998 79,028 (30) 190,236 (643) 

NCB Specialist Commissioning 68,561 27,156 27,157 (1) 68,562 (1) 

NCB Primary Care Other 132,395 55,164 56,737 (1,573) 135,147 (2,752) 

NCB Primary Care Prescribing 83,291 34,954 34,075 879 82,666 625 

Management Costs 20,832 8,722 8,908 (186) 20,661 171 

Transitional Fund 17,483 3,885 1,553 2,332 17,483 - 

Other Budget Areas 36,169 10,524 7,466          3,058 21,766      14,403 

       
Total Resources/spend 904,570 373,510 373,481 29 904,570 0 

26



PCT Cluster Board Meeting in Public 26.09.2012
Agenda Item 3.2a Page 3 of 3 

Non-Electives - £2.2m overspend 

Critical Care – now reduced to a  £110k overspend. 

Outpatients - £293k overspend 

 Queen Elizabeth Hospital 

The forecast outturn for the QEH contract has been matched to the contract 
value. The M4 monitoring file shows a £510k overspend, expenditure is 
expected to continue to overspend to the year end. The main forecast 
variances from the contract include: 

Electives - £335k overspend 

Non–Electives - £164k overspend 

Outpatients - £329k overspend 

Direct Access Diagnostic Imaging - £164k overspend  

 
6.2 SPECIALIST COMMISSIONING 

 
 Specialist Commissioning Consortia 

 
Figures have been received from the Specialist Commissioning Consortia to 
month 4 showing a break even position with a similar break even position at 
year end. Some of the contract and activity figures are currently under review 
and areas of overspend are being checked. 

 
6.3 COMMUNITY 

 
This budget area includes the PCT’s contract with its main community 
provider, Cambridgeshire Community Services NHS Trust (CCS) which 
totals £68.3m. This is a block contract.   

 
 

7 SAVINGS PLAN 
 

A detailed summary of the revised QIPP Programmes for 2012/13 is included in 
Appendix 3 attached.  The total savings delivery forecast is £23.0m. 

 
 
8 CONCLUSION 
 

The committee are asked to note the financial position as at month 5 which utilises 
the phased contingency in full. The reported shortfall will require additional savings 
plans to be completed. 

 
 
Author  John Leslie  

Director of Finance 
   17 September 2012 
 

27



28

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1

Board Summary 2012-13
Financial Position as at 31st August 2012

Agreed Virements Annual YTD YTD Forecast
Plan to Month 5 Budget Budget Spend Variance Outturn Variance
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

ACUTE SERVICES
Cambridge Universtiy Hospitals FT 190,245 8,110-           182,135       75,890       78,349         (2,459)        189,333       (7,198)         
Hinchingbrooke Hospital 81,399 -               81,399         34,248       35,803         (1,555)        83,242         (1,843)         
Queen Elizabeth Hospital FT, King's Lynn 25,134 1                  25,135         10,240       10,750         (510)           25,790         (655)           
Peterborough City Hospital FT 30,088 433              30,521         12,510       12,510         -                 30,521         -                 
Papworth Hospital FT 10,124 -               10,124         4,183         4,529           (346)           11,033         (909)           
Acute Qipp -13,756 4,281           (9,475)         -                 -                   -                 (9,475)          -                 
High Cost Drugs Qipp -4,100 -               (4,100)         -                 -                   -                 (3,100)          (1,000)         
Other NHS Acute SLAs in high cost drugs 19,634 -               19,634         8,339         7,919           420            19,831         (197)           
East of England Ambulance Trust 16,945 -               16,945         7,060         7,060           -                 16,945         -                 
Readmissions 3,929 1-                  3,928           1,637         1,637           -                 3,929           (1)               
Sub Total 359,642              (3,396)          356,246       154,107     158,557       (4,450)        368,049       (11,803)       

Other Commissioning
Cambridgeshire & Peterborough NHS FT 50,850               13                50,863         21,193       21,198         (5)               50,874         (11)             
Other Mental Health 11,537               -               11,537         4,807         4,841           (34)             11,650         (113)           
LD Pooled Budget 14,164               -               14,164         5,902         6,088           (186)           14,350         (186)           
Cambridge Community Services 68,157               179              68,336         28,473       28,473         -                 68,336         -                 
Other NHS Community Services 7,206                 -               7,206           3,003         2,979           24              7,256           (50)             
Other Non NHS services 9,297                 1-                  9,296           3,874         4,107           (233)           9,712           (416)           
Third Sector Budgets 2,693                 -               2,693           1,122         1,137           (15)             2,728           (35)             
Continuing Care Placements 20,384               -               20,384         8,493         8,091           402            20,384         -                 
Special Needs Placements 3,657                 -               3,657           1,524         1,497           27              3,458           199             
GPSI 1,457                 -               1,457           607            617              (10)             1,488           (31)             
Sub Total 189,402              191              189,593       78,998       79,028         (30)             190,236       (643)           

NCB Specialist Commissioning
Sub Total 65,175               3,386           68,561         27,156       27,157         (1)               68,562         (1)               

NCB Primary Care Prescribing
Prescribing 79,740               -               79,740         33,475       32,812         663            79,634         106             
Other prescribing including support 3,551                 -               3,551           1,479         1,263           216            3,032           519             
Sub Total 83,291               -                  83,291         34,954       34,075         879            82,666         625             

NCB Primary Care ( Other)
Primary Care 85,490               -               85,490         35,621       36,304         (683)           87,155         (1,665)         
Dental 23,760               -               23,760         9,900         10,629         (729)           24,473         (713)           
General Ophthalmic 4,506                 -               4,506           1,877         1,872           5                4,512           (6)               
Pharmaceutical services 18,639               -               18,639         7,766         7,932           (166)           19,007         (368)           
Sub Total 132,395              -                  132,395       55,164       56,737         (1,573)        135,147       (2,752)         

Running Costs
PCT Support Costs 11,998               49                12,047         5,061         5,292           (231)           11,633         414             
Public Health 2,832                 91-                2,741           1,143         1,098           45              2,742           (1)               
Anglia Support Partnership 741                    -               741              309            309              -                 741              -                 
GP Commissioning 2,929                 -               2,929           1,220         1,220           -                 3,171           (242)           
Anglia Support Partnership (Estates) 2,374                 -               2,374           989            989              -                 2,374           -                 
Sub Total 20,874               (42)               20,832         8,722         8,908           (186)           20,661         171             

TRANSITIONAL FUND 2% 17,674               191-              17,483         3,885         1,553           2,332         17,483         -                 

OTHER Budget  Areas
National Programme for IT 1,156                 -               1,156           482            313              169            1,156           -                 
Saving / Improving Lives (Darzi Review) 4,728                 -               4,728           1,559         499              1,060         3,378           1,350          
Earmarked Reserves 5,717                 4,762           10,479         2,493         2,174           319            6,481           3,998          
Contingency 9,055                 -               9,055           1,510         -                   1,510         -                   9,055          
New Central initiatives 4,713                 -               4,713           1,964         1,964           -                 4,713           -                 
Contribution to SSD 6,038                 -               6,038           2,516         2,516           -                 6,038           -                 
Sub Total 31,407               4,762           36,169         10,524       7,466           3,058         21,766         14,403        

Sub Total 899,860              4,710           904,570       373,510     373,481       29              904,570       0

Recurrent Resources 907,860              4,710           912,570       912,570       -                 

Deficit before loan repayment 8,000                 -                  8,000           8,000           -                 

Loan Repayment (8,000)                -                  (8,000)         (8,000)          -                 

Total -                         -                  (0)                (0)                 -                 

29



CUHFT Latest Contract Position
Month 5 Fastrack

Annual plan
Month 5  

Plan
Month 5  

Actual
 Variance Variance %

Annual  £ Plan
Month 5 Plan Month 5  Actual  Variance Variance % Forecast Variance

ELECTIVE
Spells 35,093 14,168 15,491 (1,324) -9% 35,821,543 14,916,803 15,491,913 -575,110 (3.9%) (1,502,210)
Excess Bed Days 1,750 653 1,078 (425) -65% 425,837 158,513 265,556 -107,044 (67.5%) (172,541)
Package Price 28 11 13 (1) -11% 91,700 38,209 41,809 -3,600 (9.4%) (8,640)

36,871 14,831 16,581 -1,750 36,339,080 15,113,524 15,799,278 -685,754 (80.8%) -1,683,391
NON-ELECTIVE
Spell 28,509 11,870 13,823 (1,953) -16% 55,482,259 23,078,019 22,740,908 337,111 1.5% 332,513
Emergency Readmissions 0 0 2,618 (2,618) 0% -1,779,068 -753,738 -705,874 -47,864 6.4% (112,974)
Excess Bed Days 9,576 4,058 5,410 (1,353) -33% 2,366,202 1,002,489 1,332,024 -329,535 (32.9%) (477,811)
Emmergency Threshold 0 0 0 0% -1,148,907 -486,758 0 -486,758 100.0% (1,000,000)

38,085 15,928 21,850 -5,923 54,920,486 22,840,013 23,367,058 -527,045 74.9% -1,258,272

Accident And Emergency 66,470 28,005 27,048 958 3% 8,034,771 3,485,183 3,360,783 124,400 3.6% 57,914

Rehabilitation 4,863 2,026 2,648 (621) -31% 948,131 395,055 516,130 -121,075 (30.6%) (145,290)

OUTPATIENTS
First Attendance 74,832 36,651 37,388 (736) -2% 12,196,080 5,594,983 5,560,829 34,154 0.6% (278,753)
Follow up Attendance 186,271 75,126 73,603 1,524 2% 18,509,603 7,454,540 7,020,710 433,830 5.8% (40,149)
IBD Helpline 1,575 613 223 390 64% 39,375 15,310 5,563 9,748 63.7% 25,069
Package Price 523 218 246 (29) -13% 505,219 294,153 155,693 138,461 47.1% 120,936
Cost Per Case 93 39 43 (4) -10% 67,890 28,288 31,025 -2,738 (9.7%) (6,570)
Outpatient Procedures 49,875 20,326 55,501 (35,175) -173% 7,869,707 3,194,750 3,850,007 -655,257 (20.5%) (361,148)
New to Follow up ratio Adj 0 -1,579 1,579 0% -886,277 -344,616 -152,856 -191,760 55.6% (153,408)
Audiology 14,341 0 0 0 0% 1,405,672 0 0 0 0.0% 150,895

327,510 132,973 165,424 -32,451 39,707,269 16,237,407 16,470,970 -233,563 142.6% -543,128

Critical Care 5,310 2,104 2,394 (290) -14% 6,738,787 2,670,245 3,144,896 -474,651 (17.8%) (598,929)

Direct Access
Pathology 1,790,588 700,085 790,594 (90,509) -13% 4,593,478 1,887,314 1,912,923 -25,609 (1.4%) (224,575)
Radiology 21,968 8,868 11,978 (3,110) -35% 1,116,953 480,220 607,854 -127,634 (26.6%) (158,027)
Cardiology 1,295 534 833 (299) -56% 55,394 22,803 33,496 -10,694 (46.9%) (12,989)
Total Direct Access 1,813,851 709,486 803,404 -93,918 -13% 5,765,825 2,390,336 2,554,273 -163,936 (74.8%) -395,591

Chemotherapy 13,170 5,431 6,148 (716) -13% 7,788,573 3,252,089 3,596,496 -344,408 (10.6%) (824,837)
Radiotherapy 19,447 8,121 13,386 (5,265) -65% 4,102,716 2,020,035 1,435,455 584,580 28.9% 678,795

Other Costs 
Block Items 41,063 17,164 5,579 11,585 67% 3,991,223 1,913,008 1,383,229 529,779 27.7% 0
Breast Screening 22,343 9,310 5,531 3,779 41% 1,881,310 1,033,879 465,731 568,148 55.0% 254,000
Drugs 366 143 158,258 (158,115) 12,137,113 4,747,670 4,354,233 393,437 8.3% 0
Devices 0 7,620 (7,620) 0% 1,758,943 930,908 247,290 683,618 73.4% 0
Patient Transport Services 0 0 31,816 (31,816) 0 1,197,293 498,873 569,741 -70,869 (14.2%) (170,085)
Other items 26,396 10,759 6,875 3,884 0 588,883 460,495 202,414 258,081 56.0% 312,100
Readmissions other providers 0 0 -104 104 0 -243,732 -101,555 -31,224 -70,331 69.3% 118,643

90,168 37,375 215,575 -178,200 21,311,033 9,483,276 7,191,414 2,291,862 275.5% 514,658

Sub-Total 2,415,745 956,280 1,274,456 -318,176 185,656,671 77,887,162 77,436,752 450,410 0.6% (4,198,070)
CQUIN 0 4,610,672 2,221,113 1,468,641 752,472 33.9%
Sub-Total including CQUIN 2,415,745 956,280 1,274,456 (318,176) 190,234,858 80,108,275 78,905,393 1,202,882 1.5% (4,198,070)

QIPP -8,100,000 -4,218,750 -556,552 -3,662,198 86.8% (3,000,000)

Total 2,415,745 956,280 1,274,456 (318,176) 182,134,858 75,889,525 78,348,841 -2,459,316 (3.2%) (7,198,070)

30



A
pp

en
di

x 
2b

H
in

ch
in

g
b

ro
o

ke
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 

2
Ju

n
e

 D
at

a
FO

R
 M

O
N

T
H

 5
 R

E
P

O
R

T

P
O

D
A

n
n

u
al

 p
la

n
M

o
n

th
 5

 
P

la
n

M
o

n
th

 5
 

A
ct

u
al

V
ar

ia
n

ce
V

ar
ia

n
ce

 %
A

n
n

u
al

  £
 

P
la

n
M

o
n

th
 5

(£
 )

P
la

n
M

o
n

th
 5

 (
£)

 
A

ct
u

al
V

ar
ia

n
ce

 (
£)

V
ar

ia
n

ce
 %

F
o

re
ca

st
 S

p
en

d
 

F
o

re
ca

st
 

V
ar

ia
n

ce

E
le

ct
iv

e
S

pe
lls

23
,1

42
9,

79
3

10
,3

64
(5

71
)

(5
.8

%
)

21
,8

77
,5

34
9,

27
4,

87
8

9,
22

9,
05

3
45

,8
25

0.
5%

21
,7

62
,8

08
11

4,
72

6
E

xc
es

s 
B

ed
 D

ay
s

78
3

33
3

20
3

13
0

39
.1

%
19

0,
82

4
81

,1
60

50
,0

99
31

,0
61

38
.3

%
11

7,
79

3
73

,0
31

E
le

ct
iv

e 
R

ea
dm

is
si

on
s

0
0

0
0.

0%
(1

92
,7

22
)

(7
8,

45
4)

(7
8,

45
4)

 
0

0.
0%

(1
92

,7
22

)
0

T
ot

al
23

,9
25

10
,1

25
10

,5
66

(4
41

)
(4

.4
%

)
21

,8
75

,6
36

9,
27

7,
58

4
9,

20
0,

69
8

76
,8

86
0.

8%
21

,6
87

,8
79

18
7,

75
7

N
o

n
-E

le
ct

iv
e

S
pe

lls
12

,8
56

5,
37

9
6,

84
3

(1
,4

64
)

(2
7.

2%
)

23
,6

31
,9

57
9,

88
5,

95
9

11
,1

61
,1

54
(1

,2
75

,1
95

)
(1

2.
9%

)
25

,8
00

,7
64

(2
,1

68
,8

07
)

E
xc

es
s 

B
ed

 D
ay

s
7,

80
8

3,
26

3
2,

72
9

53
4

16
.4

%
1,

85
4,

67
6

77
4,

89
9

63
3,

27
8

14
1,

62
1

18
.3

%
1,

51
5,

71
3

33
8,

96
3

T
hr

es
ho

ld
0

0.
0%

0
(3

41
,1

31
)

34
1,

13
1

0.
0%

(8
18

,7
15

)
81

8,
71

5
E

m
er

ge
nc

y 
R

ea
dm

is
si

on
0

0.
0%

(5
47

,2
63

)
(2

22
,7

83
)

(2
22

,7
83

)
0

0.
0%

(5
47

,2
63

)
0

T
ot

al
20

,6
64

8,
64

1
9,

57
1

-9
30

(1
0.

8%
)

24
,9

39
,3

70
10

,4
38

,0
75

11
,2

30
,5

18
(7

92
,4

43
)

(7
.6

%
)

25
,9

50
,4

99
(1

,0
11

,1
29

)

A
&

E
A

tte
nd

an
ce

s
35

,1
24

14
,6

75
15

,4
83

(8
08

)
(5

.5
%

)
3,

55
1,

08
0

1,
48

3,
67

0
1,

65
9,

86
3

(1
76

,1
93

)
(1

1.
9%

)
3,

97
2,

78
6

(4
21

,7
06

)

O
u

tp
at

ie
n

ts
F

irs
t A

tte
nd

an
ce

s
43

,2
68

18
,4

56
19

,6
86

(1
,2

30
)

(6
.7

%
)

6,
52

5,
22

7
2,

78
3,

52
6

2,
97

2,
46

0
(1

88
,9

34
)

(6
.8

%
)

6,
62

7,
73

3
(1

02
,5

06
)

F
ol

lo
w

 U
ps

61
,9

80
26

,4
35

28
,1

39
(1

,7
04

)
(6

.4
%

)
5,

39
1,

17
8

2,
29

9,
56

9
2,

42
7,

25
6

(1
27

,6
88

)
(5

.6
%

)
5,

41
7,

28
5

(2
6,

10
7)

P
ac

ka
ge

 P
ric

e
0

0.
0%

0
0.

0%
0

0
O

ut
pa

tie
nt

 P
ro

ce
du

re
s

12
,9

13
5,

49
1

5,
81

4
(3

23
)

(5
.9

%
)

2,
14

0,
18

2
91

0,
24

4
98

0,
51

3
(7

0,
26

9)
(7

.7
%

)
2,

30
5,

40
0

(1
65

,2
18

)
T

ot
al

11
8,

16
1

50
,3

83
53

,6
39

(3
,2

56
)

(6
.5

%
)

14
,0

56
,5

87
5,

99
3,

33
9

6,
38

0,
22

9
(3

86
,8

90
)

(6
.5

%
)

14
,3

50
,4

18
(2

93
,8

31
)

C
ri

ti
ca

l C
ar

e
B

ed
 D

ay
s

1,
89

3
79

1
94

0
(1

49
)

(1
8.

8%
)

2,
93

5,
59

1
1,

22
6,

51
4

1,
38

9,
09

6
(1

62
,5

83
)

(1
3.

3%
)

3,
04

6,
03

4
(1

10
,4

43
)

D
ir

e
ct

 A
cc

e
ss

P
at

ho
lo

gy
69

8,
72

7
28

6,
47

8
26

0,
91

9
25

,5
59

8.
9%

1,
98

9,
29

8
   

 
81

5,
61

3
72

5,
34

1
90

,2
71

11
.1

%
1,

76
9,

12
5

22
0,

17
3

R
ad

io
lo

gy
28

,4
47

11
,6

64
13

,7
29

(2
,0

65
)

(1
7.

7%
)

1,
25

0,
14

4
51

2,
55

9
62

7,
89

4
(1

15
,3

35
)

(2
2.

5%
)

1,
53

1,
44

8
(2

81
,3

04
)

T
ot

al
72

7,
17

4
29

8,
14

1
27

4,
64

8
23

,4
94

0
3,

23
9,

44
2

1,
32

8,
17

1
1,

35
3,

23
5

(2
5,

06
4)

(1
.9

%
)

3,
30

0,
57

3
(6

1,
13

1)

N
o

n
 T

ar
if

f
A

ud
io

lo
gy

0
0

0
0

0
30

3,
19

7
12

6,
33

3
12

6,
33

3
0

0.
0%

30
3,

19
8

(1
)

B
lo

ck
 It

em
s

0
0

0
3,

60
4,

70
8

1,
50

1,
96

1
1,

50
1,

96
1

0
0.

0%
3,

60
4,

70
8

0
C

he
m

ot
he

ra
py

0
0

0
0

0
1,

35
7,

01
2

56
5,

42
1

59
5,

37
3

(2
9,

95
1)

(5
.3

%
)

1,
42

8,
89

4
(7

1,
88

2)
D

ru
gs

 a
nd

 D
ev

ic
es

0
0

0
0

0
2,

69
1,

02
1

1,
12

1,
25

9
1,

12
1,

25
9

0
0.

0%
2,

69
1,

02
1

0
E

le
ct

iv
e 

T
hr

es
ho

ld
 b

al
an

ce
 fo

r 
ad

ju
st

m
en

t0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0.

0%
0

0
E

xc
lu

de
d 

In
pa

tie
nt

s
16

16
0.

0%
9,

73
1

(9
,7

31
)

0.
0%

0
E

xc
lu

de
d 

O
ut

pa
tie

nt
s

92
38

20
18

0.
0%

22
,3

13
9,

49
0

4,
87

8
4,

61
3

48
.6

%
22

,3
13

B
lo

od
 P

ro
du

ct
s

0
0

0
0

0.
0%

0
0

22
,5

00
(2

2,
50

0)
0.

0%
54

,0
00

(5
4,

00
0)

IT
U

 T
hr

es
ho

ld
0

0.
0%

0
0.

0%
0

P
ho

to
th

er
ap

y 
T

re
at

m
en

t
0

0
0.

0%
0

0.
0%

0
P

la
nn

ed
 P

ro
ce

du
re

s 
no

t c
ar

rie
d 

ou
t 

0
0

0
0

0.
0%

0
0

0
0

0.
0%

0
0

V
irt

ua
l C

lin
ic

s 
LC

G
 P

la
n 

R
ed

uc
tio

n
5,

61
4

2,
28

5
42

0
1,

86
5

0.
0%

13
9,

48
9

56
,7

84
10

,4
29

46
,3

55
81

.6
%

25
,6

18
11

3,
87

1
T

el
ep

ho
ne

 C
on

su
lta

tio
ns

1,
30

8
53

6
61

0
(7

4)
0.

0%
32

,4
82

13
,3

18
15

,1
49

(1
,8

31
)

(1
3.

8%
)

36
,9

48
(4

,4
66

)
T

ra
ns

po
rt

 S
er

vi
ce

0
0

0
0

0.
0%

66
5,

61
0

27
0,

96
0

30
8,

83
6

(3
7,

87
6)

(1
4.

0%
)

75
8,

65
4

(9
3,

04
4)

T
ot

al
7,

01
4

2,
87

6
1,

05
0

1,
82

6
0

8,
81

5,
83

2
3,

66
5,

52
5

3,
71

6,
44

8
(5

0,
92

3)
(1

.4
%

)
8,

90
3,

04
2

(8
7,

21
0)

To
ta

l
93

3,
95

5
38

5,
63

2
36

5,
89

6
79

,4
13

,5
38

33
,4

12
,8

78
34

,9
30

,0
85

-1
,5

17
,2

08
1

81
,2

11
,2

31
(1

,7
97

,6
93

)
C

Q
U

IN
1,

98
5,

33
8

83
5,

32
2

   
   

   
   

 
87

3,
25

2
   

   
   

   
 

(3
7,

93
0)

(0
)

2,
03

0,
28

1
(4

4,
94

3)
To

ta
l i

n
cl

u
d

in
g

 C
Q

U
IN

81
,3

98
,8

76
34

,2
48

,1
99

35
,8

03
,3

37
(1

,5
55

,1
38

)
(0

)
   

   
   

   
   

83
,2

41
,5

11
(1

,8
42

,6
35

)

Q
u

er
ie

d
 D

is
p

u
te

s
0

0
0

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 C

h
an

g
e 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

es
0

0
0

0
0

F
o

re
ca

st
 in

cl
 d

is
p

u
te

s
81

,3
98

,8
76

34
,2

48
,1

99
35

,8
03

,3
37

(1
,5

55
,1

38
)

83
,2

41
,5

11
(1

,8
42

,6
35

)

31



A
pp

en
di

x 
2b

Q
E

H
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 

5
Ju

ly
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 m

u
lt

ip
li

e
d

 u
p

w
a

rd
s 

P
O

D
A

n
n

u
al

 p
la

n
M

o
n

th
 5

 P
la

n
M

o
n

th
 5

 A
ct

u
al

V
ar

ia
n

ce
V

ar
ia

n
ce

 %
A

n
n

u
al

  £
 P

la
n

M
o

n
th

 5
 £

 P
la

n
M

o
n

th
 5

 £
 A

ct
u

al
V

ar
ia

n
ce

 £
V

ar
ia

n
ce

 %
F

o
re

ca
st

 S
p

en
d

 
F

o
re

ca
st

 V
ar

ia
n

ce

E
le

ct
iv

e
S

pe
lls

6,
43

4
2,

67
9

2,
74

0
(6

1)
(2

.3
%

)
5,

18
6,

62
0

2,
18

0,
72

9
2,

32
0,

47
1

(1
39

,7
43

)
(6

.4
%

)
5,

49
8,

20
2

(3
11

,5
82

)

E
xc

es
s 

B
ed

 D
ay

s
11

2
50

85
(3

5)
(7

0.
0%

)
26

,8
12

11
,9

29
22

,3
13

(1
0,

38
4)

(8
7.

0%
)

50
,1

50
(2

3,
33

8)

T
ot

al
6,

54
6

2,
72

9
2,

82
5

(9
6)

(3
.5

%
)

5,
21

3,
43

2
2,

19
2,

65
8

2,
34

2,
78

4
(1

50
,1

26
)

(6
.8

%
)

5,
54

8,
35

1
(3

34
,9

19
)

N
o

n
-E

le
ct

iv
e

S
pe

lls
5,

55
6

2,
29

8
2,

40
3

(1
05

)
(4

.6
%

)
8,

85
5,

92
4

3,
68

4,
12

9
3,

79
3,

25
0

(1
09

,1
21

)
(3

.0
%

)
9,

11
7,

71
8

(2
61

,7
94

)

E
xc

es
s 

B
ed

 D
ay

s
2,

84
5

1,
18

6
1,

20
5

(1
9)

(1
.6

%
)

64
5,

52
4

26
9,

43
3

27
7,

31
3

(7
,8

80
)

(2
.9

%
)

66
4,

40
4

(1
8,

88
0)

T
hr

es
ho

ld
0

#D
IV

/0
!

(4
25

,7
56

)
(1

96
,6

43
) 

(2
25

,9
99

)
29

,3
56

(1
4.

9%
)

(5
42

,3
97

)
11

6,
64

1

T
ot

al
8,

40
1

3,
48

4
3,

60
8

(1
24

)
(3

.6
%

)
9,

07
5,

69
2

3,
75

6,
91

9
3,

84
4,

56
4

(8
7,

64
5)

(2
.3

%
)

9,
23

9,
72

5
(1

64
,0

33
)

A
&

E
A

tte
nd

an
ce

s
8,

44
4

3,
52

9
3,

74
5

(2
16

)
(6

.1
%

)
86

7,
26

9
36

2,
40

6
37

9,
76

0
(1

7,
35

4)
(4

.8
%

)
90

8,
79

8
(4

1,
52

9)

O
u

tp
a

ti
e

n
ts

F
irs

t A
tte

nd
an

ce
s

11
,5

78
4,

70
4

4,
75

8
(5

4)
(1

.1
%

)
1,

93
5,

89
8

78
4,

73
5

79
4,

55
6

(9
,8

21
)

(1
.3

%
)

1,
96

0,
10

2
(2

4,
20

4)

F
ol

lo
w

 U
ps

29
,6

93
11

,9
89

12
,9

48
(9

59
)

(8
.0

%
)

2,
39

9,
31

8
96

7,
90

0
1,

04
2,

39
6

(7
4,

49
6)

(7
.7

%
)

2,
58

7,
98

7
(1

88
,6

69
)

O
ut

pa
tie

nt
 P

ro
ce

du
re

s
5,

26
9

2,
14

0
2,

36
9

(2
29

)
(1

0.
7%

)
84

7,
09

1
34

4,
40

0
39

1,
69

1
(4

7,
29

1)
(1

3.
7%

)
96

3,
41

1
(1

16
,3

20
)

T
ot

al
46

,5
40

18
,8

33
20

,0
74

(1
,2

41
)

(6
.6

%
)

5,
18

2,
30

7
2,

09
7,

03
5

2,
22

8,
64

4
(1

31
,6

09
)

(6
.3

%
)

5,
51

1,
49

9
(3

29
,1

92
)

C
ri

ti
ca

l 
C

a
re

B
ed

 D
ay

s
81

2
34

0
37

5
(3

5)
(1

0.
3%

)
89

0,
08

3
37

2,
70

4
39

9,
49

5
(2

6,
79

1)
(7

.2
%

)
95

4,
06

5
(6

3,
98

2)

D
ir

e
ct

 A
cc

e
ss

P
at

ho
lo

gy
74

,8
88

31
,2

04
32

,0
11

(8
08

)
(2

.6
%

)
67

7,
69

9
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

28
2,

39
9

28
6,

26
5

(3
,8

66
)

(1
.4

%
)

68
6,

97
4

(9
,2

75
)

D
ia

gn
os

tic
1,

22
5

51
4

3,
11

6
(2

,6
03

)
(5

06
.6

%
)

66
,5

69
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
28

,2
49

10
6,

32
6

(7
8,

07
8)

(2
76

.4
%

)
25

0,
56

8
(1

83
,9

99
)

O
th

er
12

9
54

48
6

11
.6

%
7,

54
4

3,
14

4
2,

77
8

36
6

11
.7

%
6,

66
6

87
8

T
ot

al
76

,2
42

31
,7

71
35

,1
75

(3
,4

04
)

(0
)

75
1,

81
2

31
3,

79
1

39
5,

36
9

(8
1,

57
8)

(2
6.

0%
)

94
4,

20
8

(1
92

,3
96

)

N
o

n
 T

ar
if

f
A

ud
io

lo
gy

10
60

44
3

31
6

12
6

0
58

,0
46

24
,1

86
23

,9
48

23
8

1.
0%

57
,4

74
57

2

B
lo

ck
 It

em
s

0
0

0
0

#D
IV

/0
!

84
1,

05
5

32
6,

62
4

32
6,

62
4

0
0.

0%
84

1,
05

5
0

D
ru

gs
 a

nd
 D

ev
ic

es
0

0
0

0
#D

IV
/0

!
85

5,
04

7
35

6,
26

9
41

7,
32

3
(6

1,
05

4)
(1

7.
1%

)
85

5,
04

7
0

E
xc

lu
de

d 
In

pa
tie

nt
s

0
0

#D
IV

/0
!

0
0

0
0.

0%
0

A
pp

lia
nc

es
 &

 A
id

s
0

30
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

40
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

(1
0)

(3
3.

3%
)

93
,0

29
23

,7
94

23
,7

94
0

#R
E

F
!

57
,1

05
35

,9
24

E
m

er
ge

nc
y 

R
ea

dm
is

si
on

s 
0

(1
36

,4
15

)
(1

36
,4

15
)

0
#R

E
F

!
(3

84
,3

96
)

38
4,

39
6

M
at

er
ni

ty
 m

at
te

rs
 

55
,9

48
23

,3
12

0
23

,3
12

55
,9

48
0

M
R

S
A

2,
26

7
97

1
99

5
(2

4)
(2

.4
%

)
96

,4
84

40
,1

66
42

,3
48

(2
,1

81
)

(5
.4

%
)

10
1,

72
4

(5
,2

40
)

N
uc

ha
l S

cr
ee

ni
ng

0
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

#D
IV

/0
!

60
,5

00
25

,2
09

25
,2

09
0

0.
0%

60
,5

01
(1

)

P
ae

di
at

ric
 D

ia
be

tic
 M

ed
ic

in
e

36
0

15
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
98

0.
0%

98
,1

53
40

,8
98

17
,7

23
23

,1
75

42
,5

34
55

,6
19

S
tr

ok
e 

24
/7

0
0

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

#D
IV

/0
!

11
6,

95
8

48
,7

33
34

,0
75

14
,6

58
30

.1
%

81
,7

80
35

,1
78

T
el

ep
ho

ne
 C

on
su

lta
tio

ns
53

8
26

1
27

6
(1

5)
(5

.7
%

)
12

,6
97

6,
16

5
6,

52
0

(3
55

)
(5

.8
%

)
15

,9
23

(3
,2

26
)

T
ra

ns
po

rt
 S

er
vi

ce
0

0
0

0
#D

IV
/0

!
27

7,
64

1
11

5,
68

4
11

5,
68

4
0

0.
0%

26
9,

35
6

8,
28

5

T
ot

al
4,

22
5

1,
85

5
1,

72
5

78
#D

IV
/0

!
2,

56
5,

55
8

89
4,

62
3

89
6,

83
0

(2
,2

08
)

(0
.2

%
)

2,
05

4,
05

0
51

1,
50

8

T
o

ta
l

15
1,

21
0

62
,5

40
67

,5
26

24
,5

46
,1

53
9,

99
0,

13
5

10
,4

87
,4

45
(4

97
,3

10
)

(5
.0

%
)

25
,1

60
,6

96
(6

14
,5

43
)

C
Q

U
IN

58
8,

52
3

24
9,

75
3

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
26

2,
18

6
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

(1
2,

43
3)

(5
.0

%
)

62
9,

01
7

(4
0,

49
4)

T
o

ta
l i

n
cl

u
d

in
g

 C
Q

U
IN

25
,1

34
,6

76
10

,2
39

,8
88

10
,7

49
,6

31
(5

09
,7

43
)

(5
.0

%
)

25
,7

89
,7

14
(6

55
,0

38
)

au
d

Q
u

er
ie

d
 D

is
p

u
te

s
0

0

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 C

h
an

g
e 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

es
0

0
0

0
0

F
o

re
ca

st
 in

cl
 d

is
p

u
te

s
25

,1
34

,6
76

10
,2

39
,8

88
10

,7
49

,6
31

(5
09

,7
43

)
25

,7
89

,7
14

(6
55

,0
38

)

32



A
pp

en
di

x 
3

A
pp

en
di

x 
3

N
H

S
C

 S
av

in
g

s 
D

el
iv

er
y 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e 
12

/1
3 

as
 a

t 
M

5 
(J

u
ly

 2
01

2)

A
nn

ua
l 

S
av

in
gs

 
T

ar
ge

t

S
av

in
gs

 
ta

rg
et

 Y
ea

r 
to

 d
at

e

A
ct

ua
l  

S
av

in
gs

 to
 

da
te

V
ar

ia
nc

e 
ye

ar
 to

 d
at

e
F

or
ec

as
t 

O
ut

tu
rn

V
ar

ia
nc

e 
ag

ai
ns

t 
A

nn
ua

l 
S

av
in

gs
 

T
ar

ge
t

S
ta

tu
s

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

P
re

sc
rib

in
g

4,
10

0
1,

70
8

2,
00

0
29

2
4,

20
5

10
5

R
em

ov
ed

 fr
om

 b
as

el
in

e 
bu

dg
et

 p
rio

r 
to

 d
ev

ol
vi

ng
 to

 L
C

G
s/

P
ra

ct
ic

es

P
rim

ar
y 

C
ar

e

  D
en

ta
l

50
0

20
8

0
-2

08
 

0
-5

00
 

B
ud

ge
t r

ed
uc

tio
n 

- 
m

on
ito

re
d 

m
on

th
ly

 a
ga

in
st

 fo
re

ca
st

 o
ut

tu
rn

  G
M

S
50

0
20

8
0

-2
08

 
0

-5
00

 
B

ud
ge

t r
ed

uc
tio

n 
- 

m
on

ito
re

d 
m

on
th

ly
 a

ga
in

st
 fo

re
ca

st
 o

ut
tu

rn

O
th

er
0

0
0

0
0

0

M
an

ag
em

en
t C

os
ts

1,
10

4
24

5
46

0
21

5
1,

10
4

0
B

ud
ge

t r
ed

uc
tio

n 
- 

pr
of

ile
d 

to
 b

eg
in

 to
 r

ea
lis

e 
sa

vi
ng

s 
on

 c
om

pl
et

io
n 

of
 r

es
tr

uc
tu

rin
g

A
cu

te
17

,9
14

8,
34

3
6,

70
6

-1
,6

37
 

14
,5

75
-3

,3
39

 
£4

.1
58

m
 o

f s
av

in
g 

re
pr

es
en

ts
 g

ai
ns

 a
ch

ie
ve

d 
in

 fi
na

l c
on

tr
ac

t n
eg

ot
ia

tio
ns

H
ig

h 
C

os
t D

ru
gs

4,
10

0
91

1
0

-9
11

 
3,

10
0

-1
,0

00
 

T
ot

al
 a

s 
re

tu
rn

ed
 to

 M
id

la
nd

 &
 E

as
t

28
,2

18
11

,6
24

9,
16

6
-2

,4
58

 
22

,9
84

-5
,2

34
 

33



Appendix 4

CAMBRIDGESHIRE PCT
SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL RISKS

Reported 
position / Most 

Likely

Best Case Worst Case

£000's £000's £000's

Acute (11,802) (8,000) (12,000) 

Other Commissioning (642) 0 (2,000) 

Primary care prescribing 624 1,000 (500) 

Transitional Fund 0 0 0

Other Budget areas 14,401 14,400 10,000

NHSCB (2,753) (1,500) (3,000) 

Running Costs 172 1,000 (100) 

Total 0 6,900 (7,600) 

34



Appendix 5

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
 

At 31st August 2012 2012/13
£000 £000

Cashflow from operating activities
Net operating cost before interest (225,313) (900,363)
Other cash flow adjustments 413                1,653             
Movements in Working Capital 8,757             (8,858)
Provisions utilised -                    (292)
Interest paid -                    
Net cash outflow from operating activities (216,143) (907,860)

Cash flows from investing activities
Payments to purchase property, plant and equipment (275) (2,905)
Payments to purchase intangible assets -                    
Proceeds of disposal PPE & intangible assets -
Purchase of financial investments (LIFT) -                    
Sale of financial investments (LIFT) -                    
Loans made in respect of LIFT -                    
Loans repaid in respect of LIFT -                    
Payments for other financial assets -                    
Proceeds from disposal of other financial assets -                    
Interest received -                    
Rental Income -                    
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from investing activities (275)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) before financing (216,418) (907,860)

Cash flows from financing activities
Net Parliamentary Funding 216,594         907,860         
Other capital receipts surrendered
Capital grants received  
Capital element of payments in respect of finance leases, on-SoFP PFI and LIFT
Cash transfers (to)/from other NHS bodies
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing 216,594         907,860         

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 176                0                    

35



Appendix 6

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT

At June 2012
FORECAST to   
31 March 2013 31 March 2012

£000 £000 £000
Non-current assets:
Property, plant and equipment 43,521                 44,877                 43,672                 
Total non-current assets 43,521                 44,877                 43,672                 

Current assets:
Inventories 182                      182                      182                      
Trade and other receivables 4,535 6,386 19,514                 
Cash and cash equivalents 180                      4                          4                          
Total current assets 4,897                   6,572                   19,700                 

Total assets 48,418                 51,449                 63,372                 

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables (55,970) (40,206) (62,192)
Provisions (292) (292) (292)
Total current liabilities (56,262) (40,498) (62,484)

Non-current assets plus/less net current assets/liabilities (7,844) 10,951                 888                      

Non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables (4,758) (4,758) (4,758)
Provisions (804) (586) (878)
Total non-current liabilities (5,562) (5,344) (5,636)

Total Assets Employed: (13,406) 5,607                   (4,748)

FINANCED BY:
TAXPAYERS' EQUITY
General fund (26,646) (7,633) (17,988)
Revaluation reserve 13,240                 13,240                 13,240                 

Total Taxpayers' Equity: (13,406) 5,607                   (4,748)

0 0 0

36



Public Section Payment Policy (PSPP)

Cumulative position as at 31st August 2012

Number £000's

Non NHS Invoices

Total bills paid in year 4,619 27,251

Total bills paid within target 4,404 25,432

Percentage paid within target 95.35% 93.33%

NHS Invoices

Total bills paid in year 1,175 157,470

Total bills paid within target 970 153,313

Percentage paid within target 82.55% 97.36%

10 Days 90.10% 88.78%

37



38

This page is intentionally left blank



PCT Cluster Board Meeting in Public 26.09.2012 
Agenda Item 3.3 Page 1 

 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
MEETING:   PCT CLUSTER BOARD MEETING IN PUBLIC 
    
AGENDA ITEM: 3.3 
 
MEETING DATE: 26 SEPTEMBER 2012 
 
TITLE:   PERFORMANCE REPORT 
 
FROM:   ALAN MACK 
   DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE DEVELOPMENT & PERFORMANCE 
 
FOR:    INFORMATION AND ACTION 
 ____________________________________________________________________________  

 
1  PURPOSE AND KEY ISSUES: 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to brief the Committee on progress against the key Cambridgeshire 

and Peterborough performance deliverables in 2012/13 and contract notices being applied to 
service providers. 

 
1.2 The Appendix contains a dashboard on the 2012/13 service performance indicators for each of 

the following organisations: 
 Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) 
 NHS Cambridgeshire (NHSC) 
 NHS Peterborough (NHSP) 
 Cambridge University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust (CUHFT) 
 Hinchingbrooke Health Care NHS Trust (HHCT) 
 Peterborough and Stamford Hospitals Foundation NHS Trust (PSHFT) 
 Papworth Hospital NHS Foundation Trust 
 Cambridgeshire Community Services NHS Trust (CCS) 
 Cambridgeshire and Peterborough NHS Foundation Trust (CPFT) 

 
1.3 The dashboard integrates key Performance Indicators and Quality and Patient Safety indicators 

into a single dashboard which will be used at both the Finance and Performance Committee and 
the Quality and Patient Safety Committee.   

 
1.4 This month, the dashboard only shows those areas where performance has not been as 

required, however, information relating to all indicators is available upon request 
 
1.5 The indicators either cover the population of NHS Cambridgeshire (NHSC) or NHS 

Peterborough (NHSP) as Commissioners or they cover all patients for one of the main provider 
contracts as outlined above. Aggregated Cambridgeshire and Peterborough indicators do not 
yet include data for patients of Northamptonshire and Hertfordshire practices in Cambridgeshire 
and Peterborough CCG. This will be dependent on Department of Health (DH) changes to 
national data flows.  

 
 
 

39



PCT Cluster Board Meeting in Public 26.09.2012 
Agenda Item 3.3 Page 2 

 

2 KEY POINTS 
 
2.1 Areas for improvement 
 
2.1.1 Each table below highlights areas where performance has not been as required and provides 

further detail on the reasons for poor performance and how good performance will be recovered.  
Areas commented on include: 

 
 Referral to Treatment (RTT)  
 Diagnostic Tests 
 Cancer Services 
 Waits in Accident and Emergency (A&E) 
 Choose and Book 
 Delayed Transfers of Care  
 Health Checks Received 
 Never Events 
 Clostridium Difficile infections 
 Pressure Ulcers 
 Crisis Resolution  
 Stroke Services 

 
2.1.2 There are a number of areas where the situation and intelligence on performance has not 

changed from the previous month and no further information has been provided in this report. 
 
2.1.3 Due to organisational changes at the Strategic Health Authority (SHA) provider data previously 

available to Commissioners from the SHA is not readily available. Alternative data flows from 
providers are being developed.  

40



PCT Cluster Board Meeting in Public 26.09.2012 
Agenda Item 3.3 Page 3 

 

 
Referral to Treatment (Admitted, non-admitted and incomplete) - Percentage of 
treatment functions which are not failing the 18 week targets – RED 
 
 
Integrated Performance 
Headline Measure  

Direction of travel 
NHSC NHSP 

 
 
 

 

Improved Improved 

TARGET: LATEST PERFORMANCE: PERIOD COVERED: 
 July YTD  

Admitted 90% 
C&P CCG 

90.6% 89.9% July 2012 
Non-Admitted 95% 97.9% 97.8% July 2012 
Incomplete 92% 96.1% 96.2% July 2012 
   
Admitted 90% 

NHSC 
90.5% 90.1% July 2012 

Non-Admitted 95% 98.1% 98.1% July 2012 
Incomplete 92% 95.8% 95.9% July 2012 
 
Admitted 90% 

NHSP 
90.8% 89.7% July 2012 

Non-Admitted 95% 97.2% 97.5% July 2012 
Incomplete 92% 96.7% 96.6% July 2012 
REASON FOR POOR PERFORMANCE: 
On a year to date basis C&P CCG is under the 90% standard for admitted patients. The 
standard is not being met in six specialties. These are Cardiothoracic Surgery (Papworth), 
Ear, Nose and Throat (CUHFT and PSHFT), Gynaecology (CUHFT & Queen Elizabeth 
Hospital), Oral surgery (CUHFT), Orthopaedics (CUHFT and Queen Elizabeth Hospital) and 
Urology (CUHFT). 
  
CUHFT 
For July, CUHFT is under the standard for admitted patients in the following specialties: ENT 
(Ear, nose and throat), Gynaecology, Neurosurgery, Oral Surgery, Trauma and Orthopaedics 
(T&O) and Urology attaining 85.3% overall and 86.1% year to date (YTD).  The initial 
reasons for poor performance have been outlined in previous reports.    
 
PSHFT 
PSHFT is under the operational standard for admitted patients in ENT, General Surgery and 
Oral Surgery for July but achieved the target overall attaining 90.8%.  However, on a YTD 
basis PSHFT is under the standard (89.7%).  As highlighted in previous reports, there were 
bed capacity issues in Quarter 4 which were being addressed during Quarter 1.   
 
Papworth 
Papworth met the standard overall for admitted patients for July (93.7%), however, the 
standard for Cardiothoracic Surgery was not met (85.2%) due to capacity constraints. 
 
Queen Elizabeth Hospital (QEH) 
QEH met the standard overall for admitted patients for July (96.4%), but did not meet the 
standard in Gynaecology (87.5%) and T&O (82.6%).  Gynaecology and T&O backlog 
clearance work has caused the Trust performance to dip, as would be expected.  Both 
specialties suffered cancellations during Quarter 1 which hindered the speed of the 
clearance. 
HOW THE TARGET WILL BE DELIVERED, AND WHAT, IF ANY REMEDIAL 
CONTRACTUAL ACTIONS HAVE BEEN TAKEN? 
CUHFT 
As highlighted in last month’s report, an exception report was issued on 15th August as the 
Trust had failed to comply with remedial action plans.   
 
The Trust have now outlined a substantial programme of work to improve performance and a 

41



PCT Cluster Board Meeting in Public 26.09.2012 
Agenda Item 3.3 Page 4 

 

significant number of actions in the Remedial Action Plan are progressing to plan, however, 
this has not delivered the planned reduction in backlog. 
 
There are two weekly meetings led by clinicians with the Trust’s contracting team.  The Trust 
has identified certain specialties that have longer standing problems and a longer term 
solution is being looked into for these. 
 
At a strategic level the Chief Clinical Officer and the Vice Chair of the CCG is meeting on a 
two weekly basis with the Chief Executive Officer and Finance Director to assess progress 
on performance. 
 
Line by line penalties will be looked into for areas of poor performance and this is being 
clinically led integrated alongside the contracting team. 
 
PSHFT 
Performance is being strictly monitored and clinicians are working closely through contract 
management meetings and performance reviews to discuss the areas with hospital clinicians 
and management. 
 
An update on the 3 underperforming specialities is provided below: 

• ENT – the plan and trajectory predicted ENT to be back to 90% by July 2012.  In 
order to manage the issue the Trust are adding additional operating sessions to 
increase the total volume of patients seen.  Unvalidated data indicates the standard 
was achieved for August 2012. 

• General Surgery – the plan and trajectory is for this speciality to be achieving 90% 
consistently from October 2012. As highlighted in previous reports, the main area of 
concern is consultant capacity to undertake laparoscopic surgery.  A new consultant 
starts in October with the skills to undertake this surgery. Outsourcing to Independent 
Sector (IS) providers is helping with reducing some of the back log however this is not 
sufficient to achieve the timeline originally agreed. The revised position is December 
2012 – the new consultant will be working solely on clearing the back log.   

• Oral Surgery did not achieve 90% in July (84.2%), but is expected to achieve for 
August – this was due to an administrative error and has been addressed. 
 

As previously reported, it has been agreed that the PCT would only serve contractual 
consequences on poor performance with RTT and ED after 6 months as the leadership 
changed, however the PCT are informing PSHFT on a monthly basis what would be 
deducted if this agreement wasn't in place.  
 
Papworth 
The Specialised Commissioning Group (SCG) as the host commissioner, are lading work 
with the Trust to recover performance.  The SCG have received an action plan from the Trust 
and are monitoring recovery on behalf of the Cluster. 
 
Queen Elizabeth Hospital (QEH) 
NHS Norfolk are leading work with the Trust to ensure that the backlog is cleared and 
performance is recovered by the end of Quarter 2. 
 
RECOVERY DATE: 
CUHFT 
It is unlikely that the agreed target recovery dates will be achieved. 

 Gynaecology will be compliant by September and Oral Surgery will be compliant by 
August 2012.  Neurosurgery will be compliant by October. 

 It had previously been indicated that Urology and ENT would be compliant by the end 
of Quarter 2 in line with agreed recovery dates, otherwise the CCG will be looking to 
use contractual levers.  Clinician to clinician meetings are in place.

 Orthopaedics will be compliant by January 2013 rather than from October 2012.  
Commissioners are working towards moving this forward.  Clinician to clinician 
meetings are in place to understand the backlog and solutions. 

42



PCT Cluster Board Meeting in Public 26.09.2012 
Agenda Item 3.3 Page 5 

 

 
PSHFT 

 ENT will be at 90% from August.  
 The General Surgery backlog is slowly being reduced and a revised plan is being 

implemented to achieve the standard from December 2012. 
 Oral Surgery will be at 90% from August. 

 
Queen Elizabeth Hospital (QEH) 
NHS Norfolk, as lead commissioner, have been working with the Trust to ensure 
performance is recovered by Quarter 2. 
 
 
Number of Patients waiting 6 weeks + for 15 key diagnostic tests- RED 

Local Performance Measure 
 

Direction of travel 
NHSC NHSP 

 
 
 

 

Worse Improved 
TARGET: 0 
 

LATEST 
PERFORMANCE: PERIOD COVERED: 

C&P CCG Year to date: N/A C&P CCG 35 July 2012 
NHSC Year to date: N/A NHSC 31 July 2012 
NHSP Year to date: N/A NHSP 4 July 2012 
%  of Patients waiting 6 weeks + for 15 key diagnostic tests- RED 
TARGET: < 1% 
 

LATEST 
PERFORMANCE: PERIOD COVERED: 

C&P CCG Year to date: N/A C&P CCG 0.3% July 2012 
NHSC Year to date: N/A NHSC 0.3% July 2012 
NHSP Year to date: N/A NHSP 0.2% July 2012 
REASON FOR POOR PERFORMANCE: 
For July, the national standard of less than 1% of patients waiting 6 weeks + for key 
diagnostic tests was met for NHSC, NHSP and across the C&P cluster.   
 
For NHSC, 31 patients were waiting more than 6 weeks: 8 were Magnetic Resonance 
Imaging breaches (1 at PSHFT, 1 at HHCT, 4 at Papworth, 2 at Nuffield), 1 was for 
Computed Tomography (HHCT), 8 were Non–obstetric breaches (HHCT), 9 were in 
Cardiology-echocardiography (8 at CUHFT, 1 at QEH), 1 was a Urodynamics breach – 
pressures and flows (CUHFT), there was 1 Colonoscopy breach (HHCT) and 3 Cystoscopy 
breaches (CUHFT). 
 
For NHSP there were 4 breaches in Computed Tomography (Fitzwilliam Hospital).   
 
Reasons for the breaches have been received and can be provided upon request. 
HOW THE TARGET WILL BE DELIVERED, AND WHAT, IF ANY REMEDIAL 
CONTRACTUAL ACTIONS HAVE BEEN TAKEN? 
The national standard of less than 1% of patients waiting 6 weeks + for key diagnostic tests 
was met across the Cluster. 
RECOVERY DATE: 
September 2012 
 

43



PCT Cluster Board Meeting in Public 26.09.2012 
Agenda Item 3.3 Page 6 

 

 
Maximum 2 week wait from a referral for evaluation of “breast symptoms” by a 
primary care professional to date first seen – RED 

Integrated Performance Headline 
Measure  

Direction of travel 
HHCT  

 
 
 

 

Worse  
TARGET: 93% 
 

LATEST 
PERFORMANCE: PERIOD COVERED: 

HHCT Year to date: 94% HHCT 90.2% July 2012 
REASON FOR POOR PERFORMANCE: 
There were five breaches of the breast symptom two week wait at HHCT.  Four of the 
breaches were patient choice and one was due to the cancellation of a clinic. 
HOW THE TARGET WILL BE DELIVERED, AND WHAT, IF ANY REMEDIAL 
CONTRACTUAL ACTIONS HAVE BEEN TAKEN? 
The Cluster are working with HHCT to ensure performance is recovered. 
RECOVERY DATE: 
August 2012  
 
 
All patients receiving their subsequent treatment (Radiotherapy) for cancer within one 
months (31 days) of a decision to treat – RED 

Integrated Performance Headline 
Measure  

Direction of travel 
NHSC NHSP 

 
 
 

 

Improved Worse 
TARGET: 94% 
 

LATEST 
PERFORMANCE: PERIOD COVERED: 

C&P CCG Year to date: 93.1% C&P CCG 96.4% July 2012 
NHSC Year to date: 94.9% NHSC 96.4% July 2012 
NHSP Year to date: 86.8% NHSP 96.3%  July 2012 
REASON FOR POOR PERFORMANCE: 

 NHSC met the target for July achieving 96.4%. 
 NHSP met the target for June achieving 100% and July achieving 96.3%. 

HOW THE TARGET WILL BE DELIVERED, AND WHAT, IF ANY REMEDIAL 
CONTRACTUAL ACTIONS HAVE BEEN TAKEN? 
Investment appraisal has been verbally agreed internally at PSHFT for an additional 2 
Linacs. The team are still working longer hours to full capacity.  No breaches are expected 
for August. Servicing and maintenance are now happening at weekends to assist with 
available capacity.  An agreement for additional staffing recruitment has been granted with 
interviews being held soon.  
RECOVERY DATE: 

 NHSC achieved this target for July 2012. 
 PSHFT achieved the standard for June and July 2012.  

 

44



PCT Cluster Board Meeting in Public 26.09.2012 
Agenda Item 3.3 Page 7 

 

 
All patients receiving their first definitive treatment for cancer within two months (62 
days) of a GP or dentist urgent referral – RED 

Integrated Performance Headline 
Measure  

Direction of travel 
NHSC NHSP 

 
 
 

 

Worse Worse 
TARGET: 85% 
 

LATEST 
PERFORMANCE: PERIOD COVERED: 

C&P CCG Year to date: 83.4% C&P CCG 81% July 2012 
NHSC Year to date: 82.2% NHSC 79.2% July 2012 
NHSP Year to date: 87.9% NHSP 87.9%  July 2012 
REASON FOR POOR PERFORMANCE: 
HHCT: July performance was 77.4%.  14 patients were treated at >62 days: 4 in 
Haematology, 4 in lower Gastro Intestinal (GI), 2 in upper GI, 4 in Urology.  The reasons for 
the breaches were: capacity delays for radiotherapy at PSHFT; histology delays at CUHFT, 
complex diagnostic pathways and patients choice.     
 
CUHFT: In July 26 patients were treated >62 days: 2 Haematology, 2 Head and Neck, 8 
lower GI, 4 Lung, 4 Upper GI, 6 Urology. 
 
The main issues continue to be around internal capacity problems particularly for Endoscopy 
and Urology. 
 
Papworth – 0% July performance related to 2 Lung patients treated >62 days.  The Cluster 
have requested the July breach report from Papworth. 
 
QEH- 55% - 10 patients were treated >62 days: 2 Lung patients, 8 Urology patients. 
 
The Cluster has requested breach reports from providers. 
HOW THE TARGET WILL BE DELIVERED, AND WHAT, IF ANY REMEDIAL 
CONTRACTUAL ACTIONS HAVE BEEN TAKEN? 
CUHFT have a cancer remedial action plan which is being reviewed by commissioners on a 
weekly basis. 
 
Increasing Urology capacity actions include:  

• Securing additional clinic space 
• Manpower recruitment – An additional consultant starts in October and 2 Non 

Consultant Career Grade (NCCG) posts will commence by the end of September.  
 

Endoscopy capacity remains a pressure.  1 new suite is complete and the other is being 
refurbished.  One new post was due to go to medical manpower in late August.  In the 
interim, the medical staff continue to offer additional ad hoc sessions. 
RECOVERY DATE: 
It is expected that HHCT will recover in August. 
 
The recovery date for CUHFT is now the end of Quarter Four. 
 

45



PCT Cluster Board Meeting in Public 26.09.2012 
Agenda Item 3.3 Page 8 

 

 
Four hours maximum stay in the A&E department – AMBER 

Integrated Performance Headline 
Measure  

Direction of travel 
NHSC NHSP 

 
 
 

 
 
 

Improved Improved 
TARGET: 95% 
 

LATEST 
PERFORMANCE: PERIOD COVERED: 

C&P CCG Year to date: 95.8% C&P CCG 98% August 2012 
NHSC Year to date: 95.6% NHSC 97.9% August 2012 
NHSP Year to date: 96% NHSP 98% August 2012 
CUHFT Year to date: 93.4% CUHFT 97.2% August 2012 
HHCT Year to date: 98.9% HHCT 98.6% August 2012 
PSHFT Year to date: 92.3% PSHFT 96.2% August 2012 
REASON FOR POOR PERFORMANCE: 
As previously reported, NHSC performance had been impacted by the poor monthly 
performance seen at CUHFT.  This, itself, was partially down to patient flow issues within the 
Trust and a Delayed Transfers Of Care (DTOC) issue that the system has been working to 
resolve.  An additional impact on capacity that had delayed recovery of this target is the 
Major Trauma Centre (MTC) capital works developments.  The MTC should have no further 
impact on the delivery of the A&E standards, once the capital program is completed in the 
middle of September. CUHFT met the standard for August and have begun September with 
performance at 99%.  The standard for Quarter 2 has been recovered. 
 
With regard to NHSP, performance at PSHFT continues to be well below the expected 
standard of 95%.  Performance in May did improve however this was not sustained into June 
and July which has also been variable and significantly below the 95% standard.  The main 
reasons are around medical staffing (there are still 4 consultant posts vacant and middle 
grade vacancies being filled with locums) and capacity (there has been an unusual spike in 
medical admissions that has continued into the summer.  There is no obvious reason for the 
increase apart from the road developments from Spalding to Peterborough that mean it is 
easier to get patients to PSHFT than Lincolnshire Trusts).   
HOW THE TARGET WILL BE DELIVERED, AND WHAT, IF ANY REMEDIAL 
CONTRACTUAL ACTIONS HAVE BEEN TAKEN? 
CUHFT 
Previous reports have highlighted those areas that have the potential to bring some 
improvement into pathways and flows into and out of the ED and CUHFT is working to 
develop these further.  These included: 
 
 Review of the bypass agreements with EEAST and HHT: 

Completed. Agreement is now in place across all 3 Trusts. 
 Extension of GP at front door 

Completed.  GP cover is now available 7 days a week. 
 
A Contract Query Notice was issued to CUHFT on 13th June 2012.  NHSC has been meeting 
with the Trust, on a fortnightly basis, to establish action plans and a full response to the 
Emergency Care Intensive Support Team (ECIST) recommendations.  There is now a 
comprehensive action plan that addresses the whole emergency department and many 
urgent care pathways within the Trust. Many of the actions are medium term and require 
much clinical attention, but there is senior commitment at the Trust to ensure that these are 
delivered and performance is recovered. 
 
NHSC has applied the Section B Part 8.2 Penalty (PHQ23), from the 2012/13 contract, for 
Month 1 and Month 2 and an escalation meeting took place on 1st August 2012. 
 
CUHFT performance has shown improvements since the end of July 2012, with the week 

46



PCT Cluster Board Meeting in Public 26.09.2012 
Agenda Item 3.3 Page 9 

 

ending 9th of September seeing performance of 99%. 
 
For PSHFT, a work programme continues to build on that reported last month: 

 Development of further ambulatory care sensitive pathways, which will result in 
patients being redirected from A&E to alternative pathways, resulting in avoided 
admissions. 

 Revised remedial action plan requested by Commissioner from PSHFT as the current 
one is not delivering the desired results.   

 Awaiting the results of Quarter 2 quarterly A&E performance target and will move to 
withhold contract monies for failure to deliver this target. 

 Development of a joint system improvement plan to reduce demand on Acute 
services which contains targeted actions to reduce inappropriate attendances at A&E 

 Development of a targeted Choose Well communication plan based on analysis of 
Output Area Classification (OAC) ward data to determine the best messages and 
social marketing approach to take in next round of Choose Well.  Funding proposals 
are going to the next Urgent Care Network in September. 

 Practice visits to all practices who have average attendances above the LCG (Local 
Commissioning Group) average.  Specific actions around analysis and interventions 
by practices on inappropriate attenders have been agreed. 

 The implementation programme for connection to the Urgent Care dashboard and 
training are being planned currently. 

 Pathfinder is being rolled out to all GP practices and will promote the use of pathways 
which aim to manage activity in the community rather than A&E (Paediatrics’ 
pathways for common childhood illnesses) 

RECOVERY DATE: 
CUHFT have recovered their Quarter 2 performance, achieving 95%+ on a rolling average 
over the last 6 weeks.  The standard was achieved in August, with the first two weeks of 
September also showing excellent performance of 99% each week.  It is forecast that the 
YTD position will be recovered in November and maintained throughout the remainder of 
2012/13. 
 
PSHFT will not deliver in Quarter 2 because of poor performance in July, but will deliver from 
August onwards. 
 
 
GP referrals to first OP appointments booked using Choose and Book – RED 

Local Performance Measure 
 

Direction of travel 
NHSC NHSP 

 
 
 

 

Worse Worse 
TARGET: 90% 
 

LATEST 
PERFORMANCE: PERIOD COVERED: 

C&P CCG Year to date: 45.3% C&P CCG 42% August 2012 
NHSC Year to date: 74.6% NHSC 70% August 2012 
NHSP Year to date: 16.0% NHSP 14% August 2012 
REASON FOR POOR PERFORMANCE: 
Reasons for poor performance have been highlighted in previous reports and the issues 
remain the same. 
HOW THE TARGET WILL BE DELIVERED, AND WHAT, IF ANY REMEDIAL 
CONTRACTUAL ACTIONS HAVE BEEN TAKEN? 
Actions have been highlighted in previous reports and are continuing.  Additional actions are 
as follows: 
 

 CUHFT Named Clinicians – Only one clinician remains outstanding. 
 Advice and Guidance (A&G) – CUHFT went live with the remaining specialties in August. 

68 A&G requests were received by the Trust in August of which only 10 were converted 

47



PCT Cluster Board Meeting in Public 26.09.2012 
Agenda Item 3.3 Page 10 

 

into appointments. The Trust will continue to provide an analysis of the referrals to see 
what reduction has been made in outpatient appointments and this will be fed back to 
GP Practices.   

 Appointment Slot Issues – With effect from 1st April, providers were expected to achieve 
the 0.03 slot issues performance target.  CUHFT and HHCT continue to fail to achieve 
this figure.  A cancer performance remedial action plan was submitted on the 22nd 
August by CUHFT which shows 32 extra 2 week wait (2ww) slots in skin per week had 
been scheduled which should show a saving of 10 2ww breaches per month.  The Trust 
have advertised for an additional post but have been unable to appoint.  Further 
interviews are taking place in September.  The Trust has confirmed they will be 
controlling more of the pathway for Dermatology referrals and can therefore provide 
services outside of the Trust for 2ww referrals which should help capacity. 

 Urology is another area highlighted with capacity issues. The Trust has agreed to publish 
Heamaturia – Urology at the end of September, which may help resolve inappropriate 
referrals into Urology.  A revised proforma is required, which could delay publishing.  

 The Trust have been successful in recruiting Multi-Disciplinary Team coordinator 
positions to help deal with the increased work load especially in Urology. 

 CUHFT - Slot unavailability is resulting in referrals being managed outside of C&B 
causing frustration in Primary Care and duplication of work.  In July slot issues were at 
0.08 with a slight reduction in August (0.07).  

 CUHFT utilisation for the month was 58% and Hinchingbrooke 91%.  At the Project 
Board Meeting the NHSC C&B manager requested a breakdown of performance in 
specialties as there is significant difference between the two Trusts and the Cluster 
needs to understand the reasons why. 

 In the month of July NHSC C&B performance showed that across NHSC and NHSP 
1084 referrals had been deferred to provider as no appointments were available for 
booking, out of which only 686 had been converted into appointments.  It is important to 
recognise that slot issues are causing a significant drop in both practice and 
organisational performance.   

 HHCT submitted a remedial action plan confirming they have added 2 additional clinics a 
month for Gastroenterology and will review capacity & demand to look at realigning 
clinics. The Trust has been asked to provide a date of when the review will take place 
and the outcome reported.  Cardiology and Neurology has appointed a new locum and 
Consultant Neurologist to clear the backlogs in referrals.  The Trust reported that 
Ophthalmology is in the process of submitting a business case for a Medical Retinal 
Associate Specialist Grade to provide additional capacity to meet the demand.  NHSC 
has asked the Trust to confirm a date. 

 There is a need to understand how Clinical Business Units will feed into C&B.  A 
member of staff needs to be identified from the Trust who will be able to attend meetings 
and answer questions relating to C&B since the current C&B Manager will no longer be 
providing this role.  Ownership needs to be identified to allow the Cluster to continue to 
raise daily patient issues and resolve within 24 – 48 hours to ensure a seamless 
pathway for patients.  NHSC attended a meeting on the 14th September and raised the 
above.  Further discussions will take place with the Trust.  The Trust was also informed 
of the high number of slot issues which appear not to have been converted in C&B. They 
will raise this with their analysis team. 

 The NHSC C&B Manager raised concern with the SHA C&B Lead on the 10th 
September that no minutes had been fed back following the meeting between PSHFT 
and the SHA. The NHSC C&B manager reiterated the importance of having services 
available for booking on C&B.  NHSC & NHSP practices are finding the exclusions of 
services frustrating. 

 NHSP practice and provider usage continues to remain low, practices continue to raise 
concerns around using C&B without an incentive payment. 
 
 

 At a recent visit to 2 Peterborough practices, both raised concern about payment, 
however, both recognised that patients received better outcomes by having an electronic 
referral.  One practice is moving to system one in October and is strongly considering  
using C&B and the other practice is looking at internal resource to manage the system.  

48



PCT Cluster Board Meeting in Public 26.09.2012 
Agenda Item 3.3 Page 11 

 

Referring electronically reduces the patients pathway by almost 3 weeks.  
 CCS Community MSK service for the Peterborough area has now given an earlier date 

of the 9th October as a go live date. The Head of Service has made contact with the 
SHA for support. 

 The C&B Manager again informed the SHA C&B lead that The Queen Elizabeth hospital 
continues to publish their 2ww cancer services as a telephone assessment service.  The 
SHA has requested that a formal letter is submitted to the SHA for further follow up.  Slot 
issues at the Queen Elizabeth in August were 0.24.  A number of patients have reported 
that they are not being contacted within the required timeframe when the referral has 
been deferred by the practice to the Trust.  The NHSC C&B manager has again 
contacted the Trust but has not received a response. The contract lead has been 
informed so the issues can be raised. No further feedback has been received regarding 
capacity plans or reviews being undertaken by the Trust relating to their booking 
processes and procedures.  

RECOVERY DATE: 
As discussed at last month’s meeting this will be dependent on local response to national 
policy, following the closure of the current national consultation on Choice.  The response 
has not yet been published. 
 
Delayed transfers of care from hospitals (No. of patients per 100,000 population over 
18 years old) – RED 

Local Performance Measure 
 

Direction of travel 
NHSC NHSP 

 
 
 

 

Worse Improved 
TARGET: 
C&P CCG – 9   NHSC - 10  NHSP - 6 

LATEST 
PERFORMANCE: PERIOD COVERED: 

C&P CCG Year to date: 12 C&P CCG 14.1 July 2012 
NHSC Year to date: 13.8 NHSC 16.7 July 2012 
NHSP Year to date: 5.1 NHSP 4.6 July 2012 
REASON FOR POOR PERFORMANCE: 
At the beginning of July both acute Trusts saw a spike in attendance and admission rates at 
the hospitals which has resulted in a rise in delayed transfers of care (DTOC) in the latter half 
of July. 
 
CUHFT continues to have a high number of delays.  As highlighted in previous reports, 
issues accessing domiciliary care continue and are causing blockages across the Cambridge 
City and Cambridge South areas. Delays were seen in the Intermediate Care Team (ICT) / 
reablement service for people needing to access domiciliary care and as such this caused 
delays in the acute sector for people waiting for domiciliary care and ICT/reablement. 
  
HHCT have changed their internal processes under Circle management so referrals for 
people with ongoing care needs are now much slicker.  This meant in July that the team had 
to work with more referrals than normal as the new processes were embedded.  This has 
now levelled out again. 
HOW THE TARGET WILL BE DELIVERED, AND WHAT, IF ANY REMEDIAL 
CONTRACTUAL ACTIONS HAVE BEEN TAKEN? 
HHCT is being supported with additional money to access the independent sector to support 
ICT / reablement capacity whilst they go through a process of recruitment.   
Additional interim beds have also recently been purchased in the Huntingdonshire area to 
improve flow.   
Furthermore, discussions are also underway with the team at HHCT regarding unused wards 
and whether this space can be utilised to support people in a step down / social care 
environment. 
  
As previously reported, there has been a deep dive into issues at CUHFT overseen by the 
Chief Executive Officers (CEOs).  The discharge planning team who were managed by CCS 

49



PCT Cluster Board Meeting in Public 26.09.2012 
Agenda Item 3.3 Page 12 

 

are now being seconded to work under the management of CUHFT with the expectation that 
organisational barriers to timely transfer will reduce. Commissioners are also working with 
the discharge planning staff to ensure they and hospital teams are planning discharge from 
admission.  Furthermore, pathway redesign is being undertaken in the hospital to take out 
any lost bed days due to processes inside the hospital with input from the whole system.   
  
The presentation given to CEOs from the CUHFT catchment in May, identified demand on 
step down community services just from CUHFT and what the required capacity was to meet 
this demand.  This has led to a pilot whereby the PCT is commissioning additional inpatient 
community rehabilitation beds from the independent sector.  If this model is successful the 
PCT will increase capacity of these beds to help with demand over winter.  Work is also 
being carried out by Cambridgeshire County Council which will see reablement as the single 
exit service for people going home with care from the acute.  No person will be discharged 
from the acute with domiciliary care.  This will reduce assessment requirement in hospital 
and mean the pathway for this cohort of patients is much more streamlined.  Reinvestment of 
money currently spent on domiciliary care will be used to increase the reablement staffing 
resource.  The required additional whole time equivalent (wte) staffing to meet this need is 
99.  
  
If the same model is applied at HHCT and PSHFT (so that all people who are currently being 
discharged out to domiciliary care are discharged into reablement), the teams supporting 
HHCT and PSHFT would need to increase by 53 whole time equivalent to deal with the 
demand.  
RECOVERY DATE: 
December 2012 
 
Health checks received – RED 

Local Performance Measure 
 

Direction of travel 
NHSC NHSP 

 
 
 

 

Worse Worse 
2012/13 TARGET:  
NHSC: 26959 
NHSP: 5160 

LATEST 
PERFORMANCE: PERIOD COVERED: 

NHSC August target: 2002 NHSC 969 August 2012 
NHSP August target: 430 NHSP 247 August 2012 
REASON FOR POOR PERFORMANCE: 
For NHSC patients, the number of health check invitations issued is on trajectory at 12,020, 
the conversion to checks delivered is below target at 5959. These figures are not complete 
for month four as 14 practices (19%) have not yet reported. From the above it would appear 
that surgeries are inviting the appropriate number of patients to achieve the target but are 
unable to convert the invitations into health checks. Some practices significantly 
overachieved during 2011/12 and this may impact on delivery in 2012/13. There may be 
issues around limited capacity within some practices or eligible patients may simply not wish 
to have a health check.  
 
As highlighted in previous reports, with regard to NHSP, the Service Level Agreements for all 
practices to participate in the 2012/13 programme did not go out to practices until May 
therefore practices were not aware of the targets and performance required.  Practices have 
now commenced programmes to achieve targets. 
HOW THE TARGET WILL BE DELIVERED, AND WHAT, IF ANY REMEDIAL 
CONTRACTUAL ACTIONS HAVE BEEN TAKEN? 
 
For NHSC patients, all practices have been contacted and those who are underperforming 
have given assurance that they will deliver their targets with large events planned for the 
Autumn. However if they do not increase their levels  it has been made clear that targets will 
be adjusted and practices with a higher capacity will be allocated increased targets. 

50



PCT Cluster Board Meeting in Public 26.09.2012 
Agenda Item 3.3 Page 13 

 

 
Having reviewed July and August data, NHSP is 65.8% against the target of 2150 checks for 
August. There are nine practices underperforming in delivering health checks.  These 
practices will receive follow up visits to improve performance and improvement is expected 
by the end of Quarter 2 in line with the planned target of 3010 completed checks.  A meeting 
took place on 12th September at NHSP to implement the plan to offer checks to 
Travellers/Gypsies over the next six months, which will be delivered by 3 practices located 
close to these communities.  
 
RECOVERY DATE: 
September 2012 
 
 
Number of Never Events Reported - RED 

Local Performance Measure 
 

Direction of travel 
CUHFT PSHFT 

 
 
 

 
 
 

Worse Improved 
TARGET: 0  
 

LATEST 
PERFORMANCE: PERIOD COVERED: 

CUHFT Year to date: 3 CUHFT 1 August 2012 
PSHFT Year to date: 1 PSHFT 0 August 2012 
REASON FOR POOR PERFORMANCE: 
The Never Event at CUHFT related to a retained foreign object post-procedure. 
HOW THE TARGET WILL BE DELIVERED, AND WHAT, IF ANY REMEDIAL 
CONTRACTUAL ACTIONS HAVE BEEN TAKEN? 
As highlighted in previous reports, CUHFT have submitted an Action Plan to the CQC and 
staff have been reminded of the need to follow existing policy. 
 
Counting processes at the Trust are under review. 
 
Last month we reported a Never Event at PSHFT for July relating to a retained guide wire.  
Subsequent investigation revealed that the case was actually a Lincolnshire patient and the 
Never Event will be managed by NHS Lincolnshire. 
 
RECOVERY DATE: 
August 2012 
 
 
Clostridium Difficle infections – RED 

Integrated Performance Headline 
Measure  

Direction of travel 
NHSC NHSP 

 
 
 

 

Worse Improved 
Annual TARGET:  
C&P CCG 132 NHSC 103 NHSP 29 

LATEST 
PERFORMANCE: 

PERIOD 
COVERED: 

C&P CCG Year to date: 48 (target 48) C&P CCG 15 (target 12) July 2012 
NHSC Year to date: 43 (target 36) NHSC 13 (target 9) July 2012 
NHSP Year to date: 5 (target 12) NHSP 2 (target 3) July 2012 
CUHFT Year to date: 16 (target 16) CUHFT 6 (target 4) July 2012 
HHCT Year to date: 5 (target 3) HHCT 0 (target 1) July 2012 
PSHFT Year to date: 10 (target 10) PSHFT 6 (target 3) July 2012 
Papworth Year to date: 4 (target 3) Papworth 1 (target 1) July 2012 
REASON FOR POOR PERFORMANCE: 

51



PCT Cluster Board Meeting in Public 26.09.2012 
Agenda Item 3.3 Page 14 

 

NHSC, HHCT and Papworth have all breached their Year to date (YTD) ceiling. 
The issues at HHCT have been highlighted in previous reports.   
 
Both CUHFT and PSHFT had 6 cases each in July.  Reviews of these cases have not 
highlighted any concerns with regards to antibiotic prescribing. 
 
Of the 6 cases at CUHFT, none were linked to cross infection and all were understood to 
have had appropriate antibiotics for the right treatment.  
HOW THE TARGET WILL BE DELIVERED, AND WHAT, IF ANY REMEDIAL 
CONTRACTUAL ACTIONS HAVE BEEN TAKEN? 
Root cause analyses are undertaken on every case for all providers and actions are taken 
accordingly. 
 
The scrutiny panel in Peterborough has highlighted their concern over the number of cases 
which is also 6 for August and the Trust is pulling together a top team review including the 
Chief Executive and representation from the PCT.  
 
CUHFT has not identified any concerns. 
 
Cases reviewed by the PCT have not highlighted any antibiotic prescribing concerns but note 
that 2 patients had been recent in-patients for long periods of time and for 1 there was no 
recent history of antibiotic use. 
RECOVERY DATE:  
It is expected that NHSC, NHSP, CUHFT and PSHFT will not breach their ceiling for the full 
year. 
 
HHCT will recover the trajectory in November 2012 providing no further cases are identified.  
Papworth are unlikely to recover performance until October 2012.   
 
2.9 High Risk Patients having TIA Scanned & Treated within 24 hours – RED 

Integrated Performance Headline 
Measure  
 

Direction of travel 
NHSC NHSP 

 
 
 

 

Improved Improved 
TARGET: 60% 
 

LATEST 
PERFORMANCE: PERIOD COVERED: 

C&P CCG Year to date: 65.4% C&P CCG 35.7% July 2012 
NHSC Year to date: 64.2% NHSC 71.4% July 2012 
NHSP Year to date: 66.7% NHSP 0% July 2012 
REASON FOR POOR PERFORMANCE: 
The Cluster are reviewing the position with the provider with regard to the causes and a 
verbal update will be provided at the meeting. 
HOW THE TARGET WILL BE DELIVERED, AND WHAT, IF ANY REMEDIAL 
CONTRACTUAL ACTIONS HAVE BEEN TAKEN? 
The Cluster are considering using contractual levers. 
RECOVERY DATE: 
A verbal update will be provided at the meeting. 
 
 
 

2.11 Patients who spend 90%+ of time in a stroke unit – AMBER 

Integrated Performance Headline 
Measure  
Quality 

Direction of travel 
NHSC NHSP 

 
 
 

 
 

Improved Worse 

52



PCT Cluster Board Meeting in Public 26.09.2012 
Agenda Item 3.3 Page 15 

 

TARGET: 80% 
 

LATEST 
PERFORMANCE: PERIOD COVERED: 

C&P CCG Year to date: 82.3% C&P CCG 82.2% July 2012 
NHSC Year to date: 77.7% NHSC 78.7% July 2012 
NHSP Year to date: 86.8% NHSP 85.7% July 2012 
REASON FOR POOR PERFORMANCE: 
CUHFT achieved 75.6% for July, HHCT achieved 56.3%, PSHFT achieved 87.8%  
 
The main issue for NHSC is the failure of this target at CUHFT as the Trust is still struggling 
with capacity on the stroke unit.   
 
PSHFT exceeded the target for July. 
 
The Cluster are reviewing the position with HHCT with regard to the causes and a verbal 
update will be provided at the meeting. 
HOW THE TARGET WILL BE DELIVERED, AND WHAT, IF ANY REMEDIAL 
CONTRACTUAL ACTIONS HAVE BEEN TAKEN? 
With regard to CUHFT, the implementation of Early Supported Discharge will alleviate the 
bottleneck as patients length of stay would reduce.  A business case has been requested 
from CCS and CUHFT by the end of September.  There have also been discussions about 
moving the neuro-rehab patients off the stroke ward to relieve some of the bed pressures. 
 
The Cluster are awaiting an update from HHCT and an update will be provided at the 
meeting. 
 
RECOVERY DATE: 
CUHFT – September 2012 
 

 
Numbers of avoidable Grade three and four pressure ulcers - RED 

Integrated Performance Headline 
Measure  

Direction of travel 
NHSC NHSP 

 
 
 

 
 
 

Worse Improved 
TARGET: 0 
 

LATEST 
PERFORMANCE: PERIOD COVERED: 

C&P CCG Year to date: 61 C&P CCG 13 July 2012 
NHSC Year to date: 34 NHSC 10 July 2012 
NHSP Year to date: 27 NHSP 3 July 2012 
CUHFT Year to date: 13 CUHFT 4 July 2012 
HHCT Year to date: 5 HHCT 1 July 2012 
PSHFT Year to date: 11 PSHFT 2 July 2012 
CCS Year to date: 10 CCS 1 July 2012 
REASON FOR POOR PERFORMANCE: 
The following themes have been identified from Pressure ulcers (PU) Serious Incidents (SI) 
investigations: 

 Training of staff in doing risk assessments and prevention of pressure ulcers 
 Lack of thorough risk assessments 
 Lack of timely provision of pressure relieving equipment 
 Non-compliance of patients in the accepting of professional advice and use of 

equipment 
HOW THE TARGET WILL BE DELIVERED, AND WHAT, IF ANY REMEDIAL 
CONTRACTUAL ACTIONS HAVE BEEN TAKEN? 
This issue is discussed with providers and monitored at the monthly Clinical Quality Review 
meetings where trends are identified and action plans are discussed.   
 

53



PCT Cluster Board Meeting in Public 26.09.2012 
Agenda Item 3.3 Page 16 

 

Additionally, the following actions are undertaken: 
 Monitoring of information from the monthly point prevalence data from the NHS 

Safety Thermometer 
 Monitoring of numbers of PU SIs reported by Provider 
 SI learning event with discussion of PUs 

RECOVERY DATE: 
This will be clearer once full analysis of the Serious Incident reports has been reviewed.  As 
the data continues to be collated and awareness of reporting grows, figures are expected to 
increase and it is unlikely that an improvement in figures will be seen until October 2012. 
 
In the meantime, the Cluster is continually monitoring the numbers of PU SIs reported by 
Providers. 
 
 
3.  Contractual Compliance  
 
3.1       The table below provides a summary of the formal outstanding contractual notices with CUHFT. 
 

  Subject Matter Contract Query Notice Position if status not closed   

  A&E 4 Hour Waits Continued failure of 4 hour 
wait standard 

Fortnightly meetings take place to 
review progress. 

  

  18 Weeks RTT (Admitted) Failure of standard for 
Admitted Pathways 

Exception report issued 15-8-12 for 
failure to deliver improvements.  The 
slippage in delivery has not been 
rectified.  Fortnightly meetings take 
place to review progress. 

  

 
 
Cancer 62 day Urgent 

Failure of 62 day wait 
standard 

Issued 15-8-12. 
Remedial Action Plan was reviewed 
by Commissioners and further 
revisions are required. 

 

 
3.2 The table below shows the current outstanding contract queries with HHCT. 
 

Subject Matter Contract Query Position if status not closed 

Choose and Book – 
Appointment Slot Issues 

Letter sent 02.08.12 in 
relation to the failure to 
maintain a monthly 
Appointment Slot Issue rate 
of 0.03 or less. 

A Remedial Action Plan was 
received 28.08.12 (post the deadline 
of 16.08.12 due to staff on leave).  At 
the last combined Technical/SPRG 
Meeting the C&B RAP was reviewed 
and a request was made for the 
Trust to provide NHSC with a 
trajectory for bringing the ASI 
performance within contractual 
requirements of 0.3 or less.  This 
was received on 11th September.  
A C&B Meeting is scheduled with the 
Trust for 14th September where a 
further update will be provided. 

Provision of Cardiac 
Rehabilitation, Phase 1 and 3 

Letter sent 10.08.12 in 
relation to provision of the 
service. 

A letter dated 07.09.12 was received 
from HHCT.  Internal discussions are 
taking place following this feedback 
from the Trust. 

 
3.3  The table below shows current outstanding contract issues with CCS. 
 

Contract Issue (including Contractual Actions taken Resolution – target date / outcome 

54



PCT Cluster Board Meeting in Public 26.09.2012 
Agenda Item 3.3 Page 17 

 

detail of frequency and time 
period). 

and timelines  

1. Health Visiting Service - HV 
Developmental Checks 2.5-3yr  

Performance notice issued 
November 2011. 
Remedial action plan 
agreed with CCS to achieve 
performance improvements. 

Remedial action plan is currently 
being updated. 

2. Breach of 13 week RTT 
target for Paediatric 
Outpatients in April, May and 
June 2012. All but one of 
breaches arose due to 
cancelled clinics. 

Contract query issued 14 
August 2012.  

Remedial action plan to be agreed 
by 28 August 2012. 

6. CQR Review of Compliance  
Non-compliant with Outcome 
13: Staffing levels. Area 
District Nursing 

CCS submitted compliance 
report and letter to CQC in 
June 2012 
 

CQC are currently carrying out an 
unannounced compliance review of 
several outcomes (including 
outcome 13), on completion of which 
they will confirm as to whether they 
are in agreement with compliance 
report submitted as submitted in 
June 2012 respect of outcome 13. 
 
Stabilisation plan agreed in principle 
by NHSC. Staffing levels improved. 
Vacant posts recruited into. Business 
Case required for additional staffing. 

 
3.4  The table below provides a summary of the formal outstanding contractual notices issued under 

clause 32 of 2011-12 contract (clause 47 in 2012-13 contract) ‘Performance Management’ of the 
acute services contract with PSHFT. 

 

  Subject Matter 
Contract 
Query 
Notice 

Exception 
Notice 1 

Exceptio
n Notice 
2 

Position if status not closed 

A&E 4 Hour Waits 
Continued 
failure of 4 
hour wait 

FER 01 
issued 
15/6/11 

SER01 
issued 
26/03/12 

Remedial plan continues to be 
monitored. August achieved 95% for 
the first time this financial year. 

 
 
4 RECOMMENDATION 
 
4.1 The Board is asked to note progress against the key deliverables and standards in 2012-13. 

55



56

This page is intentionally left blank



�
�
�
�
�
��

T
ab

le
 N

o
.

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

D
at

a 
S

o
u

rc
es

W
ee

kl
y 

S
itR

ep
 fr

om
 U

N
IF

Y
2

IP
M

R
 R

et
ur

ns

A
m

bu
la

nc
e 

T
ru

st
 w

eb
si

te
C

om
m

is
si

on
er

 D
ia

gn
os

tic
 R

et
ur

ns
 (

U
N

IF
Y

2)

C
U

H
F

T
 W

ee
kl

y 
R

ep
or

t
C

om
m

is
si

on
er

 1
8 

W
ee

k 
R

et
ur

ns
 (

U
N

IF
Y

2)

H
in

ch
in

gb
ro

ok
e 

W
ee

kl
y 

R
ep

or
t

C
om

m
is

si
on

er
 G

U
M

A
M

M
 r

et
ur

ns
 (

U
N

IF
Y

2)

N
at

io
na

l W
ee

kl
y 

C
ho

os
e 

an
d 

B
oo

k 
R

ep
or

ts
E

oE
 S

H
A

 (
In

fe
ct

io
n 

C
on

tr
ol

)

18
 w

ee
k 

P
T

L 
R

ep
or

ts
 fr

om
 U

N
IF

Y
2

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f H
ea

lth
 W

eb
si

te

M
IN

A
P

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t o
f H

ea
lth

 V
S

 R
et

ur
ns

P
ub

lic
 H

ea
lth

 D
at

ab
as

es
A

S
P

 S
m

ok
in

g 
C

es
sa

tio
n 

D
at

ab
as

e 

C
an

ce
r 

W
ai

ts
 D

at
ab

as
e

T
ru

st
 M

on
ito

rin
g 

R
ep

or
ts

L
as

t 
U

p
d

at
ed

�
�
	
�

�
�


��
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
	
��
�
��
�

�
��
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
��
 

C
o

n
te

n
ts

P
ap

w
or

th
 H

os
pi

ta
l N

H
S

 F
ou

nd
at

io
n 

T
ru

st

18
 S

ep
 2

01
2 

4:
29

 P
M

C
am

br
id

ge
sh

ire
 &

 P
et

er
bo

ro
ug

h 
C

lin
ic

al
 C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
G

ro
up

 In
di

ca
to

rs
N

H
S

 C
am

br
id

ge
sh

ire
 In

di
ca

to
rs

N
H

S
 P

et
er

bo
ro

ug
h 

In
di

ca
to

rs

C
am

br
id

ge
sh

ire
 a

nd
 P

et
er

bo
ro

ug
h 

N
H

S
 F

ou
nd

at
io

n 
T

ru
st

 In
di

ca
to

rs

C
am

br
id

ge
 U

ni
ve

rs
ity

 H
os

pi
ta

ls
 N

H
S

 F
ou

nd
at

io
n 

T
ru

st
 In

di
ca

to
rs

C
am

br
id

ge
sh

ire
 C

om
m

un
ity

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
N

H
S

 T
ru

st
 In

di
ca

to
rs

H
in

ch
in

gb
ro

ok
e 

H
ea

lth
ca

re
 N

H
S

 T
ru

st
 In

di
ca

to
rs

P
et

er
bo

ro
ug

h 
an

d 
S

ta
m

fo
rd

 H
os

pi
ta

ls
 N

H
S

 F
ou

nd
at

io
n 

T
ru

st
 In

di
ca

to
rs

57



C
am

b
ri

d
g

es
h

ir
e 

an
d

 P
et

er
b

o
ro

u
g

h
 C

lin
ic

al
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
in

g
 G

ro
u

p
 Q

u
al

it
y 

an
d

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 D
as

h
b

o
ar

d
 2

01
2/

13
T

ab
le

 1

R
E

D
A

M
B

E
R

G
R

E
E

N

P
H

Q
19

R
ef

er
ra

l t
o 

tr
ea

tm
en

t -
 A

dm
itt

ed
 A

dj
us

te
d 

%
 w

ith
in

 1
8 

w
ee

ks
M

on
th

ly
<9

0%
N

/A
>=

90
%

89
.2

%
90

.0
%

89
.6

%
90

%
90

.6
%

�
90

%
89

.9
%

Ju
l-1

2

N
um

be
r 

of
 T

re
at

m
en

t F
un

ct
io

ns
 w

he
re

 s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 a

re
 n

ot
 

de
liv

er
ed

 (
A

dm
itt

ed
, N

on
-a

dm
itt

ed
 a

nd
 In

co
m

pl
et

e 
P

at
hw

ay
s)

M
on

th
ly

>2
0

B
et

w
ee

n 
1 

an
d 

20
0

10
0

22
0

23
�

0
10

Ju
l-1

2

P
at

ie
nt

s 
w

ai
tin

g 
6 

w
ee

ks
+ 

fo
r 

15
 k

ey
 d

ia
gn

os
tic

 te
st

s
M

on
th

ly
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
28

0
15

8
0

35
�

0
35

Ju
l-1

2

P
H

Q
09

A
ll 

pa
tie

nt
s 

re
ce

iv
in

g 
th

ei
r 

su
bs

eq
ue

nt
 tr

ea
tm

en
t (

R
ad

io
th

er
ap

y)
 

fo
r 

ca
nc

er
 w

ith
in

 o
ne

 m
on

th
 (

31
 d

ay
s)

 o
f a

 d
ec

is
io

n 
to

 tr
ea

t
M

on
th

ly
<9

4%
N

/A
>=

94
%

98
.2

%
94

.0
%

96
.7

%
94

%
96

.4
%

�
94

%
93

.1
%

Ju
l-1

2

P
H

Q
03

A
ll 

pa
tie

nt
s 

re
ce

iv
in

g 
th

ei
r 

fir
st

 d
ef

in
iti

ve
 tr

ea
tm

en
t f

or
 c

an
ce

r 
w

ith
in

 tw
o 

m
on

th
s 

(6
2 

da
ys

) 
of

 G
P

 o
r 

de
nt

is
t u

rg
en

t r
ef

er
ra

l
M

on
th

ly
<8

5%
N

/A
>=

85
%

86
.5

%
85

.0
%

85
.9

%
85

%
81

.0
%

�
85

%
83

.4
%

Ju
l-1

2

P
ro

po
rt

io
n 

of
 G

P
 r

ef
er

ra
ls

 to
 fi

rs
t O

P
 a

pp
oi

nt
m

en
ts

 b
oo

ke
d 

us
in

g 
C

ho
os

e 
an

d 
B

oo
k

M
on

th
ly

<9
4%

>9
4%

 a
nd

 
<9

5%
>=

 9
5%

45
.3

%
90

.0
%

45
.5

%
90

%
42

.0
%

�
90

%
45

.3
%

A
ug

-1
2

D
ea

th
s 

at
 H

om
e

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
<9

4%
>9

4%
 a

nd
 

<9
5%

>=
 9

5%
45

.7
%

46
.3

%
#V

A
LU

E
!

45
%

0.
0%

45
%

0.
0%

A
pr

 -
 J

un
e 

(Q
1)

D
el

ay
ed

 tr
an

sf
er

s 
of

 c
ar

e 
fr

om
 h

os
pi

ta
ls

 (
N

o.
 o

f P
at

ie
nt

s 
w

ho
se

 
tr

an
sf

er
 o

f c
ar

e 
w

as
 d

el
ay

ed
 -

 2
01

0/
11

 T
ra

je
ct

or
y)

M
on

th
ly

>5
%

 o
f t

he
 

Ta
rg

et

B
et

w
ee

n 
M

on
tly

 P
la

n 
an

d 
5%

 o
f t

he
 

<=
M

on
th

ly
 

P
la

n
76

56
.3

71
.0

59
.8

87
.5

�
58

.0
74

.4
Ju

l-1
2

D
el

ay
ed

 tr
an

sf
er

s 
of

 c
ar

e 
fr

om
 h

os
pi

ta
ls

 (
N

o.
 o

f P
at

ie
nt

s 
pe

r 
10

0,
00

0 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

ov
er

 1
8 

ye
ar

s 
ol

d)
 

M
on

th
ly

>5
%

 o
f t

he
 

Ta
rg

et

B
et

w
ee

n 
M

on
tly

 P
la

n 
an

d 
5%

 o
f t

he
 

<=
M

on
th

ly
 

P
la

n
12

.2
9.

1
11

.4
9.

6
14

.1
�

9.
3

12
.0

Ju
l-1

2

S
m

ok
in

g
N

o.
 o

f S
m

ok
in

g 
Q

ui
tte

rs
 

M
on

th
ly

<5
%

 o
f t

he
 

M
on

th
y 

P
la

n

B
et

w
ee

n 
M

on
th

ly
 P

la
n 

an
d 

5%
 o

f t
he

 

>=
 M

on
th

ly
 

P
la

n
50

29
53

48
28

1
42

1
30

8
�

17
58

12
36

Ju
l-1

2

P
re

va
le

nc
e 

of
 b

re
as

t f
ee

di
ng

 a
t 6

 -
 8

 w
ee

ks
 fr

om
 b

irt
h

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
<5

%
 o

f t
he

 
Ta

rg
et

B
et

w
ee

n 
90

%
 

an
d 

5%
 o

f t
he

 
Ta

rg
et

>=
53

.3
%

50
.0

0%
53

.3
%

#V
A

LU
E

!
53

.3
%

48
.0

5%
53

.3
%

48
.0

5%
A

pr
 -

 J
un

e 
(Q

1)

C
. D

iff
 In

fe
ct

io
ns

M
on

th
ly

>5
%

 o
f t

he
 

Ta
rg

et

B
et

w
ee

n 
Ta

rg
et

 a
nd

 
5%

 o
f t

he
 

<=
Ta

rg
et

14
1

13
2

9
12

15
�

48
48

Ju
l-1

2

D
el

ay
ed

 tr
an

sf
er

s 
of

 c
ar

e 
fr

om
 h

os
pi

ta
ls

 (
N

o.
 o

f P
at

ie
nt

s 
w

ho
se

 
tr

an
sf

er
 o

f c
ar

e 
w

as
 d

el
ay

ed
 -

 2
01

0/
11

 T
ra

je
ct

or
y)

M
on

th
ly

>5
%

 o
f t

he
 

Ta
rg

et

B
et

w
ee

n 
M

on
tly

 P
la

n 
an

d 
5%

 o
f t

he
 

<=
M

on
th

ly
 

P
la

n
76

56
.3

71
59

.8
87

.5
�

58
.0

74
.4

Ju
l-1

2

D
el

ay
ed

 tr
an

sf
er

s 
of

 c
ar

e 
fr

om
 h

os
pi

ta
ls

 (
N

o.
 o

f P
at

ie
nt

s 
pe

r 
10

0,
00

0 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

ov
er

 1
8 

ye
ar

s 
ol

d)
 

M
on

th
ly

>5
%

 o
f t

he
 

Ta
rg

et

B
et

w
ee

n 
M

on
tly

 P
la

n 
an

d 
5%

 o
f t

he
 

<=
M

on
th

ly
 

P
la

n
12

9.
1

11
9.

6
14

.1
�

9.
3

12
.0

Ju
l-1

2

D
ea

th
s 

at
 H

om
e

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
<5

%
 o

f t
he

 
Ta

rg
et

B
et

w
ee

n 
46

.3
%

 a
nd

 
5%

 o
f t

he
 

>=
46

.3
%

0
46

%
#V

A
LU

E
!

45
%

0.
0%

45
%

0.
0%

A
pr

 -
 J

un
e 

(Q
1)

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 N

on
-a

dm
itt

ed
 p

at
ie

nt
s 

ha
vi

ng
 T

IA
 tr

ea
te

d 
w

ith
in

 
24

 h
ou

rs
 

M
on

th
ly

<5
%

 o
f t

he
 

Ta
rg

et

B
et

w
ee

n 
90

%
 

an
d 

5%
 o

f t
he

 
Ta

rg
et

>=
60

%
40

.0
%

60
.0

%
72

.2
%

60
.0

%
35

.7
%

�
60

.0
%

65
.4

%
Ju

l-1
2

N
um

be
rs

 o
f a

vo
id

ab
le

 G
ra

de
 th

re
e 

an
d 

fo
ur

 p
re

ss
ur

e 
ul

ce
rs

M
on

th
ly

>5
%

 o
f t

he
 

Ta
rg

et

B
et

w
ee

n 
Ta

rg
et

 a
nd

 
5%

 o
f t

he
 

<=
Ta

rg
et

0
0

21
0

13
�

0
61

Ju
l-1

2

D
o

m
ai

n
: 

P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

lt
h

 In
d

ic
at

o
rs

C
u

rr
en

t 
P

er
io

d
T

R
E

N
D

Y
ea

r 
to

 
d

at
e 

ac
tu

al

T
H

R
E

S
H

O
L

D
S

C
u

rr
en

t 
P

er
io

d
 

R
ep

o
rt

ed

P
re

vi
o

u
s 

P
er

io
d

C
u

rr
en

t 
P

er
io

d
 

P
la

n

Y
ea

r 
to

 d
at

e 
th

re
sh

o
ld

 / 
ta

rg
et

D
o

m
ai

n
: 

K
ey

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 In
d

ic
at

o
rs

R
E

F
M

E
T

R
IC

M
E

A
S

U
R

E
F

R
E

Q
U

E
N

C
Y

R
ef

er
ra

l t
o 

tr
ea

tm
en

t

C
an

ce
r 

Tr
ea

tm
en

t 
S

er
vi

ce
s

P
at

ie
nt

s'
 

C
ho

ic
e

Q
u

al
it

y 
&

 P
at

ie
n

t 
S

af
et

y 
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 In

d
ic

at
o

rs

T
ar

g
et

 
20

12
/1

3
O

u
tt

u
rn

 
20

11
/1

2

H
ea

lth
 C

ar
e 

A
cq

ui
re

d 
In

fe
ct

io
ns

A
dd

iti
on

al
 

Q
ua

lit
y 

M
et

ric
s

B
re

as
t 

F
ee

di
ng

D
o

m
ai

n
: 

58



N
H

S
 C

am
b

ri
d

g
es

h
ir

e 
Q

u
al

it
y 

an
d

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 D
as

h
b

o
ar

d
 2

01
2/

13
T

ab
le

 2

R
E

D
A

M
B

E
R

G
R

E
E

N

N
um

be
r 

of
 T

re
at

m
en

t F
un

ct
io

ns
 w

he
re

 s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 a

re
 n

ot
 

de
liv

er
ed

 (
A

dm
itt

ed
, N

on
-a

dm
itt

ed
 a

nd
 In

co
m

pl
et

e 
P

at
hw

ay
s)

M
on

th
ly

>2
0

B
et

w
ee

n 
1 

an
d 

20
0

12
0

10
0

11
�

0
10

Ju
l-1

2

P
at

ie
nt

s 
w

ai
tin

g 
6 

w
ee

ks
+ 

fo
r 

15
 k

ey
 d

ia
gn

os
tic

 te
st

s
M

on
th

ly
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
16

0
19

0
31

�
0

31
Ju

l-1
2

P
H

Q
03

A
ll 

pa
tie

nt
s 

re
ce

iv
in

g 
th

ei
r 

fir
st

 d
ef

in
iti

ve
 tr

ea
tm

en
t f

or
 c

an
ce

r 
w

ith
in

 tw
o 

m
on

th
s 

(6
2 

da
ys

) 
of

 G
P

 o
r 

de
nt

is
t u

rg
en

t r
ef

er
ra

l
M

on
th

ly
<8

5%
N

/A
>=

85
%

84
.6

%
85

.0
%

85
.4

%
85

%
79

.2
%

�
85

%
82

.2
%

Ju
l-1

2

P
ro

po
rt

io
n 

of
 G

P
 r

ef
er

ra
ls

 to
 fi

rs
t O

P
 a

pp
oi

nt
m

en
ts

 b
oo

ke
d 

us
in

g 
C

ho
os

e 
an

d 
B

oo
k

M
on

th
ly

<5
%

 o
f t

he
 

T
ar

ge
t

B
et

w
ee

n 
T

ar
ge

t a
nd

 
5%

 o
f t

he
 

>=
T

ar
ge

t
69

.2
%

90
.0

%
74

.0
%

90
%

70
.0

%
�

90
%

74
.6

%
A

ug
-1

2

D
ea

th
s 

at
 H

om
e

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
<5

%
 o

f t
he

 
T

ar
ge

t

B
et

w
ee

n 
47

.6
%

 a
nd

 
5%

 o
f t

he
 

>=
47

.6
%

47
.6

%
50

.0
%

#V
A

LU
E

!
49

%
0.

0%
49

%
0.

0%
A

pr
 -

 J
un

e 
(Q

1)

H
ea

lth
 c

he
ck

s 
re

ce
iv

ed
23

55
5

26
95

9
15

03
20

02
96

9
�

11
23

0
69

28
A

ug
-1

2

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 w

om
en

 w
ho

 h
av

e 
se

en
 m

id
w

ife
 o

r 
m

at
er

ni
ty

 
he

al
th

ca
re

 p
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l b
y 

12
 w

ee
ks

 o
f p

re
gn

an
cy

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
<5

%
 o

f t
he

 
T

ar
ge

t

B
et

w
ee

n 
90

%
 

an
d 

5%
 o

f t
he

 
T

ar
ge

t
>=

93
.2

%
92

.6
%

93
.2

%
#V

A
LU

E
!

93
.2

%
86

.6
%

93
.2

%
86

.6
%

A
pr

 -
 J

un
e 

(Q
1)

D
el

ay
ed

 tr
an

sf
er

s 
of

 c
ar

e 
fr

om
 h

os
pi

ta
ls

 (
N

o.
 o

f P
at

ie
nt

s 
w

ho
se

 
tr

an
sf

er
 o

f c
ar

e 
w

as
 d

el
ay

ed
 -

 2
01

0/
11

 T
ra

je
ct

or
y)

M
on

th
ly

>5
%

 o
f t

he
 

T
ar

ge
t

B
et

w
ee

n 
M

on
tly

 P
la

n 
an

d 
5%

 o
f t

he
 

<=
M

on
th

ly
 

P
la

n
69

48
.5

81
.5

53
.0

93
.8

�
50

.8
72

.9
A

ug
-1

2

D
el

ay
ed

 tr
an

sf
er

s 
of

 c
ar

e 
fr

om
 h

os
pi

ta
ls

 (
N

o.
 o

f P
at

ie
nt

s 
pe

r 
10

0,
00

0 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

ov
er

 1
8 

ye
ar

s 
ol

d)
 

M
on

th
ly

>5
%

 o
f t

he
 

T
ar

ge
t

<=
M

on
th

ly
 

P
la

n
14

.0
9.

9
16

.7
10

.9
19

.2
�

10
.4

14
.9

A
ug

-1
2

S
m

ok
in

g
N

o.
 o

f S
m

ok
in

g 
Q

ui
tte

rs
 

M
on

th
ly

<5
%

 o
f t

he
 

M
on

th
y 

P
la

n

B
et

w
ee

n 
M

on
th

ly
 P

la
n 

an
d 

5%
 o

f t
he

 

>=
 M

on
th

ly
 

P
la

n
39

42
39

14
21

1
32

6
25

0
�

13
05

89
8

Ju
l-1

2

P
re

va
le

nc
e 

of
 b

re
as

t f
ee

di
ng

 a
t 6

 -
 8

 w
ee

ks
 fr

om
 b

irt
h

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
<5

%
 o

f t
he

 
T

ar
ge

t

B
et

w
ee

n 
90

%
 

an
d 

5%
 o

f t
he

 
T

ar
ge

t
>=

58
.6

%
57

.0
5%

58
.6

%
#V

A
LU

E
!

58
.6

%
53

.6
0%

58
.6

%
53

.6
0%

A
pr

 -
 J

un
e 

(Q
1)

C
. D

iff
 In

fe
ct

io
ns

M
on

th
ly

>5
%

 o
f t

he
 

T
ar

ge
t

B
et

w
ee

n 
T

ar
ge

t a
nd

 
5%

 o
f t

he
 

<=
T

ar
ge

t
10

1
10

3
8

9
13

�
36

43
Ju

l-1
2

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 p

at
ie

nt
s 

w
ho

 s
pe

nd
 9

0%
+ 

of
 ti

m
e 

in
 a

 s
tr

ok
e 

un
it

M
on

th
ly

<5
%

 o
f t

he
 

T
ar

ge
t

B
et

w
ee

n 
90

%
 

an
d 

5%
 o

f t
he

 
T

ar
ge

t
>=

80
%

77
.6

%
80

.0
%

71
.7

%
80

.0
%

78
.7

%
�

80
.0

%
77

.7
%

Ju
l-1

2

N
um

be
rs

 o
f a

vo
id

ab
le

 G
ra

de
 th

re
e 

an
d 

fo
ur

 p
re

ss
ur

e 
ul

ce
rs

M
on

th
ly

>5
%

 o
f t

he
 

T
ar

ge
t

B
et

w
ee

n 
T

ar
ge

t a
nd

 
5%

 o
f t

he
 

<=
T

ar
ge

t
0

0
10

0
10

�
0

34
Ju

l-1
2

C
u

rr
en

t 
P

er
io

d
 

R
ep

o
rt

ed

P
re

vi
o

u
s 

P
er

io
d

Y
ea

r 
to

 d
at

e 
th

re
sh

o
ld

 / 
ta

rg
et

C
u

rr
en

t 
P

er
io

d
 

P
la

n

Y
ea

r 
to

 
d

at
e 

ac
tu

al
T

R
E

N
D

D
el

ay
ed

 
T

ra
ns

fe
r 

of
 

C
ar

e

T
H

R
E

S
H

O
L

D
S

C
u

rr
en

t 
P

er
io

d
O

u
tt

u
rn

 
20

11
/1

2
T

ar
g

et
 

20
12

/1
3

F
R

E
Q

U
E

N
C

Y

R
ef

er
ra

l t
o 

tr
ea

tm
en

t

C
an

ce
r 

T
re

at
m

en
t 

S
er

vi
ce

s

P
at

ie
nt

s'
 

C
ho

ic
e

H
ea

lth
 C

ar
e 

A
cq

ui
re

d 
In

fe
ct

io
ns

A
dd

iti
on

al
 

Q
ua

lit
y 

M
et

ric
s

B
re

as
t 

F
ee

di
ng

D
o

m
ai

n
: 

S
cr

ee
ni

ng

P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

lt
h

 In
d

ic
at

o
rs

D
o

m
ai

n
: 

Q
u

al
it

y 
&

 P
at

ie
n

t 
S

af
et

y 
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 In

d
ic

at
o

rs

D
o

m
ai

n
: 

K
ey

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 In
d

ic
at

o
rs

R
E

F
M

E
T

R
IC

M
E

A
S

U
R

E

59



N
H

S
 P

et
er

b
o

ro
u

g
h

 Q
u

al
it

y 
an

d
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 D

as
h

b
o

ar
d

 2
01

2/
13

T
ab

le
 3

R
E

D
A

M
B

E
R

G
R

E
E

N

P
H

Q
19

R
ef

er
ra

l t
o 

tr
ea

tm
en

t -
 A

dm
itt

ed
 A

dj
us

te
d 

%
 w

ith
in

 1
8 

w
ee

ks
M

on
th

ly
<9

0%
N

/A
>=

90
%

91
.3

%
90

.0
%

89
.7

%
90

%
90

.8
%

�
90

%
89

.7
%

Ju
l-1

2

N
um

be
r 

of
 T

re
at

m
en

t F
un

ct
io

ns
 w

he
re

 s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 a

re
 n

ot
 d

el
iv

er
ed

 
(A

dm
itt

ed
, N

on
-a

dm
itt

ed
 a

nd
 In

co
m

pl
et

e 
P

at
hw

ay
s)

M
on

th
ly

>2
0

B
et

w
ee

n 
1 

an
d 

20
0

14
0

12
0

12
�

0
13

Ju
l-1

2

P
at

ie
nt

s 
w

ai
tin

g 
6 

w
ee

ks
+ 

fo
r 

15
 k

ey
 d

ia
gn

os
tic

 te
st

s
M

on
th

ly
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
12

0
13

9
0

4
�

0
4

Ju
l-1

2

P
H

Q
09

A
ll 

pa
tie

nt
s 

re
ce

iv
in

g 
th

ei
r 

su
bs

eq
ue

nt
 tr

ea
tm

en
t (

R
ad

io
th

er
ap

y)
 fo

r 
ca

nc
er

 w
ith

in
 o

ne
 m

on
th

 (
31

 d
ay

s)
 o

f a
 d

ec
is

io
n 

to
 tr

ea
t

M
on

th
ly

<9
4%

N
/A

>=
94

%
99

.2
%

94
.0

%
10

0.
0%

94
%

96
.3

%
�

94
%

86
.8

%
Ju

l-1
2

P
ro

po
rt

io
n 

of
 G

P
 r

ef
er

ra
ls

 to
 fi

rs
t O

P
 a

pp
oi

nt
m

en
ts

 b
oo

ke
d 

us
in

g 
C

ho
os

e 
an

d 
B

oo
k

M
on

th
ly

<5
%

 o
f t

he
 

T
ar

ge
t

B
et

w
ee

n 
T

ar
ge

t a
nd

 
5%

 o
f t

he
 

>=
T

ar
ge

t
21

.5
%

90
.0

%
17

.0
%

90
%

14
.0

%
�

90
%

16
.0

%
A

ug
-1

2

D
ea

th
s 

at
 H

om
e

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
<5

%
 o

f t
he

 
T

ar
ge

t

B
et

w
ee

n 
43

.7
%

 a
nd

 
5%

 o
f t

he
 

>=
43

.7
%

43
.7

%
42

.7
%

#V
A

LU
E

!
42

%
0.

0%
42

%
0.

0%
A

pr
 -

 
Ju

ne
 

(Q
1)

H
ea

lth
 c

he
ck

s 
re

ce
iv

ed
M

on
th

ly
<5

%
 o

f t
he

 
T

ar
ge

t

B
et

w
ee

n 
90

%
 a

nd
 

5%
 o

f t
he

 
>=

51
60

43
13

51
60

26
8

43
0

24
9.

0
�

21
50

14
17

A
ug

-1
2

10
0%

 o
f D

ia
be

tic
s 

to
 b

e 
of

fe
re

d 
R

et
in

op
at

hy
 s

cr
ee

ni
ng

 
Q

ua
rt

er
ly

<5
%

 o
f t

he
 

T
ar

ge
t

B
et

w
ee

n 
90

%
 a

nd
 

5%
 o

f t
he

 
>=

10
0%

99
.8

%
10

0.
0%

#V
A

LU
E

!
10

0.
0%

99
.8

%
10

0.
0%

99
.8

%
A

pr
 -

 
Ju

ne
 

(Q
1)

S
m

ok
in

g
N

o.
 o

f S
m

ok
in

g 
Q

ui
tte

rs
 

M
on

th
ly

<5
%

 o
f t

he
 

M
on

th
y 

P
la

n

B
et

w
ee

n 
M

on
th

ly
 

P
la

n 
an

d 

>=
 M

on
th

ly
 

P
la

n
10

87
14

34
70

95
58

�
45

3
33

8
Ju

l-1
2

P
re

va
le

nc
e 

of
 b

re
as

t f
ee

di
ng

 a
t 6

 -
 8

 w
ee

ks
 fr

om
 b

irt
h

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
<5

%
 o

f t
he

 
T

ar
ge

t

B
et

w
ee

n 
90

%
 a

nd
 

5%
 o

f t
he

 
>=

48
%

42
.9

6%
48

.0
%

#V
A

LU
E

!
48

.0
%

42
.5

0%
48

.0
%

42
.5

0%
A

pr
 -

 
Ju

ne
 

(Q
1)

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 p

at
ie

nt
s 

(n
ot

 a
dm

itt
ed

) 
ha

vi
ng

 T
IA

 tr
ea

te
d 

w
ith

in
 2

4 
ho

ur
s 

M
on

th
ly

<5
%

 o
f t

he
 

T
ar

ge
t

B
et

w
ee

n 
90

%
 a

nd
 

5%
 o

f t
he

 
>=

60
%

51
.0

%
60

.0
%

10
0.

0%
60

.0
%

0.
0%

�
60

.0
%

66
.7

%
Ju

l-1
2

N
um

be
rs

 o
f a

vo
id

ab
le

 G
ra

de
 th

re
e 

an
d 

fo
ur

 p
re

ss
ur

e 
ul

ce
rs

M
on

th
ly

>5
%

 o
f t

he
 

T
ar

ge
t

B
et

w
ee

n 
T

ar
ge

t a
nd

 
5%

 o
f t

he
 

<=
T

ar
ge

t
0

0
11

0
3

�
0

27
Ju

l-1
2

A
dd

iti
on

al
 

Q
ua

lit
y 

M
et

ric
s

S
cr

ee
ni

ng

B
re

as
t 

F
ee

di
ng

D
o

m
ai

n:
 

D
o

m
ai

n:
 

P
ub

lic
 H

ea
lt

h 
In

d
ic

at
o

rs

T
R

E
N

D
Y

ea
r 

to
 d

at
e 

th
re

sh
o

ld
 / 

ta
rg

et

Y
ea

r 
to

 
d

at
e 

ac
tu

al

R
ef

er
ra

l t
o 

tr
ea

tm
en

t

C
an

ce
r 

T
re

at
m

en
t 

S
er

vi
ce

s

P
at

ie
nt

s'
 

C
ho

ic
e

C
ur

re
nt

 
P

er
io

d
 

R
ep

o
rt

e

Q
ua

lit
y 

&
 P

at
ie

nt
 S

af
et

y 
G

en
er

ic
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 In

d
ic

at
o

rs

F
R

E
Q

U
E

N
C

Y
P

re
vi

o
us

 
P

er
io

d

O
ut

tu
rn

 
20

11
/1

2
T

ar
g

et
 

20
12

/1
3

T
H

R
E

S
H

O
L

D
S

C
ur

re
nt

 
P

er
io

d
 

P
la

n

C
ur

re
nt

 
P

er
io

d

D
o

m
ai

n:
 

K
ey

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 In
d

ic
at

o
rs

R
E

F
M

E
T

R
IC

M
E

A
S

U
R

E

60



C
am

b
ri

d
g

e 
U

n
iv

er
si

ty
 H

o
sp

it
al

s 
N

H
S

 F
o

u
n

d
at

io
n

 T
ru

st
 Q

u
al

it
y 

an
d

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 D
as

h
b

o
ar

d
 2

01
2/

13
T

ab
le

 4

R
E

D
A

M
B

E
R

G
R

E
E

N

P
H

Q
19

R
ef

er
ra

l t
o 

tr
ea

tm
en

t -
 A

dm
itt

ed
 A

dj
us

te
d 

%
 w

ith
in

 1
8 

w
ee

ks
M

on
th

ly
<9

0%
N

/A
>=

90
%

88
.1

%
90

.0
%

85
.5

%
90

%
85

.3
%

�
90

%
86

.1
%

Ju
l-1

2

P
H

Q
06

A
ll 

pa
tie

nt
s 

re
ce

iv
in

g 
th

ei
r 

fir
st

 d
ef

in
iti

ve
 tr

ea
tm

en
t f

or
 c

an
ce

r 
w

ith
in

 
on

e 
m

on
th

 (
31

 d
ay

s)
 o

f a
 d

ec
is

io
n 

to
 tr

ea
t

M
on

th
ly

<9
6%

N
/A

>=
96

%
96

.3
%

96
%

96
.7

%
96

%
95

.4
%

�
96

%
96

.2
%

Ju
n-

12

P
H

Q
08

A
ll 

pa
tie

nt
s 

re
ce

iv
in

g 
th

ei
r 

su
bs

eq
ue

nt
 S

ur
gi

ca
l t

re
at

m
en

t f
or

 
ca

nc
er

 w
ith

in
 o

ne
 m

on
th

 (
31

 d
ay

s)
 o

f a
 d

ec
is

io
n 

to
 tr

ea
t

M
on

th
ly

<9
4%

N
/A

>=
94

%
95

.5
%

94
%

97
.4

%
94

%
93

.7
%

�
94

%
96

.6
%

Ju
n-

12

P
H

Q
03

A
ll 

pa
tie

nt
s 

re
ce

iv
in

g 
th

ei
r 

fir
st

 d
ef

in
iti

ve
 tr

ea
tm

en
t f

or
 c

an
ce

r 
w

ith
in

 
tw

o 
m

on
th

s 
(6

2 
da

ys
) 

of
 G

P
 o

r 
de

nt
is

t u
rg

en
t r

ef
er

ra
l

M
on

th
ly

<8
5%

N
/A

>=
85

%
81

.9
%

85
%

78
.0

%
85

%
74

.5
%

�
85

%
77

.1
%

Ju
n-

12

E
m

er
ge

nc
y 

S
er

vi
ce

s
T

he
 p

ro
po

rt
io

n 
of

 p
at

ie
nt

s 
sp

en
di

ng
 fo

ur
 h

ou
rs

 o
r 

le
ss

 in
 a

ll 
ty

pe
s 

of
 A

&
E

 d
ep

ar
tm

en
t

M
on

th
ly

<9
4%

>9
4%

 a
nd

 
<9

5%
>=

 9
5%

95
.6

%
95

%
92

.5
%

95
%

97
.2

5%
�

95
%

93
.3

6%
A

ug
-1

2

N
um

be
r 

of
 N

ev
er

 E
ve

nt
s 

R
ep

or
te

d
M

on
th

ly
>1

 
N

/A
0

5
0

0
0

1
�

0
3

A
ug

-1
2

C
. D

iff
 In

fe
ct

io
ns

: N
o.

 o
f P

at
ie

nt
s 

ag
ed

 2
 o

r 
ov

er
 

M
on

th
ly

>5
%

 o
f t

he
 

T
ar

ge
t

B
et

w
ee

n 
T

ar
ge

t a
nd

 
5%

 o
f t

he
 

<=
T

ar
ge

t
48

45
3

4
6

�
16

16
Ju

l-1
2

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 p

at
ie

nt
s 

w
ho

 s
pe

nd
 9

0%
+ 

of
 ti

m
e 

in
 a

 s
tr

ok
e 

un
it

M
on

th
ly

<5
%

 o
f t

he
 

T
ar

ge
t

B
et

w
ee

n 
90

%
 a

nd
 5

%
 

of
 th

e 
T

ar
ge

t
>=

80
%

77
.2

%
80

.0
%

66
.7

%
80

.0
%

75
.6

%
�

80
.0

%
76

.4
%

Ju
l-1

2

N
um

be
rs

 o
f a

vo
id

ab
le

 G
ra

de
 th

re
e 

an
d 

fo
ur

 p
re

ss
ur

e 
ul

ce
rs

M
on

th
ly

>5
%

 o
f t

he
 

T
ar

ge
t

B
et

w
ee

n 
T

ar
ge

t a
nd

 
5%

 o
f t

he
 

<=
T

ar
ge

t
0

0
4

0
4

�
0

13
Ju

l-1
2

Q
I 8

a
In

fe
ct

io
n 

co
nt

ro
l 

an
d 

pr
ev

en
tio

n
A

ss
ur

an
ce

 o
f r

ob
us

t s
ys

te
m

s 
an

d 
m

ea
su

re
s 

fo
r 

In
fe

ct
io

n 
C

on
tr

ol
Q

ua
rt

er
ly

A
ny

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

t 
of

 S
ec

tio
n 

11
 

au
di

t d
oe

s 
no

t 
m

ee
t  

ad
eq

ua
te

 

A
ct

io
n 

pl
an

  i
n 

pl
ac

e 
to

 r
ea

ch
  

ad
eq

ua
te

 fo
r 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 

M
in

im
um

 o
f 

ad
eq

ua
te

 fo
r 

al
l 

37
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

, 
4 

 r
el

at
ed

 a
ud

its
 

G
re

en
A

m
be

r
�

Ju
n-

12

Q
I 1

2a
S

I 
M

an
ag

em
en

t
M

an
ag

em
en

t o
f S

is
 in

 li
ne

 w
ith

 th
e 

P
C

T
 S

I P
ro

ce
du

re
M

on
th

ly
1+

 o
pe

n 
an

d 
un

de
r 

in
ve

st
ig

at
io

n.
 

A
tio

n 
pl

an
 n

ot
 

A
ll 

in
ve

st
ig

at
io

ns
 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 w

ith
 

ac
tio

n 
pl

an
 

A
ll 

ac
tio

n 
pl

an
s 

fu
lly

 
im

pl
em

en
te

d 
or

 
no

 N
ev

er
 E

ve
nt

s 

A
m

be
r

R
ed

�
Ju

n-
12

Q
I 1

2b
S

I 
M

an
ag

em
en

t
N

ev
er

 E
ve

nt
s 

M
an

ag
em

en
t

M
on

th
ly

N
o 

ev
id

en
ce

 o
f 

th
em

at
ic

 
le

ar
ni

ng
 

N
o 

an
al

ys
is

 
ac

ro
ss

  r
is

k 
ar

ea
s.

 N
o 

ac
tio

n 
pl

an
 fo

r 
ar

ea
s 

of
 

A
na

ly
si

s 
of

 a
ll 

ris
k 

in
te

lli
ge

nc
e,

 
ac

tio
n 

pl
an

 fo
r 

ar
ea

s 
of

 c
on

ce
rn

R
ed

R
ed

�
Ju

n-
12

D
o

m
ai

n
: 

P
ro

vi
d

in
g

 c
ar

e 
in

 a
 s

af
e 

en
vi

ro
n

m
en

t

A
dd

iti
on

al
 

Q
ua

lit
y 

M
ea

su
re

s

D
o

m
ai

n
: 

H
ea

lth
 C

ar
e 

A
cq

ui
re

d 
In

fe
ct

io
ns

S
er

io
us

 In
ci

de
nt

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t &
 

le
ar

ni
ng

Q
u

al
it

y 
&

 P
at

ie
n

t 
S

af
et

y 
G

en
er

ic
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 In

d
ic

at
o

rs

C
u

rr
en

t 
P

er
io

d
 

P
la

n

T
ar

g
et

 
20

12
/1

3
O

u
tt

u
rn

 
20

11
/1

2
P

re
vi

o
u

s 
P

er
io

d

C
u

rr
en

t 
P

er
io

d
 

R
ep

o
rt

ed

C
an

ce
r 

T
re

at
m

en
t 

S
er

vi
ce

s

R
ef

er
ra

l t
o 

tr
ea

tm
en

t

F
R

E
Q

U
E

N
C

Y

T
H

R
E

S
H

O
L

D
S

Y
ea

r 
to

 
d

at
e 

th
re

sh
o

ld
 

/ t
ar

g
et

Y
ea

r 
to

 
d

at
e 

ac
tu

al
T

R
E

N
D

D
o

m
ai

n
: 

K
ey

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 In
d

ic
at

o
rs

R
E

F
M

E
T

R
IC

M
E

A
S

U
R

E
C

u
rr

en
t 

P
er

io
d

61



H
in

ch
in

g
b

ro
o

ke
 H

ea
lt

h
ca

re
 N

H
S

 T
ru

st
 Q

u
al

it
y 

an
d

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 D
as

h
b

o
ar

d
 2

01
2/

13
T

ab
le

 5

R
E

D
A

M
B

E
R

G
R

E
E

N

M
ax

im
um

 tw
o 

w
ee

k 
w

ai
t f

ro
m

 a
 r

ef
er

ra
l f

or
 e

va
lu

at
io

n 
of

 “
br

ea
st

 
sy

m
pt

om
s”

 b
y 

a 
pr

im
ar

y 
ca

re
 p

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l t

o 
da

te
 fi

rs
t s

ee
n

M
on

th
ly

<9
3%

N
/A

>=
93

%
94

.7
%

93
%

94
.4

%
93

%
90

.2
%

�
93

%
94

.0
%

Ju
l-1

2

P
H

Q
03

A
ll 

pa
tie

nt
s 

re
ce

iv
in

g 
th

ei
r 

fir
st

 d
ef

in
iti

ve
 tr

ea
tm

en
t f

or
 c

an
ce

r 
w

ith
in

 
tw

o 
m

on
th

s 
(6

2 
da

ys
) 

of
 G

P
 o

r 
de

nt
is

t u
rg

en
t r

ef
er

ra
l

M
on

th
ly

<8
5%

N
/A

>=
85

%
81

.6
%

85
%

85
.1

%
85

%
82

.3
%

�
85

%
87

.0
%

Ju
l-1

2

C
. D

iff
 In

fe
ct

io
ns

: N
o.

 o
f P

at
ie

nt
s 

ag
ed

 2
 o

r 
ov

er
 

M
on

th
ly

>5
%

 o
f t

he
 

T
ar

ge
t

B
et

w
ee

n 
T

ar
ge

t a
nd

 
5%

 o
f t

he
 

<=
T

ar
ge

t
7

7
1

1
0

�
3

5
Ju

l-1
2

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 p

at
ie

nt
s 

w
ho

 s
pe

nd
 9

0%
+ 

of
 ti

m
e 

in
 a

 s
tr

ok
e 

un
it

M
on

th
ly

<5
%

 o
f t

he
 

T
ar

ge
t

B
et

w
ee

n 
90

%
 a

nd
 

5%
 o

f t
he

 
>=

80
%

80
.8

%
80

.0
%

75
.0

%
80

.0
%

56
.3

%
�

80
.0

%
77

.2
%

Ju
l-1

2

N
um

be
rs

 o
f a

vo
id

ab
le

 G
ra

de
 th

re
e 

an
d 

fo
ur

 p
re

ss
ur

e 
ul

ce
rs

M
on

th
ly

>5
%

 o
f t

he
 

T
ar

ge
t

B
et

w
ee

n 
T

ar
ge

t a
nd

 
5%

 o
f t

he
 

<=
T

ar
ge

t
0

0
1

0
1

�
0

5
Ju

l-1
2

Q
I 1

2b
S

I 
M

an
ag

em
en

t
N

ev
er

 E
ve

nt
s 

M
an

ag
em

en
t

M
on

th
ly

N
o 

ev
id

en
ce

 o
f 

th
em

at
ic

 
le

ar
ni

ng
 

N
o 

an
al

ys
is

 
ac

ro
ss

  r
is

k 
ar

ea
s.

 N
o 

ac
tio

n 
pl

an
 fo

r 
ar

ea
s 

of
 

co
nc

er
n.

A
na

ly
si

s 
of

 a
ll 

ris
k 

in
te

lli
ge

nc
e,

 
ac

tio
n 

pl
an

 fo
r 

ar
ea

s 
of

 
co

nc
er

n

A
m

be
r

A
m

be
r

�
Ju

l-1
2

Q
I 1

4a
G

ui
da

nc
e 

an
d 

al
er

ts

R
ev

ie
w

 a
ga

in
st

 a
nd

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
to

w
ar

ds
 c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 r

el
ev

an
t 

em
er

gi
ng

 n
at

io
na

l a
nd

 r
eg

io
na

l f
ra

m
ew

or
ks

 a
nd

 g
ui

da
nc

e,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

N
IC

E
 T

A
G

s 
an

d 
gu

id
an

ce
Q

ua
rt

er
ly

N
ot

 a
ll 

re
le

va
nt

 
gu

id
an

ce
 

co
ve

re
d 

or
 n

o 
de

ta
il 

of
 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n.

D
et

ai
l o

f 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

bu
t n

ot
 a

ct
io

ns
 

or
 r

is
ks

 / 
co

nc
er

ns
.

D
et

ai
l o

f 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n,

 
ac

tio
n 

pl
an

s,
 

ris
ks

 a
nd

 
co

nc
er

ns
 

hi
gh

lig
ht

ed

A
m

be
r

N
ot

 
sc

or
ed

Ju
l-1

2

Q
I 1

4b
G

ui
da

nc
e 

an
d 

al
er

ts

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 S
af

et
y 

A
le

rt
s 

w
ith

in
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

tim
es

ca
le

s

Q
ua

rt
er

ly

A
ct

io
n 

pl
an

s 
sh

ow
in

g 
pr

og
re

ss
 n

ot
 

pr
ov

id
ed

A
ct

io
ns

 p
la

ns
 

pr
ov

id
ed

 b
ut

 
no

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
sh

ow
n,

 o
r 

pr
og

re
ss

 is
 n

ot
 

to
 ti

m
es

ca
le

.

A
ct

io
ns

 p
la

ns
 

sh
ow

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
is

 o
n 

ta
rg

et
 

ag
ai

ns
t 

tim
es

ca
le

s,
 o

r 
no

 a
ct

io
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

A
m

be
r

N
ot

 
sc

or
ed

Ju
l-1

2

Q
I 1

5a
T

he
m

ed
 

R
ev

ie
w

T
he

m
at

ic
 r

ev
ie

w
s:

 C
lin

ic
al

 A
ud

it

Q
ua

rt
er

ly

A
ct

io
n 

pl
an

s 
sh

ow
in

g 
pr

og
re

ss
 n

ot
 

pr
ov

id
ed

A
ct

io
ns

 p
la

ns
 

pr
ov

id
ed

 b
ut

 
no

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
sh

ow
n,

 o
r 

pr
og

re
ss

 is
 n

ot
 

to
 ti

m
es

ca
le

.

A
ct

io
ns

 p
la

ns
 

sh
ow

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
is

 o
n 

ta
rg

et
 

ag
ai

ns
t 

tim
es

ca
le

s,
 o

r 
no

 a
ct

io
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 
A

m
be

r
 

Ju
n-

12

H
ea

lth
 C

ar
e 

A
cq

ui
re

d 
In

fe
ct

io
ns

P
ro

vi
d

in
g

 c
ar

e 
in

 a
 s

af
e 

en
vi

ro
n

m
en

t

T
ar

g
et

 
20

12
/1

3

A
dd

iti
on

al
 

Q
ua

lit
y 

M
ea

su
re

s

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

20
11

/1
2

D
o

m
ai

n
: 

D
o

m
ai

n
: 

Q
u

al
it

y 
&

 P
at

ie
n

t 
S

af
et

y 
G

en
er

ic
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 In

d
ic

at
o

rs

C
an

ce
r 

T
re

at
m

en
t 

S
er

vi
ce

s

D
o

m
ai

n
: 

K
ey

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 In
d

ic
at

o
rs

R
E

F
M

E
T

R
IC

M
E

A
S

U
R

E
T

H
R

E
S

H
O

L
D

S
F

R
E

Q
U

E
N

C
Y

C
u

rr
en

t 
P

er
io

d
P

re
vi

o
u

s 
P

er
io

d

C
u

rr
en

t 
P

er
io

d
 

P
la

n

C
u

rr
en

t 
P

er
io

d
 

R
ep

o
rt

ed
T

R
E

N
D

Y
ea

r 
to

 
d

at
e 

ac
tu

al

Y
ea

r 
to

 
d

at
e 

th
re

sh
o

ld
 

62



P
et

er
b

o
ro

u
g

h
 a

n
d

 S
ta

m
fo

rd
 H

o
sp

it
al

s 
N

H
S

 F
o

u
n

d
at

io
n

 T
ru

st
 Q

u
al

it
y 

an
d

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 D
as

h
b

o
ar

d
 2

01
2/

13
T

ab
le

 6

R
E

D
A

M
B

E
R

G
R

E
E

N

P
H

Q
19

R
ef

er
ra

l t
o 

tr
ea

tm
en

t -
 A

dm
itt

ed
 A

dj
us

te
d 

%
 w

ith
in

 1
8 

w
ee

ks
M

on
th

ly
<9

0%
N

/A
>=

90
%

91
.1

%
90

.0
%

89
.6

%
90

%
91

.3
%

�
90

%
89

.2
%

Ju
l-1

2

E
m

er
ge

nc
y 

S
er

vi
ce

s
T

he
 p

ro
po

rt
io

n 
of

 p
at

ie
nt

s 
sp

en
di

ng
 fo

ur
 h

ou
rs

 o
r 

le
ss

 in
 a

ll 
ty

pe
s 

of
 

A
&

E
 d

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
M

on
th

ly
<9

4%
>9

4%
 a

nd
 

<9
5%

>=
 9

5%
95

.8
%

95
%

91
.3

%
95

%
96

.1
5%

�
95

%
92

.6
8%

A
ug

-1
2

N
um

be
r 

of
 N

ev
er

 E
ve

nt
s 

R
ep

or
te

d
M

on
th

ly
>1

 
N

/A
0

3
0

1
0

1
�

0
2

A
ug

-1
2

C
. D

iff
 In

fe
ct

io
ns

: N
o.

 o
f P

at
ie

nt
s 

ag
ed

 2
 o

r 
ov

er
 

M
on

th
ly

>5
%

 o
f t

he
 

T
ar

ge
t

B
et

w
ee

n 
T

ar
ge

t a
nd

 
5%

 o
f t

he
 

<=
T

ar
ge

t
33

29
1

3
6

�
10

10
Ju

l-1
2

N
um

be
rs

 o
f a

vo
id

ab
le

 G
ra

de
 th

re
e 

an
d 

fo
ur

 p
re

ss
ur

e 
ul

ce
rs

M
on

th
ly

>5
%

 o
f t

he
 

T
ar

ge
t

B
et

w
ee

n 
T

ar
ge

t a
nd

 
5%

 o
f t

he
 

<=
T

ar
ge

t
0

0
4

0
2

�
0

11
Ju

l-1
2

Q
I 3

a
C

Q
C

 E
ss

en
tia

l 
S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 
C

om
pl

ia
nc

e
C

on
ce

rn
s 

ra
is

ed
 b

y 
C

Q
C

M
on

th
ly

O
ne

 o
r 

m
or

e 
m

aj
or

 c
on

ce
rn

s

N
o 

m
aj

or
 b

ut
 

1+
 m

in
or

 o
r 

m
od

er
at

e 

N
o 

C
Q

C
 

co
nc

er
ns

A
m

be
r

A
m

be
r

�
Ju

l-1
2

 
 

 
 

Q
I 5

P
at

ire
nt

 
ex

pe
rie

nc
e

F
rie

nd
s 

an
d 

F
am

ily
 n

et
 P

ro
m

ot
er

M
on

th
ly

0
56

.7
53

.1
�

Ju
n-

12

Q
I 1

2a
S

I 
M

an
ag

em
en

t
M

an
ag

em
en

t o
f S

is
 in

 li
ne

 w
ith

 th
e 

P
C

T
 S

I P
ro

ce
du

re
M

on
th

ly

1+
 o

pe
n 

an
d 

un
de

r 
in

ve
st

ig
at

io
n.

 
A

tio
n 

pl
an

 n
ot

 
pr

og
re

ss
in

g 
to

 
tim

es
ca

le

A
ll 

in
ve

st
ig

at
io

ns
 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 w

ith
 

ac
tio

n 
pl

an
 

A
ll 

ac
tio

n 
pl

an
s 

fu
lly

 
im

pl
em

en
te

d 
or

 n
o 

N
ev

er
 

E
ve

nt
s 

re
po

rt
ed

.

A
m

be
r

A
m

be
r

�
Ju

l-1
2

Q
I 1

2b
S

I 
M

an
ag

em
en

t
N

ev
er

 E
ve

nt
s 

M
an

ag
em

en
t

M
on

th
ly

N
o 

ev
id

en
ce

 o
f 

th
em

at
ic

 
le

ar
ni

ng
 

N
o 

an
al

ys
is

 
ac

ro
ss

  r
is

k 
ar

ea
s.

 N
o 

ac
tio

n 
pl

an
 fo

r 
ar

ea
s 

of
 

co
nc

er
n.

A
na

ly
si

s 
of

 a
ll 

ris
k 

in
te

lli
ge

nc
e,

 
ac

tio
n 

pl
an

 fo
r 

ar
ea

s 
of

 
co

nc
er

n

R
ed

R
ed

�
Ju

l-1
2

S
I M

an
ag

em
en

t 
&

 le
ar

ni
ng

H
ea

lth
 C

ar
e 

A
cq

ui
re

d 
In

fe
ct

io
ns

P
ro

vi
d

in
g

 c
ar

e 
in

 a
 s

af
e 

en
vi

ro
n

m
en

t

F
or

 In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

- 
M

os
t r

ec
en

t r
es

ul
ts

 to
 b

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
, w

ith
 a

ct
io

n 
pl

an
 w

he
re

 c
on

ce
rn

s

T
ar

g
et

 
20

12
/1

3

A
dd

iti
on

al
 

Q
ua

lit
y 

M
ea

su
re

s

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

20
11

/1
2

D
o

m
ai

n
: 

O
ve

ra
rc

h
in

g
 C

lin
ic

al
 Q

u
al

it
y 

R
ev

ie
w

 M
et

ri
cs

D
o

m
ai

n
: 

E
n

su
ri

n
g

 a
 P

o
si

ti
ve

 E
xp

er
ie

n
ce

D
o

m
ai

n
: 

D
o

m
ai

n
: 

Q
u

al
it

y 
&

 P
at

ie
n

t 
S

af
et

y 
G

en
er

ic
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 In

d
ic

at
o

rs

R
ef

er
ra

l t
o 

tr
ea

tm
en

t

D
o

m
ai

n
: 

K
ey

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 In
d

ic
at

o
rs

R
E

F
M

E
T

R
IC

M
E

A
S

U
R

E

T
H

R
E

S
H

O
L

D
S

F
R

E
Q

U
E

N
C

Y
C

u
rr

en
t 

P
er

io
d

P
re

vi
o

u
s 

P
er

io
d

C
u

rr
en

t 
P

er
io

d
 

P
la

n

C
u

rr
en

t 
P

er
io

d
 

R
ep

o
rt

ed
T

R
E

N
D

Y
ea

r 
to

 
d

at
e 

ac
tu

al

Y
ea

r 
to

 
d

at
e 

th
re

sh
o

ld
 

/ t
ar

g
et

63



P
ap

w
o

rt
h

 H
o

sp
it

al
 N

H
S

 F
o

u
n

d
at

io
n

 T
ru

st
 Q

u
al

it
y 

an
d

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 D
as

h
b

o
ar

d
 2

01
2/

13
T

ab
le

 7

R
E

D
A

M
B

E
R

G
R

E
E

N

P
H

Q
03

A
ll 

pa
tie

nt
s 

re
ce

iv
in

g 
th

ei
r 

fir
st

 d
ef

in
iti

ve
 tr

ea
tm

en
t f

or
 c

an
ce

r 
w

ith
in

 tw
o 

m
on

th
s 

(6
2 

da
ys

) 
of

 G
P

 o
r 

de
nt

is
t u

rg
en

t r
ef

er
ra

l
M

on
th

ly
<8

5%
N

/A
>=

85
%

85
.9

%
85

%
87

.5
%

85
%

50
.0

%
�

85
%

73
.6

%
Ju

n-
12

C
. D

iff
 In

fe
ct

io
ns

: N
o.

 o
f P

at
ie

nt
s 

ag
ed

 2
 o

r 
ov

er
 

M
on

th
ly

>5
%

 o
f t

he
 

T
ar

ge
t

B
et

w
ee

n 
T

ar
ge

t a
nd

 
5%

 o
f t

he
 

<=
T

ar
ge

t
8

5
2

1
1

�
3

4
Ju

l-1
2

N
um

be
rs

 o
f a

vo
id

ab
le

 G
ra

de
 th

re
e 

an
d 

fo
ur

 p
re

ss
ur

e 
ul

ce
rs

M
on

th
ly

>5
%

 o
f t

he
 

T
ar

ge
t

B
et

w
ee

n 
T

ar
ge

t a
nd

 
5%

 o
f t

he
 

<=
T

ar
ge

t
0

0
0

0
1

�
0

1
Ju

l-1
2

Q
I 5

P
at

ire
nt

 
E

xp
er

ie
nc

e
F

rie
nd

s 
an

d 
F

am
ily

 n
et

 P
ro

m
ot

er
M

on
th

ly
0

78
.5

86
.3

�
Ju

n-
12

D
o

m
ai

n
: 

E
n

su
ri

n
g

 a
 P

o
si

ti
ve

 E
xp

er
ie

n
ce

F
or

 In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

- 
M

os
t r

ec
en

t r
es

ul
ts

 to
 b

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
, w

ith
 a

ct
io

n 
pl

an
 w

he
re

 c
on

ce
rn

s

C
an

ce
r 

T
re

at
m

en
t 

S
er

vi
ce

s

H
ea

lth
 C

ar
e 

A
cq

ui
re

d 
In

fe
ct

io
ns

A
dd

iti
on

al
 Q

ua
lit

y 
M

ea
su

re
s

D
o

m
ai

n
: 

Q
u

al
it

y 
&

 P
at

ie
n

t 
S

af
et

y 
G

en
er

ic
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 In

d
ic

at
o

rs

C
u

rr
en

t 
P

er
io

d
 

R
ep

o
rt

ed
T

R
E

N
D

Y
ea

r 
to

 
d

at
e 

th
re

sh
o

ld
 

Y
ea

r 
to

 
d

at
e 

ac
tu

al

D
o

m
ai

n
: 

K
ey

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 In
d

ic
at

o
rs

R
E

F
M

E
T

R
IC

M
E

A
S

U
R

E
F

R
E

Q
U

E
N

C
Y

T
H

R
E

S
H

O
L

D
S

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

20
11

/1
2

P
re

vi
o

u
s 

P
er

io
d

C
u

rr
en

t 
P

er
io

d
 

P
la

n

C
u

rr
en

t 
P

er
io

d
T

ar
g

et
 

20
12

/1
3

64



C
am

b
ri

d
g

es
h

ir
e 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
N

H
S

 T
ru

st
 Q

u
al

it
y 

an
d

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 D
as

h
b

o
ar

d
 2

01
2/

13
Ta

b
le

 8

R
E

D
A

M
B

E
R

G
R

E
E

N

N
um

be
rs

 o
f a

vo
id

ab
le

 G
ra

de
 th

re
e 

an
d 

fo
ur

 p
re

ss
ur

e 
ul

ce
rs

N
H

S
 

C
am

br
id

ge
sh

ire
M

on
th

ly
>5

%
 o

f t
he

 
T

ar
ge

t

B
et

w
ee

n 
T

ar
ge

t a
nd

 
5%

 o
f t

he
 

<=
T

ar
ge

t
0

0
3

0
1

�
0

10
Ju

l-1
2

Q
I 2

C
lin

ic
al

 Q
ua

lit
y 

R
ev

ie
w

 P
ro

ce
ss

E
vi

de
nc

e 
fo

r 
m

ee
tin

gs
 is

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
by

 C
om

m
is

si
on

er
 a

t l
ea

st
 

5 
da

ys
 b

ef
or

e 
m

ee
tin

g.
 E

vi
de

nc
e 

fo
r 

C
Q

R
 is

 c
om

pl
et

e.
 A

ll 
Q

ua
lit

y 
re

vi
ew

 m
ee

tin
gs

 a
re

 q
uo

ra
te

 fr
om

 P
ro

vi
de

r

N
H

S
 

C
am

br
id

ge
sh

ire
M

on
th

ly
0 

or
 1

 m
ea

su
re

  
m

et
2 

m
ea

su
re

s 
 m

et
3 

m
ea

su
re

s 
 m

et
G

re
en

R
ed

�
A

ug
-1

2

Q
I 3

a
C

Q
C

 E
ss

en
tia

l 
S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 
C

om
pl

ia
nc

e
C

on
ce

rn
s 

ra
is

ed
 b

y 
C

Q
C

N
H

S
 

C
am

br
id

ge
sh

ire
M

on
th

ly
O

ne
 o

r 
m

or
e 

m
aj

or
 c

on
ce

rn
s

N
o 

m
aj

or
 b

ut
 1

+ 
m

in
or

 o
r 

m
od

er
at

e 

N
o 

C
Q

C
 

co
nc

er
ns

A
m

be
r

A
m

be
r

�
A

ug
-1

2

Q
I 3

c

C
Q

C
 Q

ua
lit

y 
an

d 
R

is
k 

P
ro

fil
es

N
um

be
r 

of
 A

m
be

r 
or

 R
ed

 R
is

k 
E

st
im

at
es

 in
 la

te
st

 C
Q

C
 

Q
&

R
P

M
on

th
ly

A
ny

 r
ed

 a
nd

 n
o 

ac
tio

n 
pl

an
 

R
ed

 o
r 

am
be

r 
 

w
ith

 a
ct

io
n 

pl
an

 
N

o 
re

d 
or

 a
m

be
r 

A
m

be
r

A
m

be
r

�
A

ug
-1

2

Q
I 1

0a
S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

ch
ild

re
n

P
ro

te
ct

 C
hi

ld
re

n 
fr

om
 A

vo
id

ab
le

 h
ar

m
 th

ro
ug

h 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 s

ec
tio

n 
11

 a
nd

 C
Q

C
 R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
N

H
S

 
C

am
br

id
ge

sh
ire

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
< 

75
%

 
75

%
 –

 9
5%

 
>=

95
%

 
A

m
be

r
A

m
be

r
�

Ju
n-

12

Q
I 1

0b
S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

ch
ild

re
n

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 s

ta
ff 

tr
ai

ne
d 

in
 s

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

ch
ild

re
n 

pr
oc

es
se

s 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 to
 th

ei
r 

ro
le

N
H

S
 

C
am

br
id

ge
sh

ire
Q

ua
rt

er
ly

< 
75

%
 

75
%

 –
 9

5%
 

>=
95

%
 

R
ed

R
ed

�
Ju

n-
12

Q
I 1

0c
S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

ch
ild

re
n

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 c

lin
ic

al
 s

ta
ff 

re
ce

iv
in

g 
sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
 

su
pe

rv
is

io
n

Q
ua

rt
er

ly

S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 n
ot

 
ad

eq
ua

te

P
ol

ic
ie

s 
an

d 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 in
 

pl
ac

e 
bu

t n
ot

 
im

pl
em

en
te

d 

P
ol

ic
y 

an
d 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 in

 
pl

ac
e 

an
d 

im
pl

em
en

te
d

R
ed

R
ed

�
Ju

n-
12

Q
I 1

1a
S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

ad
ul

ts
P

ro
te

ct
 a

du
lts

 fr
om

 a
vo

id
ab

le
 h

ar
m

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
< 

75
%

 
75

%
 –

 9
5%

 
>=

95
%

 
R

ed
R

ed
�

A
ug

-1
2

Q
I 1

1b
S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

ad
ul

ts
P

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

  s
ta

ff 
tr

ai
ne

d 
in

 s
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
ad

ul
ts

 
pr

oc
es

se
s,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
M

en
ta

l C
ap

ac
ity

 A
ct

Q
ua

rt
er

ly

<7
5%

 S
Is

  m
et

 
re

po
rt

in
g 

tim
es

ca
le

s,
 

qu
al

ity
 c

on
ce

rn
s 

75
%

 to
 9

0%
  S

Is
   

m
et

 r
ep

or
tin

g 
tim

es
ca

le
s 

N
o 

qu
al

ity
 c

on
ce

rn
s 

>9
0%

  S
Is

   
m

et
 

re
po

rt
in

g 
tim

es
ca

le
s 

N
o 

qu
al

ity
 c

on
ce

rn
s

R
ed

R
ed

�
A

ug
-1

2

Q
I 1

2a
S

I 
M

an
ag

em
en

t
M

an
ag

em
en

t o
f S

is
 in

 li
ne

 w
ith

 th
e 

P
C

T
 S

I P
ro

ce
du

re
M

on
th

ly

1+
 o

pe
n 

an
d 

un
de

r 
in

ve
st

ig
at

io
n.

 
A

tio
n 

pl
an

 n
ot

 
pr

og
re

ss
in

g 
to

 
tim

es
ca

le

A
ll 

in
ve

st
ig

at
io

ns
 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 w

ith
 

ac
tio

n 
pl

an
 

A
ll 

ac
tio

n 
pl

an
s 

fu
lly

 
im

pl
em

en
te

d 
or

 
no

 N
ev

er
 E

ve
nt

s 
re

po
rt

ed
.

A
m

be
r

R
ed

�
A

ug
-1

2

Q
I 1

3
T

he
m

at
ic

 
A

na
ly

si
s

T
he

m
at

ic
 le

ar
ni

ng
 fr

om
 a

ll 
ris

k 
in

te
lli

ge
nc

e 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

S
is

, 
in

ci
de

nt
s,

 c
om

pl
ai

nt
s,

 c
la

im
s 

an
d 

P
A

LS
 e

nq
ui

rie
s

Q
ua

rt
er

ly

N
ot

 a
ll 

re
le

va
nt

 
gu

id
an

ce
 

co
ve

re
d 

or
 n

o 
de

ta
il 

of
 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n.

D
et

ai
l o

f 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

bu
t n

ot
 a

ct
io

ns
 

or
 r

is
ks

 / 
co

nc
er

ns
.

D
et

ai
l o

f 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n,

 
ac

tio
n 

pl
an

s,
 

ris
ks

 a
nd

 
co

nc
er

ns
 

hi
gh

lig
ht

ed

A
m

be
r

A
m

be
r

�
Ju

l-1
2

Q
I 1

4a
G

ui
da

nc
e 

an
d 

al
er

ts

R
ev

ie
w

 a
ga

in
st

 a
nd

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
to

w
ar

ds
 c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 

re
le

va
nt

 e
m

er
gi

ng
 n

at
io

na
l a

nd
 r

eg
io

na
l f

ra
m

ew
or

ks
 a

nd
 

gu
id

an
ce

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 N

IC
E

 T
A

G
s 

an
d 

gu
id

an
ce

Q
ua

rt
er

ly

N
ot

 a
ll 

re
le

va
nt

 
gu

id
an

ce
 

co
ve

re
d 

or
 n

o 
de

ta
il 

of
 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n.

D
et

ai
l o

f 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

bu
t n

ot
 a

ct
io

ns
 

or
 r

is
ks

 / 
co

nc
er

ns
.

D
et

ai
l o

f 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n,

 
ac

tio
n 

pl
an

s,
 

ris
ks

 a
nd

 
co

nc
er

ns
 

hi
gh

lig
ht

ed

A
m

be
r

A
m

be
r

�
Ju

l-1
2

T
H

R
E

S
H

O
L

D
S

C
u

rr
en

t 
P

er
io

d
 

P
la

n

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

20
11

/1
2

P
re

vi
o

u
s 

P
er

io
d

T
ar

g
et

 
20

12
/1

3
T

R
E

N
D

Y
ea

r 
to

 
d

at
e 

ac
tu

al

Y
ea

r 
to

 
d

at
e 

th
re

sh
o

ld
 / 

ta
rg

et

C
u

rr
en

t 
P

er
io

d

C
u

rr
en

t 
P

er
io

d
 

R
ep

o
rt

ed

D
o

m
ai

n
: 

P
ro

vi
d

in
g

 c
ar

e 
in

 a
 s

af
e 

en
vi

ro
n

m
en

t

D
o

m
ai

n
: 

Q
u

al
it

y 
&

 P
at

ie
n

t 
S

af
et

y 
G

en
er

ic
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 In

d
ic

at
o

rs
D

o
m

ai
n

: 

O
ve

ra
rc

h
in

g
 C

lin
ic

al
 Q

u
al

it
y 

R
ev

ie
w

 M
et

ri
cs

D
o

m
ai

n
: 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 In
d

ic
at

o
rs

R
E

F
M

E
T

R
IC

M
E

A
S

U
R

E
C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
er

F
R

E
Q

U
E

N
C

Y

65



R
E

D
A

M
B

E
R

G
R

E
E

N
T

H
R

E
S

H
O

L
D

S
C

u
rr

en
t 

P
er

io
d

 
P

la
n

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

20
11

/1
2

P
re

vi
o

u
s 

P
er

io
d

T
ar

g
et

 
20

12
/1

3
T

R
E

N
D

Y
ea

r 
to

 
d

at
e 

ac
tu

al

Y
ea

r 
to

 
d

at
e 

th
re

sh
o

ld
 / 

ta
rg

et

C
u

rr
en

t 
P

er
io

d

C
u

rr
en

t 
P

er
io

d
 

R
ep

o
rt

ed

Q
u

al
it

y 
&

 P
at

ie
n

t 
S

af
et

y 
G

en
er

ic
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 In

d
ic

at
o

rs
D

o
m

ai
n

: 

R
E

F
M

E
T

R
IC

M
E

A
S

U
R

E
C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
er

F
R

E
Q

U
E

N
C

Y

Q
I 1

4b
G

ui
da

nc
e 

an
d 

al
er

ts

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 S
af

et
y 

A
le

rt
s 

w
ith

in
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

tim
es

ca
le

s

Q
ua

rt
er

ly

A
ct

io
n 

pl
an

s 
sh

ow
in

g 
pr

og
re

ss
 n

ot
 

pr
ov

id
ed

A
ct

io
ns

 p
la

ns
 

pr
ov

id
ed

 b
ut

 n
o 

pr
og

re
ss

 s
ho

w
n,

 
or

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
is

 
no

t t
o 

tim
es

ca
le

.

A
ct

io
ns

 p
la

ns
 

sh
ow

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
is

 o
n 

ta
rg

et
 

ag
ai

ns
t 

tim
es

ca
le

s,
 o

r 
no

 a
ct

io
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

A
m

be
r

A
m

be
r

�
Ju

l-1
2

Q
I 1

5a
T

he
m

ed
 

R
ev

ie
w

T
he

m
at

ic
 r

ev
ie

w
s:

 C
lin

ic
al

 A
ud

it

Q
ua

rt
er

ly

A
ct

io
n 

pl
an

s 
sh

ow
in

g 
pr

og
re

ss
 n

ot
 

pr
ov

id
ed

A
ct

io
ns

 p
la

ns
 

pr
ov

id
ed

 b
ut

 n
o 

pr
og

re
ss

 s
ho

w
n,

 
or

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
is

 
no

t t
o 

tim
es

ca
le

.

A
ct

io
ns

 p
la

ns
 

sh
ow

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
is

 o
n 

ta
rg

et
 

ag
ai

ns
t 

tim
es

ca
le

s,
 o

r 
no

 a
ct

io
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

N
A

A
m

be
r

 
Ju

n-
12

Q
I 1

5b
T

he
m

ed
 

R
ev

ie
w

T
he

m
at

ic
 R

ev
ie

w
s:

 R
is

k 
M

an
ag

em
en

t

M
on

th
ly

A
ct

io
n 

pl
an

s 
sh

ow
in

g 
pr

og
re

ss
 n

ot
 

pr
ov

id
ed

A
ct

io
ns

 p
la

ns
 

pr
ov

id
ed

 b
ut

 n
o 

pr
og

re
ss

 s
ho

w
n,

 
or

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
is

 
no

t t
o 

tim
es

ca
le

.

A
ct

io
ns

 p
la

ns
 

sh
ow

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
is

 o
n 

ta
rg

et
 

ag
ai

ns
t 

tim
es

ca
le

s,
 o

r 
no

 a
ct

io
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

N
A

A
m

be
r

 
Ju

n-
12

Q
I 1

6
C

lin
ic

al
 A

ud
it

C
lin

ic
al

 a
ud

it 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
sh

ow
s 

le
ar

ni
ng

 fr
om

 n
at

io
na

l a
nd

 
lo

ca
l a

ud
its

Q
ua

rt
er

ly

N
o 

ev
id

en
ce

 o
f 

bo
ar

d 
/ c

lin
ic

al
 

di
sc

us
si

on
 

E
vi

de
nc

e 
of

 
bo

ar
d 

/ c
lin

ic
al

 
di

sc
us

si
on

. 
A

ct
io

ns
 p

la
ns

 
no

t o
n 

ta
rg

et
 

ag
ai

ns
t 

tim
es

ca
le

s

E
vi

de
nc

e 
of

 
bo

ar
d 

/ c
lin

ic
al

 
di

sc
us

si
on

. 
A

ct
io

ns
 p

la
ns

 o
n 

ta
rg

et
, o

r 
no

 
ac

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

G
re

en
A

m
be

r
�

A
ug

-1
2

Q
I 2

0
O

ut
-o

f-
ho

ur
s 

ca
re

A
ch

ie
ve

m
en

t o
f O

O
H

 N
Q

R
s

M
on

th
ly

 
O

ne
 o

r 
m

or
e 

N
Q

R
s 

no
t 

ac
hi

ev
ed

N
A

A
ll 

N
Q

R
s 

ac
hi

ev
ed

G
re

en
A

m
be

r
�

 
 

 

Q
I 2

0f
C

Q
U

IN
s

O
ld

er
 / 

V
ul

ne
ra

bl
e 

P
eo

pl
e

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
A

s 
C

Q
U

IN
A

s 
C

Q
U

IN
A

s 
C

Q
U

IN
N

A
A

m
be

r
 

A
pr

-J
un

 1
7

D
o

m
ai

n
: 

C
Q

U
IN

s

66



C
am

b
ri

d
g

es
h

ir
e 

an
d

 P
et

er
b

o
ro

u
g

h
 N

H
S

 F
o

u
n

d
at

io
n

 T
ru

st
 Q

u
al

it
y 

an
d

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 D
as

h
b

o
ar

d
 2

01
2/

13
T

ab
le

 9

R
E

D
A

M
B

E
R

G
R

E
E

N

T
he

 p
ro

po
rt

io
n 

of
 a

dm
is

si
on

s 
to

 th
e 

T
ru

st
’s

 a
cu

te
 w

ar
d 

th
at

 w
er

e 
ga

te
ke

pt
 b

y 
th

e 
cr

is
is

 r
es

ol
ut

io
n 

ho
m

e 
tr

ea
tm

en
t 

te
am

s
C

&
P

 C
C

G
M

on
th

ly
<5

%
 o

f t
he

 
T

ar
ge

t

B
et

w
ee

n 
95

%
 a

nd
 5

%
 

of
 th

e 
T

ar
ge

t
>=

T
ar

ge
t

94
.8

%
95

%
92

.5
%

95
%

93
.7

%
�

95
%

92
.3

%
Ju

l-1
2

T
he

 p
ro

po
rt

io
n 

of
 a

dm
is

si
on

s 
to

 th
e 

T
ru

st
’s

 a
cu

te
 w

ar
d 

th
at

 w
er

e 
ga

te
ke

pt
 b

y 
th

e 
cr

is
is

 r
es

ol
ut

io
n 

ho
m

e 
tr

ea
tm

en
t 

te
am

s

N
H

S
 

C
am

br
id

ge
sh

ire
M

on
th

ly
<5

%
 o

f t
he

 
T

ar
ge

t

B
et

w
ee

n 
95

%
 a

nd
 5

%
 

of
 th

e 
T

ar
ge

t
>=

T
ar

ge
t

93
.2

%
95

%
93

.1
%

95
%

92
.5

%
�

95
%

91
.7

%
Ju

l-1
2

T
he

 p
ro

po
rt

io
n 

of
 a

dm
is

si
on

s 
to

 th
e 

T
ru

st
’s

 a
cu

te
 w

ar
d 

th
at

 w
er

e 
ga

te
ke

pt
 b

y 
th

e 
cr

is
is

 r
es

ol
ut

io
n 

ho
m

e 
tr

ea
tm

en
t 

te
am

s

N
H

S
 

P
et

er
bo

ro
ug

h
M

on
th

ly
<5

%
 o

f t
he

 
T

ar
ge

t

B
et

w
ee

n 
95

%
 a

nd
 5

%
 

of
 th

e 
T

ar
ge

t
>=

T
ar

ge
t

96
.3

%
95

%
92

.0
%

95
%

94
.9

%
�

95
%

93
.0

%
Ju

l-1
2

Q
I 3

a
C

Q
C

 E
ss

en
tia

l 
S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 
C

om
pl

ia
nc

e
C

on
ce

rn
s 

ra
is

ed
 b

y 
C

Q
C

N
H

S
 

C
am

br
id

ge
sh

ire
M

on
th

ly
O

ne
 o

r 
m

or
e 

m
aj

or
 

co
nc

er
ns

N
o 

m
aj

or
 b

ut
 1

+ 
m

in
or

 o
r 

m
od

er
at

e 

N
o 

C
Q

C
 

co
nc

er
ns

A
m

be
r

A
m

be
r

�
Ju

l-1
2

Q
I 3

c
C

Q
C

 Q
ua

lit
y 

an
d 

R
is

k 
P

ro
fil

es

N
um

be
r 

of
 A

m
be

r 
or

 R
ed

 R
is

k 
E

st
im

at
es

 in
 la

te
st

 C
Q

C
 

Q
&

R
P

N
H

S
 

C
am

br
id

ge
sh

ire
M

on
th

ly
A

ny
 r

ed
 a

nd
 n

o 
ac

tio
n 

pl
an

 
R

ed
 o

r 
am

be
r 

 
w

ith
 a

ct
io

n 
pl

an
 

N
o 

re
d 

or
 

am
be

r 
A

m
be

r
A

m
be

r
�

Ju
l-1

2

Q
I 8

a
In

fe
ct

io
n 

co
nt

ro
l 

an
d 

pr
ev

en
tio

n
A

ss
ur

an
ce

 o
f r

ob
us

t s
ys

te
m

s 
an

d 
m

ea
su

re
s 

fo
r 

In
fe

ct
io

n 
C

on
tr

ol
Q

ua
rt

er
ly

A
ny

 
re

qu
ire

m
en

t o
f 

S
ec

tio
n 

11
 

au
di

t d
oe

s 
no

t 
m

ee
t  

ad
eq

ua
te

 
ra

tin
g.

 

A
ct

io
n 

pl
an

  i
n 

pl
ac

e 
to

 r
ea

ch
  

ad
eq

ua
te

 fo
r 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 
no

t m
et

 u
nd

er
 

S
ec

tio
n 

11
 

au
di

t. 

M
in

im
um

 o
f 

ad
eq

ua
te

 fo
r 

al
l 

37
 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

, 4
  

re
la

te
d 

au
di

ts
 

pe
r 

ye
ar

A
m

be
r

A
m

be
r

�
Ju

l-1
2

Q
I 1

0a
S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

ch
ild

re
n

P
ro

te
ct

 C
hi

ld
re

n 
fr

om
 A

vo
id

ab
le

 h
ar

m
 th

ro
ug

h 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 s

ec
tio

n 
11

 a
nd

 C
Q

C
 R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
N

H
S

 
C

am
br

id
ge

sh
ire

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
< 

75
%

 
75

%
 –

 9
5%

 
>=

95
%

 
A

m
be

r
A

m
be

r
�

Ju
l-1

2

Q
I 1

1a
S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

ad
ul

ts
P

ro
te

ct
 a

du
lts

 fr
om

 a
vo

id
ab

le
 h

ar
m

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
< 

75
%

 
75

%
 –

 9
5%

 
>=

95
%

 
A

m
be

r
A

m
be

r
�

Ju
l-1

2

Q
I 1

2a
S

I 
M

an
ag

em
en

t
M

an
ag

em
en

t o
f S

is
 in

 li
ne

 w
ith

 th
e 

P
C

T
 S

I P
ro

ce
du

re
M

on
th

ly

1+
 o

pe
n 

an
d 

un
de

r 
in

ve
st

ig
at

io
n.

 
A

tio
n 

pl
an

 n
ot

 
pr

og
re

ss
in

g 
to

 
tim

es
ca

le

A
ll 

in
ve

st
ig

at
io

ns
 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 w

ith
 

ac
tio

n 
pl

an
 

A
ll 

ac
tio

n 
pl

an
s 

fu
lly

 
im

pl
em

en
te

d 
or

 
no

 N
ev

er
 

E
ve

nt
s 

re
po

rt
ed

.

A
m

be
r

A
m

be
r

�
Ju

l-1
2

Q
I 1

3
T

he
m

at
ic

 
A

na
ly

si
s

T
he

m
at

ic
 le

ar
ni

ng
 fr

om
 a

ll 
ris

k 
in

te
lli

ge
nc

e 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

S
is

, 
in

ci
de

nt
s,

 c
om

pl
ai

nt
s,

 c
la

im
s 

an
d 

P
A

LS
 e

nq
ui

rie
s

Q
ua

rt
er

ly

N
ot

 a
ll 

re
le

va
nt

 
gu

id
an

ce
 

co
ve

re
d 

or
 n

o 
de

ta
il 

of
 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n
.

D
et

ai
l o

f 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

bu
t n

ot
 a

ct
io

ns
 

or
 r

is
ks

 / 
co

nc
er

ns
.

D
et

ai
l o

f 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n

, a
ct

io
n 

pl
an

s,
 

ris
ks

 a
nd

 
co

nc
er

ns
 

hi
gh

lig
ht

ed

A
m

be
r

A
m

be
r

�
Ju

l-1
2

Q
I 1

4b
G

ui
da

nc
e 

an
d 

al
er

ts

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 S
af

et
y 

A
le

rt
s 

w
ith

in
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

tim
es

ca
le

s

Q
ua

rt
er

ly

A
ct

io
n 

pl
an

s 
sh

ow
in

g 
pr

og
re

ss
 n

ot
 

pr
ov

id
ed

A
ct

io
ns

 p
la

ns
 

pr
ov

id
ed

 b
ut

 n
o 

pr
og

re
ss

 s
ho

w
n,

 
or

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
is

 
no

t t
o 

tim
es

ca
le

.

A
ct

io
ns

 p
la

ns
 

sh
ow

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
is

 o
n 

ta
rg

et
 

ag
ai

ns
t 

tim
es

ca
le

s,
 o

r 
no

 a
ct

io
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

A
m

be
r

A
m

be
r

�
Ju

l-1
2

O
ve

ra
rc

hi
ng

 C
lin

ic
al

 Q
ua

lit
y 

R
ev

ie
w

 M
et

ri
cs

D
o

m
ai

n:
 

D
o

m
ai

n:
 

P
ro

vi
d

in
g

 c
ar

e 
in

 a
 s

af
e 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t

O
ut

tu
rn

 
20

11
/1

2
T

ar
g

et
 

20
12

/1
3

C
ur

re
nt

 
P

er
io

d
 

P
la

n

C
ur

re
nt

 
P

er
io

d
P

re
vi

o
u

s 
P

er
io

d

D
o

m
ai

n:
 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 In
d

ic
at

o
rs

R
E

F
M

E
T

R
IC

M
E

A
S

U
R

E

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

er

F
R

E
Q

U
E

N
C

Y

T
H

R
E

S
H

O
L

D
S

T
R

E
N

D

Y
ea

r 
to

 
d

at
e 

th
re

sh
o

ld
 

/ t
ar

g
et

Y
ea

r 
to

 
d

at
e 

ac
tu

al

C
ur

re
nt

 
P

er
io

d
 

R
ep

o
rt

ed

67



R
E

D
A

M
B

E
R

G
R

E
E

N
O

ut
tu

rn
 

20
11

/1
2

T
ar

g
et

 
20

12
/1

3

C
ur

re
nt

 
P

er
io

d
 

P
la

n

C
ur

re
nt

 
P

er
io

d
P

re
vi

o
u

s 
P

er
io

d

R
E

F
M

E
T

R
IC

M
E

A
S

U
R

E

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

er

F
R

E
Q

U
E

N
C

Y

T
H

R
E

S
H

O
L

D
S

T
R

E
N

D

Y
ea

r 
to

 
d

at
e 

th
re

sh
o

ld
 

/ t
ar

g
et

Y
ea

r 
to

 
d

at
e 

ac
tu

al

C
ur

re
nt

 
P

er
io

d
 

R
ep

o
rt

ed

Q
I 1

5a
T

he
m

ed
 

R
ev

ie
w

T
he

m
at

ic
 r

ev
ie

w
s:

 C
lin

ic
al

 A
ud

it

Q
ua

rt
er

ly

A
ct

io
n 

pl
an

s 
sh

ow
in

g 
pr

og
re

ss
 n

ot
 

pr
ov

id
ed

A
ct

io
ns

 p
la

ns
 

pr
ov

id
ed

 b
ut

 n
o 

pr
og

re
ss

 s
ho

w
n,

 
or

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
is

 
no

t t
o 

tim
es

ca
le

.

A
ct

io
ns

 p
la

ns
 

sh
ow

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
is

 o
n 

ta
rg

et
 

ag
ai

ns
t 

tim
es

ca
le

s,
 o

r 
no

 a
ct

io
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 
A

m
be

r
 

Ju
n-

12

Q
I 1

5b
T

he
m

ed
 

R
ev

ie
w

T
he

m
at

ic
 R

ev
ie

w
s:

 R
is

k 
M

an
ag

em
en

t

M
on

th
ly

A
ct

io
n 

pl
an

s 
sh

ow
in

g 
pr

og
re

ss
 n

ot
 

pr
ov

id
ed

A
ct

io
ns

 p
la

ns
 

pr
ov

id
ed

 b
ut

 n
o 

pr
og

re
ss

 s
ho

w
n,

 
or

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
is

 
no

t t
o 

tim
es

ca
le

.

A
ct

io
ns

 p
la

ns
 

sh
ow

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
is

 o
n 

ta
rg

et
 

ag
ai

ns
t 

tim
es

ca
le

s,
 o

r 
no

 a
ct

io
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 
A

m
be

r
 

Ju
n-

12

68



 

           
  
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 The current national Council Tax Benefit (CTB) scheme is to be abolished on 

31 March 2013 and will be replaced by a local Council Tax Support scheme on 1 
April 2013.  The Local Government Finance Act 2012 has now received Royal 
Assent. 

  
1.2 The Council has undertaken a statutory consultation exercise on the Draft Council 

Tax Support (CTS) scheme, The results have informed the design of the final 
scheme and are included in this report for Members’ consideration. 

 
1.3 The scheme must be in place by 31 January 2013 and have received full Council 

approval.  Failure to do so will result in the Government’s default scheme being 
imposed which will follow Council Tax Benefit rules and therefore cost more. 

 
1.4 Financial information is contained within this report.  A separate paper is also on 

the Cabinet agenda regarding the Council Tax Technical Reforms which enable 
local authorities to amend some of the discounts currently granted on properties.  
These changes generate more income to the Council and will be used to mitigate 
the impact of the budget cuts in relation to the CTS scheme. 

 
1.5 Pensioners must be protected from any changes and receive the same amount of 

support that they would under the current CTB scheme.  They are not impacted by 
CTS. 

 
2. FINANCIAL UPDATE 
 
2.1 In October 2012, the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government 

announced that transitional funding would be made available to councils whose 
schemes met three specific criteria.  One of the criteria was to limit the amount of 
CTS to not less than 91.5% of the full council tax charge.   

 
 
2.2 Assuming all criteria were met, HDC and its major preceptors would have been 

eligible for additional funding of £189K.  This grant would be for 2013/14 only, and 
the Council would have to revert to an alternative scheme the following year. 

 
OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PANEL   
(SOCIAL WELL-BEING) 
 
CABINET 

 
COUNCIL 

 
                     4 DECEMBER 2012 
 
                   13 DECEMBER 2012 
 
                   19 DECEMBER 2012 

 
COUNCIL TAX SUPPORT FROM 1 APRIL 2013 
(Report by the Head of Customer Services) 

Agenda Item 6

69



 
2.3 The table shows the impact on the collection fund for both the HDC proposed 

scheme and the government transitional scheme. 
 

        
    Proposed  Transitional  
    Scheme  Scheme  
    £'000  £'000  
Impact on Collection Fund*      
Council Tax support  7721  8141  
Council Tax Technical 
Reforms  -814  -814  
    6907  7327  

     Government grants to HDC  
and precepting authorities  -6984  -6984  
Extra transitional grant    -189  
Net Impact   -77  154  
        
Impact on individual authorities     
Towns / parishes   -42  -42  
County    -54  109  
Fire    -3  6  
Police    -9  18  
HDC **    31  63  
    -77  154  
        
* Assumes all preceptors increase Council Tax by 2%   
** In addition, HDC faces additional costs of around £195k in either case 
        

 
2.4 It is therefore proposed that HDC approve the HDC scheme and reject the 

transitional grant proposed by the Government. 
 
3. SCHEME DETAILS 
 
3.1 The following principles were at the core of designing the HDC draft Council Tax 

Support scheme and were the subject of the consultation: 
 

• everyone of working age should pay something towards their Council Tax 
(although there was some protection for the most vulnerable) 

• the scheme should provide some protection for the most vulnerable in 
society 

• the scheme should incentivise and support people moving into work and 
help those on low paid work. 

 
A summary of the differences between the current CTB scheme and the proposed 
CTS scheme which the Council consulted on is shown at Appendix A 

 

70



3.2 CTS for pensioners will be worked out using a set of prescribed regulations which 
in effect mirrors the current CTB regulations. 

 
3.3 In order to make the necessary savings and to be able to provide some protection 

for the most vulnerable claimants, the scheme for working age people will mean 
that the majority of claimants will have their CTS entitlement based on 80% of the 
Council Tax charge.  Households with a child under the age of 5 will have their 
entitlement based on 85% of the charge and people in receipt of the Severe 
Disability or Disabled Child Premium will have their CTS based on the full charge. 

 
3.4 This means that a large number of people who currently don’t have to pay 

anything towards the Council Tax will have to; this includes people on Income 
Support, Jobseeker’s Allowance or Employment Support Allowance. 

 
3.5 Officers have prepared an Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) that shows the 

impact of the proposals on affected groups of people with protected characteristics 
under the Equality Act 2010.  Members are required to have “Due Regard” to this 
assessment when making their decision.  The EIA is available on this link  

 
3.6 In particular, members are requested to note the findings on page 11 of the EIA 

document, and have due regard to the comments about child benefit and child 
maintenance income. 

 
4. CONSULTATION 
 
4.1 The consultation took place between 20 August and 14 October 2012, and we 

received 424 responses. A complete report showing the analysis of the 
consultation and the comments received can be found here.   A summary of the 
responses is at Appendix B 

 
4.2 In the main, responses to the consultation have been reasonably positive.  As 

expected, groups who are to be most affected by the changes have been less 
inclined to support any reduction. Having considered the feedback received, the 
Project Board recommends that the draft scheme be (in the main) adopted.   

 
4.3 However, the following exceptions to the draft CTS scheme are being put forward 

for the reasons set out below; 
 

• Backdating of up to six months should be allowed as currently under the Council 
Tax Benefit scheme.  This is to allow parity with the Housing Benefit scheme and 
to prevent small, hard to collect debts being created. 
 

• The capital limit should not be reduced to £10k but remain at the existing CTB 
level of £16k and include tariff income from capital.  This will allow parity with the 
Housing Benefit scheme and should make administration easier once Universal 
Credit is implemented.   

 
4.4 A full version of the proposed CTS scheme can be found via this link 
 
 

71



5. RECOMMENDATION 
 
5.1 That, having paid due regard to the Equality Impact Assessment, the HDC 

Proposed Council Tax Support Scheme be approved.   
 
5.2 That, in accordance with Section 10 and Schedule 4 of the Local Government 

Finance Act 2012, the Head of Customer Services be authorised to administer the 
Council Tax Support Scheme and the Council’s scheme of delegation be 
amended accordingly.’ 

 
 
 
 
Background papers:  
http://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/Money%20and%20Benefits/Pages/CouncilTaxSuppor
tConsultation.aspx 
 
 
 
 
Contact 
Officer: 

Julia Barber  
 �     01480 388105 
  
  
 

72



 
Appendix A 

 
Summary of the Main Changes between Council Tax Benefit 

and the Draft Council Tax Support Scheme 2013/14 
 

The table below shows a brief overview of how certain rules in the current Council Tax Benefit scheme will be dealt with under Huntingdonshire District 
Council’s draft Council Tax Support Scheme.  For full details on the proposals of our draft scheme please refer to the ‘Draft Council Tax Support Scheme’ 
document. 
 

Feature of Draft 
Scheme Council Tax Benefit Scheme Local Council Tax Support Scheme 

Paragraph 
in Draft 
Scheme 

Pension age 
customers Assessed under a national set of rules. No change. 2.2 

Working age 
customers Assessed under a national set of rules. Entitlement will be assessed under locally defined rules. 2.4 
Council Tax 

amount used in 
benefit 

calculation for 
most customers 

Benefit entitlement assessed using 100% of the Council Tax 
charge. 

No change for pension age customers but entitlement assessed 
using 80% of the Council Tax charge for most working age 

customers. 
2.8 

Council Tax 
amount used in 

benefit 
calculation for 

vulnerable 
customers 

Benefit entitlement assessed using 100% of the Council Tax 
charge. 

No change for pension age customers but entitlement assessed 
using 85% of the Council Tax charge for working age customers 

with children under the age of 5.   
 

Working age customers who receive a severe disability or 
disabled child premium in the assessment of their Council Tax 

Support, Income Support, Job Seekers Allowance (IB) or 
Employment Support Allowance (IR) to have entitlement based 

on 100% of the Council Tax charge. 
 

2.8, 3.1 

73



Feature of Draft 
Scheme Council Tax Benefit Scheme Local Council Tax Support Scheme 

Paragraph 
in Draft 
Scheme 

Child Benefit 
income Not counted as part of the benefit assessment. 

Child Benefit in respect of the eldest child will not be counted in 
the income assessment but all other Child Benefit will be 

included. 
 

2.10 

Child 
Maintenance 

income 
Not counted as part of the benefit assessment. Only the first £10 per week will not be counted in the income 

assessment. 2.11 

Earned income 
disregards 

Different amounts of earnings are not included in the benefit 
assessment depending on certain circumstances.  The main 

earned disregards are £5 per week for single people and £10 per 
week for couples. 

 
An additional earnings disregard can also be awarded where: 
 

� It is included in Working Tax Credit, or 
� Customers (or their partner) with children are   
            working 16 hours or more each week, or 
� Single people are aged 25 or more and work at  
            least 30 hours each week, or 
� Couples without children are working, and the  
            person in work is aged at least 25 and working at  
            least 30 hours each week 
 

The first £10 received each week in respect of a single person and 
the first £20 received each week in respect of couples will not be 

counted in the income assessment.  This doubles the amount 
currently disregarded under Council Tax Benefit.  

 
 
 

Similar qualification rules for an additional earnings disregard will 
apply as under Council Tax Benefit but, customers (or their 

partner) with children must be working 24 hours or more each 
week. 

 
 
 
 

2.12 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2.13 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Savings 
No entitlement to benefit where savings are at or above £16,000.  
In addition, £1 per week is added to the income assessment for 

every £250 where savings exceed £6000. 
 

No entitlement to support where savings are at or above 
£10,000.  No additional income will be added to the income 

assessment. 
2.15 

Non-dependants 
(people who live 
in the customers 

A range of deductions from benefit can be made based on a non-
dependants age, whether they are working and their level of 
income.  No deduction is made where the non-dependant is 

There will be two levels of deduction for working age customers - 
£5 per week for each non-dependant not in work, and £7 per 

week for each non-dependant in work. 
2.16 

74



Feature of Draft 
Scheme Council Tax Benefit Scheme Local Council Tax Support Scheme 

Paragraph 
in Draft 
Scheme 

household) receiving Pension Credit, Income Support, Income Based Job 
Seekers Allowance or Income Related Employment Support 

Allowance. 
 

Second Adult 
Rebate 

Rebate that assesses the income of second adult(s) in the 
property and allows for Council Tax reduction of up to 25%.  

 

Second Adult Rebate will be abolished for working age customers. 2.17 

Discretionary 
Support Fund 

Additional benefit can be awarded in exceptional circumstances 
but is based on local discretion and limited funds. 

We are considering the possibility of setting up a limited fund to 
provide additional help in exceptional circumstances.  No details 

have been decided at this stage. 
 

2.20 

 

75



APPENDIX B 
 

SUMMARY OF RESPONSES 
 
 
The detail supporting the summaries can be found in the appendices to the Consultation report which is available via this link. 
 

 
Q 

To what extent do you agree or 
disagree that… 

Strongly 
agree/ agree 

Disagree/ 
strongly 
disagree 

Summary 

1 The most vulnerable people 
should not be affected by the 
reduction in funding to the same 
extent as other working age 
customers 

85% 6% 

A high proportion agreed that the most vulnerable people 
should not be affected. This high level of agreement was 
similar over all the categories. There were slightly higher 
levels of disagreement among those who pay CT but don’t 
receive CTB and those with children aged under 5 in their 
households. 
Overall, c9% neither agreed nor disagreed. 

3 Our local scheme should 
incentivise and support people 
moving into work, and help those 
in low paid work 78% 10% 

A high proportion agreed with this principle. There 
were slightly higher levels of disagreement among 
female CTB claimants, CTB claimants with children 
under 5 in their households and working age CTB 
claimants.  
Overall, c12% neither agreed nor disagreed. 

4 Child Benefit for all except the 
eldest child in a household should 
be included in the assessment of a 
claimant’s income 53% 34% 

Overall, there was a higher level of agreement than 
disagreement with this statement. However, results varied 
between different groups. The highest levels of support 
were from those not in receipt of CTB, in a pensioner only 
household or aged 60+. The highest levels of 
disagreement were from CTB claimants and households 
with children. 
Overall, c13% neither agreed nor disagreed. 

5 Only the first £10 per week of any 
income from child maintenance 
payments should not be included 

50% 33% 
Overall, there was a higher level of agreement than 
disagreement with this statement. There was little 
difference in whether respondents were in receipt of CTB 

76



 
Q 

To what extent do you agree or 
disagree that… 

Strongly 
agree/ agree 

Disagree/ 
strongly 
disagree 

Summary 

in the assessment of a claimant's 
income 

or not. The strongest support came from pensioner only 
households while those with children under 5 in their 
households were most likely to disagree. 
Overall, c17% neither agreed nor disagreed. 

6 Those with savings of over 
£10,000 should not be eligible for 
any Council Tax Support 67% 23% 

A high proportion agreed with this principle. 
Households with children and pensioner only 
households were most likely to agree and those aged 
16-34 were most likely to disagree. 
Overall, 10% neither agreed nor disagreed. 

7 The Second Adult Rebate for 
working age people should be 
abolished 

56% 25% 

There was a higher level of agreement than disagreement 
with this statement. The highest levels of support were 
among those paying CT but not receiving CTB, males and 
those living in pensioner only households. The lowest 
levels of support were among those claiming CTB, single 
parents and disabled respondents. 
Overall, 19% neither agreed nor disagreed. 

8 Deductions from Council Tax 
Support should be made where 
working age claimants have non-
dependants living with them 57% 21% 

There was a higher level of agreement than disagreement 
with this statement. The highest levels of support were 
among those paying CT but not receiving CTB, males, 
those in the 60+ age group and those from pensioner only 
households. The lowest levels of support were among 
those claiming CTB and those who said they are disabled. 
Overall, c22% neither agreed nor disagreed. 

 
Q2a. Do you agree with the principle that everyone of working age should pay something towards their Council Tax bill? 
 

Do you agree with the principle that everyone of working age 
should pay something towards their Council Tax bill? ‘Yes’ 

69% 

‘
N
o
’
3

77



1
%

 
Overall a high percentage agreed that working age people should pay something towards their council tax bill. The strongest 
support came from those who pay Council Tax but are not in receipt of CTB, those aged 60+ and pensioner households. Those on 
CTB, single parents and disabled respondents were closer to a 50/50 split between the numbers agreeing and disagreeing with this 
principle. 
 
 
Q2b. If yes, how much is the minimum you think they should pay? 
 

Q2b If yes, how much is the minimum you think they should pay? ‘10%’ 
41% 

‘20%’ 
31% 

‘30%’ 
28% 

 
If respondents agreed with paying something towards council tax we also wanted to understand at what level it was felt this should 
be set at – 10%, 20% or 30%.   
 
Overall, 41% selected the lowest amount of 10% but 59% selected a higher amount than this. 
 
Among those in receipt of CTB, not surprisingly, the lower 10% option received more support than average (61%) but nearly four 
out of ten selected a higher amount. Those paying CT but not in receipt of CTB were less likely to select the lowest amount (32%), 
with more than two-thirds selecting a higher amount. 
 
Comparing results by age group shows that those aged 35-59 were most likely to select the lower 10% option (45%) but the 
majority still selected a higher amount. Those aged 60+ were most likely to select the higher 30% option (35%). 
 
Nearly half of the respondents from households with children selected the lower 10% option (48%) although nearly a third of these 
selected the highest 30% option (30%). 60% of single parents selected the lower 10% option but more than a quarter selected the 
highest 30% option (27%). Pensioner only households were least likely to select the lower 10% option (29%), with 72% selecting a 
higher amount. 
 

78



More than half of disabled respondents selected the lower 10% option (56%), nearly a third selected 20% (30%) and less than one 
in six opted for a 30% contribution (14%). 
 
 
Summary of findings  
 

• Some areas have provoked a clear trend, with the majority of people in all groups agreeing that we should protect the most 
vulnerable, encourage people back to work and not provide Council Tax Support to those with savings over £10,000. 

 
• There are areas where there is a less clear response overall and where responses from different groups vary considerably. 

These are taking child benefit into consideration, ignoring the first £10 a week of child maintenance income, removing 
second adult rebate and making deductions where non-dependants are in residence. 
 

• There is overall support for people to pay something towards their Council Tax bill. However, as would be expected there is 
a large difference between the views of those paying Council Tax but not in receipt of CTB and those who are in receipt of 
CTB. Similarly, views on the level of contribution vary considerably with those in receipt of CTB nearly twice as likely to 
select the lowest contribution level. 

 
• The survey asked for comments and suggestions which have been categorised and reported at Appendix 11 and are also 

listed in full at Appendix 12. A wide range of comments were received, with some supporting our proposals and others 
posing arguments against particular elements of our scheme.  

 
 

79



80

This page is intentionally left blank



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL 
(SOCIAL WELL-BEING)          4TH DECEMBER 2012 
 
 

POTENTIAL MERGER BETWEEN CAMBRIDGESHIRE AND SUFFOLK FIRE AND 
RESCUE SERVICES: CONSULTATION RESPONSE 

(Report by the Head of Legal and Democratic Services) 
 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 At its meeting on 6th November 2012, the Panel was acquainted with details of the 

consultation being undertaken by Cambridgeshire Fire and Rescue Service on the 
proposals for further collaboration up to a full merger between Cambridgeshire and 
Suffolk Fire and Rescue Services. Councillor Fred Brown, Chairman of the Fire 
Authority and Mr Matthew Warren, Director of Resources and Treasurer to the Fire 
Authority, delivered a presentation to Members at the meeting on the background to 
the proposals, which included an outline of the Fire Authority’s current financial 
position. 
 

1.2 All Members of the Council were invited to attend the meeting to partake in the 
Panel’s discussions. Councillor P J Downes was in attendance and contributed to 
discussions accordingly. 
 

1.3 Given that the consultation period closes on 14th January 2013, it was agreed that a 
draft response to the consultation would be submitted back to the Panel outlining 
Members’ preliminary views on the proposals. A copy of the consultation document is 
attached as an Appendix. 

 
2. BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 Councillor Fred Brown and Mr Matthew Warren reported that the proposals emerged 

following anticipated reductions in the level of Government grant awarded to both 
Fire and Rescue Services in future years. On the basis of the 2010 Comprehensive 
Spending Review, the Cambridgeshire Fire and Rescue Service has predicted it 
needs to save a minimum of £4.2 million over the next four years and it is confident it 
can do this without affecting the delivery of front line services. It is expected that the 
spending formula for allocating Fire Service funding will change and be less 
favourable for Cambridgeshire in 2013/14 and 2014/15. As a result further savings of 
up to £2 million are likely to be required. These financial pressures have led the Fire 
Authority to consider the options of further collaboration, up to a full merger, with 
Suffolk Fire and Rescue Service. 

 
3. DRAFT RESPONSE TO THE CONSULTATION 
 
3.1 This section of the report is structured around the consultation statements/questions 

posed within the consultation document. Members’ views have been incorporated 
into the relevant sections.  

 
(a) All viable options for making savings, from collaboration through to a 

voluntary merger, should be explored in order to protect front line Fire 
Services from being cut. 

 

Agenda Item 7

81



3.2 Members “strongly agree” with this statement. Wherever possible, front line services 
should be protected, provided that it is the most viable option and in the best 
interests of Cambridgeshire and Peterborough to do so.  

 
(b) I understand why Cambridgeshire and Suffolk Fire and Rescue Service are 

looking to work closer together and are considering the option of a full merger. 
 
3.3 The Panel “strongly agree” with this statement. Members are sympathetic of 

Cambridgeshire Fire and Rescue Service’s financial position and understand the 
need to identify savings and create efficiencies.  

 
(c) In principle, I believe there is a strong case for merging Cambridgeshire and 

Suffolk Fire and Rescue Services if this will produce significant savings and 
benefits that will minimise the impact on the front line from future budget cuts. 

 
3.4 Members “neither agree nor disagree” with this statement. As no final business plan 

exists for the proposed merger, it is difficult for Members to agree that there is a 
strong case for it. Members do however agree with the principle of this option being 
favourable if significant savings can be identified to help protect and maintain front 
line services, whilst having the best interests of Cambridgeshire and Peterborough at 
heart. The Panel is supportive of the principle of working with other Fire and Rescue 
Services but feels that there should be a long term vision. It is suggested that work 
should be undertaken to ascertain the optimal size for a modern Fire and Rescue 
Service. This should take account of management structure, geographical location 
and operational efficiency. 
 
How does a merger with Suffolk fit in with the long term vision? Would such a merger 
provide short term gains, but compromise future possibilities? If a merger with Suffolk 
does prove a sensible stepping stone towards a longer term vision, are you engaging 
with others who could also be a part of that vision? 

 
(d) Is there anything that concerns you about the proposed merger, or anything 

else you feel we should consider in our decision-making? 
 
3.5 In the absence of a full business case to assist Members with taking an informed 

view of the consultation, Members queried whether there will be a further opportunity 
to comment on the proposals once the business plan is available. The Panel is keen 
to ensure that the proposals demonstrate the best use of tax payers’ money. 
Although having been informed that the exercise is being undertaken to meet central 
government deadlines, views were expressed that the consultation was being 
undertaken too early given that no specific information can be presented at this point 
in time. The validity of undertaking the consultation exercise has therefore been 
questioned by Members. It is suggested that a further public consultation should be 
undertaken when the full business plan is available. 

 
3.6 Some concerns exist over the property and fleet arrangements of the Suffolk Fire and 

Rescue Service. Members have been advised of the potential liability for assets held 
by Suffolk, which were reported as being in a poor condition. Historically, 
Cambridgeshire has invested heavily into all of its assets and Members are 
concerned that the proposals for a merger, if agreed, might be to the detriment of the 
area that it currently serves. Members wish to preserve front-line services that best 
serve the residents of Cambridgeshire and Peterborough and will of course take 
particular interest in the effect of any changes upon residents and businesses in 
Huntingdonshire. Whilst Suffolk may be willing partners, they do however have 

82



significant differences in their governance, property and information technology 
arrangements. 
 

3.7 The Panel has reservations over the future service provision and the ability for calls 
for service to be responded to in a timely manner and in particular the possible 
negative impact upon the current performance levels achieved by the 
Cambridgeshire Fire and Rescue Service - both from an operational and financial 
perspective. These concerns also exist within the Cambridgeshire Fire Authority. This 
is further exacerbated by the indication given by Suffolk that they run their service at 
one third of the cost of the Cambridgeshire service. Clarification is required of how 
these conclusions have been reached. 
 

3.8 Extensive investigations should continue to be undertaken by the Cambridgeshire 
Fire and Rescue Service, with a view to ensuring that any decisions made in the 
future are for the benefit of Cambridgeshire residents. Members have strong views 
that a sound business plan, which demonstrates financial and operational resilience, 
is required before any final decisions are made. Whilst preliminary enquiries with 
other neighbouring Fire Authority areas have not progressed, Members are of the 
view that this option should further be explored by the Cambridgeshire Fire and 
Rescue Service. 
 

3.9 Finally, the Panel questions who would have overall responsibility for the merged 
service? Shared responsibility has been shown to be problematic in other areas in 
the past. Clarity of responsibility and accountability is required.  

 
4. OTHER COMMENTS 
 
4.1 A copy of the draft consultation response was submitted to the Head of 

Environmental and Community Health Services (and Chairman of the 
Huntingdonshire Community Safety Partnership) for prior review. Whilst there are no 
comments to note from the Partnership, she has drawn attention to one possible 
issue relating to Cambridgeshire Constabulary, stating that “if and when 
Cambridgeshire Constabulary ever do merge with Bedfordshire Police and 
Hertfordshire Police, then the Police service in Cambridgeshire would not be co-
terminus with Fire as another emergency service.” This is a point that the Panel may 
wish to also include within their consultation response. 

 
5. CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
5.1 As requested by the Panel, this report sets out the preliminary views expressed at 

the last meeting on the consultation currently being undertaken by Cambridgeshire 
Fire and Rescue Service. A number of comments have been made and each of the 
consultation statements/questions have been responded to. The Panel is  
 
RECOMMENDED 
 

(a) to consider and endorse Sections 3 and 4 of the report as the basis for 
the Council’s response to the consultation on the proposals for further 
collaboration up to a full merger between Cambridgeshire Fire and 
Rescue Service and Suffolk Fire and Rescue Service; and 

 
(b) to authorise Officers to submit the response directly to the 

Cambridgeshire Fire and Rescue Service.  
 

83



 
 
Contact Officer: Miss Habbiba Ali, Democratic Services Officer 

� 01480 388006 
� Habbiba.Ali@huntingdonshire.gov.uk  

 
 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
Minutes and Reports of the Overview and Scrutiny Panel (Social Well-Being) held on 6th 
November 2012. 

84



Delivering the best
fire service to you

85



Foreword 
We would like to thank you for your interest in this consultation. We’re asking for your
comments on a proposal for Cambridgeshire and Suffolk fire and rescue services to work
together more closely in the future. This includes an option to create a fully merged fire 
and rescue service covering the two  counties if it will generate significant financial 
savings and other organisational benefits.

2
Ca

m
br

id
ge

sh
ire

 a
nd

 P
et

er
bo

ro
ug

h 
Fi

re
 A

ut
ho

ri
ty

Over the years, we
have worked hard to
deliver a fire and
rescue service that
you value, at a cost
which council tax
payers can afford to
pay. We are delighted
that the public
continues to hold the
fire and rescue service in such high regard,
and we want to continue to provide an
outstanding service to people who live in,
work in and visit Cambridgeshire. 

Like all public services, we are facing
increasing pressures to manage the fire
service with less money and further
significant budget cuts are expected beyond
2015. Our priority is to protect people by
safeguarding front line services as much as
we can. By collaborating further, or merging
with another fire and rescue service we could
potentially make  savings in management
and support areas, without having to cut the
front line.

This consultation document outlines a
proposal for Cambridgshire and Suffolk fire

and rescue services to
work together more
closely in the future,
potentially through to
a fully merged fire
and rescue service,
while retaining the
excellent service that
local people value. 

We’re asking you to have your say on this
proposal in principle. Your views will be
incorporated into the full business case which
will be presented to members of
Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Fire
Authority and Suffolk County Council's Cabinet
and Full Council in the New Year. 

You can let us know you views by completing
the questionnaire on page nine or by
contacting us by using the contact
information on the back page. You can
also visit www.cambsfire.gov.uk for 
more information and to fill in
the questionnaire online.  

I hope you will take this opportunity to have
your say on the fire and rescue service you
want to see in the future. 

Our priority is to protect people
by safeguarding  front line 

services as much as we can.

Graham Stagg, 
Chief Fire Officer

Councillor Fred Brown,
Chairman of the Fire Authority

86



The first proposal was for greater
collaboration between the two fire services,
which would involve:

Sharing, where possible, functions and
procedures 
Making, where possible, savings in
support areas
Maintaining individual fire authorities 
and senior management teams. 

The second proposal involved a full merger
between the two fire services. 

Both authorities agreed to carry out more
work to consider the opportunities and
challenges associated with both options 
and to fully establish if any significant 
savings can be made. This work will
culminate in the production of a full business
case in the New Year. 

At this stage, we are asking for your views
on the principle of further collaboration, up
to a full merger, between the two fire
services, if the business case reveals this
option would result in significant savings that
could help protect front line services from
future budget cuts.

The consultation will run over a 12 week period
from 22 October 2012 to 14 January 2013. 

No decision has been made yet to merge the
two fire and rescue services, it will depend on
a number of key factors which will be
included in the business case. These are:

Confirming future government funding
arrangements for a merged fire and
rescue service
Assessing the impact that any changes
will have on the quality and resilience of
the service provided to the public
Estimating efficiency savings and
transition costs
Reviewing public consultation

3
Cam

bridgeshire and Peterborough Fire A
uthority

Background 
In October 2012, Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Fire Authority and Suffolk County
Council’s Cabinet reviewed plans by Cambridgeshire and Suffolk fire and rescue services,
which explained two proposals to work closer together. 

87



4
Ca

m
br

id
ge

sh
ire

 a
nd

 P
et

er
bo

ro
ug

h 
Fi

re
 A

ut
ho

ri
ty

Why are Cambridgeshire and Suffolk fire 
and rescue services investigating further
collaboration, up to a full merger?

What would the merger 
mean in practice?

A merger between the two fire services
would mean the following:

Sharing resources and functions
across across both fire services fire
service
Managing the services through a single
senior management team reporting to
a single authority  representative of
all the constituent authorities – in other
words, one fire and rescue service
covering both counties.

In the last two years both fire services 
have already introduced many changes to
manage the reduction in Government
funding set out in the Comprehensive
Spending review in 2010.

Cambridgeshire Fire and Rescue Service
(CFRS) has predicted it needs to find a
minimum of £4.2 million over the next four
years following changes to its funding
formula. At this level of saving, there would
be no impact on front line service delivery.

However, it could need to find an extra £2
million on top of this figure (a total of about
£6 million), or potentially even more, if the
spending formula for allocating fire service
funding is changed and falls unfavourably for
Cambridgeshire in 2013/14 and 2014/15. 

Cambridgeshire and Suffolk fire and rescue
services continue to be two of the most cost
effective fire services in the country. For many
years, both services have been two of the
most cost effective fire services in the
country, and this continues to be the case. 

Indications from central government are that
further significant budget cuts are expected
through to 2020. With the major savings both
services have made already, there are few
options remaining to make further savings
without impacting on  front line services.
Therefore both services are working together
to see if collaborating, or merging completely,
would generate further savings that may offset
the pressure to make cuts to the  front line.

Both fire services have already worked together
to open a Combined Fire Control in Huntingdon
in 2011 to take 999 calls and mobilise fire
engines and officers. There is a good history 
of partnership working between the two

authorities and building on this will benefit
local communities and firefighters alike.
The proposals outlined in this document aim
to safeguard the front line as far as possible
from the impact of funding reductions. The
key aims for any changes would be to:

Minimise future financial pressure 
on taxpayers 
Maintain front line service delivery 
and reduce costs associated with
management, support arrangements 
and inefficient working practices
Improve organisational resilience 
and performance 
Meet the needs of the public and 
our partners such as the police and
ambulance services. 

However, these aims will be met only if
Government funding does not continue 
to decline in the same way it has in this 
current Comprehensive Spending Review
period. If it does, the cuts may well impact 
on the front line.

88



5
Cam

bridgeshire and Peterborough Fire A
uthority

Cambridgeshire and
Peterborough Fire and 
Rescue Service

Responsible for delivering a fire and
rescue service to 700,000 residents
Attend over 8,000 incidents per year
Made up of 28 operational fire
stations, four of which are crewed
full-time (24 hours a day, seven days
a week), three of which are crewed
during the day, either five days a
week or seven days a week
214 wholetime firefighters and 
309 on call firefighters, including 
12 volunteers on call
Work with local community groups to
organise safety awareness events
throughout the year

In addition to a shared Combined Fire Control
centre, the two counties share much in
common, including their geography,
resources, fire stations, people and budgets.
A merged fire and rescue service would
remain accountable to local people, as
elected members from Cambridgeshire and
Peterborough and Suffolk would make up the
single Fire Authority.

What will the final decision 
depend on?
The final decision on the future of both
Cambridgeshire and Suffolk fire and rescue
services will depend on a number of
important issues being satisfactorily
addressed across both services. The main
areas are detailed below:

Public and stakeholder consultation
Financial implications
Property arrangements 
Fleet arrangements
Suffolk Fire and Rescue Service Private
Finance Initiative arrangements
Information technology (IT) arrangements 

89



Area covered by Cambridgeshire and Suffolk6

These maps show the area that would be covered by a
combined Cambridgeshire and Suffolk fire and rescue service.
It shows the location of fire stations. 

90



7
Cam

bridgeshire and Peterborough Fire A
uthority

QWill I see any difference in the service 
       I get from my local fire station or

firefighters?

AOne of the main reasons for considering
a merger is to protect the front line

service as much as possible; the greatest
reduction will be in management, support
staff arrangements and other general areas.
Savings made in these areas would certainly
offset the pressure to cut the front line. 

QWill local fire stations and firefighters
see any difference in their working

arrangements? 

AThere will inevitably be some minor
changes to the way they work, but 

these are not expected to be significant 
and will not diminish the service they deliver
to the public.

QWould firefighters from another county
be sent out to put out a fire in our area?

Won’t this increase attendance times?

AFirefighters already cross the border 
to attend incidents in areas of

Cambridgeshire and Suffolk as we send the
closest fire engine, irrespective of where they
are. This would not change under any new
proposals, nor would we expect to see any
increase in attendance times. 

QWill this mean paying more council tax
to fund the fire service?

AIt is important that neither
Cambridgeshire nor Suffolk residents are

unfairly penalised. The impact on council tax
brought about by any merger is not known at
this stage, but residents may end up paying a
little more council tax for their merged fire
service. Equally, this may be the case even if
the fire services are not merged.

QHow much do I currently pay in council
tax for my local fire service?

ACambridgeshire Fire and Rescue Service
is not part of the County Council and, as

a stand alone Authority, it sets its own
council tax level. Currently (2012/13), a
Band D property owner in Cambridgeshire
contributes £59.31 a year through council

tax which is around £1.14 a week for the
fire and rescue service.

In Suffolk this is not clear as the council tax
costs for the fire and rescue service are
included in the Suffolk County Council precept
(the amount the county council raises as a
whole) as the fire service is run by the council.

QHow would the fire services of
Cambridgeshire and Suffolk be

managed and governed if the option for a
full merger was agreed?

AThe merged service would be managed
by a single senior management team

and governed by a single combined fire
authority comprising elected members 
from Cambridgeshire and Peterborough 
and Suffolk. The elected member ratio 
would be proportionate to the size of each
constituent authority. 

QWould a merger mean fewer managers?

AYes.

QHow long would it take to introduce a
merger across the two services?

AIf the business case for a merger is
agreed, the business case would then be

submitted to the Department of Communities
& Local Government. Subject to the necessary
parliamentary processes and government
approval, a shadow combined fire authority
would be established approximately six
months after the business case is submitted
to Government. The new combined fire
authority would be in place in the April
following Government approval. It would
then take a further three to five years to 
fully merge the service and drive out all
potential efficiencies.

QWhy are Cambridgeshire and Suffolk
looking at merging with each other and

not other fire services they neighbour?

ACambridgeshire and Suffolk already share
a Combined Fire Control and there are

also many other areas of similarity which

Questions and Answers

91



8
Ca

m
br

id
ge

sh
ire

 a
nd

 P
et

er
bo

ro
ug

h 
Fi

re
 A

ut
ho

ri
ty

supports a natural alignment of the two
services. This does of course not prevent
either Cambridgeshire or Suffolk from 
further collaborative opportunities with
neighbouring services.

QWhy are you not considering
collaborating with other emergency

services – the police or ambulance service?

AThe similarities between neighbouring
fire services present greater

opportunities than those with other
emergency services. There is already some
collaboration in both counties with both the
police and ambulance services, such as
sharing stations and facilities, and there is 
no reason why this would not continue under
a merged Cambridgeshire and Suffolk fire 
and rescue service.

QWhat would happen if a merger is not
recommended? 

AIf a merger does not go ahead then both
fire and rescue services will seek

opportunities for greater collaboration to
make financial savings and improve
organisational effectiveness and resilience. 

QWhat would happen if the merger is not
agreed or the proposed merger does

not secure sufficient savings?

AIf the merger does not go ahead, each
fire service would need to manage future

funding reductions independently. In this
scenario, it is possible that front line services,
which may otherwise remain unchanged if a
merger took place, would be affected. 

If the business case for a full merger does not
show significant savings are likely, then a full
merger will not be recommended anyway. 

QIf you do not know the full financial
impact at this point, why are you

carrying out a public consultation now?

AWe will not have the full details of any
financial savings a merger may bring

until the full business case is complete early
next year. Understanding the costs of both
services is complex and it takes time to
identify where, if any, savings may be made.
However, when we submit the full business
case to the Government for approval - if it
agreed by elected members in both counties
- we must include the results of a public
consultation.

Therefore, we need to consult with the public
now to allow time for the results to be
collated and included in the full business case
in February.

We appreciate that it may be difficult to form
an opinion without seeing any financial data,
but we are asking for your opinion in theory –
i.e. if the business case reveals significant
savings can be made by merging the two fire
and rescue services, would you support the
move?

92



Have your say
Tell us what you think about the proposals outlined in this document by completing the
questionnaire below, and sending it back using the FREEPOST address provided. Alternatively,
you can complete the same survey online at www.surveymonkey.com/s/fireservicemerger

1. Where do you live?

Cambridgeshire Suffolk Other (please state) ___________________________

Please state the extent to which you agree with the following statements:
2. All viable options for making savings, from collaboration through to a voluntary merger, should be
explored in order to protect front line fire services from being cut.

strongly agree     Tend to agree    Neither agree nor disagree    Tend to disagree    strongly disagree

3. I understand why Cambridgeshire and Suffolk fire and rescue service are looking to work closer
together and are considering the option of a full merger.

strongly disagree Tend to disagree Neither agree nor disagree Tend to agree strongly agree

4. In principle, I believe there is a strong case for merging Cambridgeshire and Suffolk fire and
rescue services if this will produce significant savings and benefits that will minimise the impact on
the  front line from future budget cuts

strongly agree    end to agree    Neither agree nor disagree     Tend to disagree    strongly disagree

5. Is there anything that concerns you about the proposed merger, or anything else you feel we
should consider in our decision-making? (please state in the space below)

6. Would you like anyone to contact you to discuss this consultation?     Yes      No

7. If you answered ‘yes’ to the above, please enter your name and preferred contact details below

Please complete and return the separate equality monitoring questions form with your
answers using the FREEPOST address provided.

Comments:

Comments:

Comments:

Comments:

9
Cam

bridgeshire and Peterborough Fire A
uthority

93



FOLD

Fold the centre of the page along the dotted line, then stick this edge to the top edge.

Suffolk County Council
FREEPOST  NAT18364
Suffolk Fire & Rescue Service,
Endeavour House, 
Ipswich 
IP1 2BX

Please complete and return your form online via 
www.cambsfire.gov.uk or by sending this form in an envelope to the
FREEPOST address below. NB No stamp is needed. 

94



Glossary of terms
Business case – A document capturing the reasoning for starting a project or task. It often
includes the anticipated cost, risks, benefits, timescale and likely outcome of an action or project. 

Comprehensive Spending Review – In this context, a review of government spending in
response to wider economic factors

Fire Authority – A statutory body made up of a committee of local councillors which oversees
the policy and service delivery of a fire and rescue service.

Front line services – This means firefighters and fire service staff working to protect people
within their area, normally from their local fire station

Full time firefighter – Someone who works in a full time capacity supporting one of the
county’s fire stations. The firefighter will have completed an extensive three month training
course in using specialist kit and equipment. 

On call firefighter – On-call firefighters are part time firefighters who respond to incidents as
they are needed, and are not based at a fire station. The majority of Cambridgeshire’s fire
stations are crewed on an on call basis.

Organisational resilience – The strength of an organisation to maintain services during a period
of adversity, from economic and staffing matters to IT and other technological factors 

Private Finance Initiative - A method of providing funds for major capital investments where
firms are contracted to complete and manage the projects. The public services are leased to the
public and the government authority makes annual payments to the private company.

95



If you need help to understand this information in
another language please call 08456 066 067

If you would like this information in
another format, including audio or

large print, please call 08456 066 067.

Bengali

Chinese

Kurdish

���������	
�����
������
�����������
���������
���
��
������	���
���������� !��
�����"#��	�$  

Farsi

Polish

Portuguese

Contact us 

Cambridgeshire Fire & Rescue Service
Hinchingbrooke Cottage
Brampton Road
Huntingdon
Cambridgeshire
PE29 2NA. 
Tel: 01480 444 500. 
Email: pressoffice@cambsfire.gov.uk

96



1 

Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

 

  

ADULTS, WELLBEING AND 
HEALTH OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
25th October 2012 
 
 

 

Action 
 

88. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
   
 Councillor S Brown declared a non-statutory disclosable interest as a member of 

the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Mental Health Trust and as a participant in 
the Cambridgeshire Local Involvement Network (LINk). 

 

   
89. MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING – 12 SEPTEMBER 2012  
   
 The minutes of the meeting held on 12 September 2012 were confirmed as a 

correct record and signed by the Chairman. 
 

   
90. EAST OF ENGLAND AMBULANCE SERVICES NHS TRUST: CHANGES TO 

EMERGENCY SERVICES 
 

   
 In response to a request by a member of the public reported at its previous 

meeting, the Committee considered a report from the East of England Ambulance 
Service NHS Trust (EEAST) on recent and planned developments in the provision 
of emergency ambulance services.   

 

   
 A letter from Hayden Newton, Chief Executive of EEAST, dated 25th September 

2012, sent in reply to the Chairman’s letter of 17th September, was circulated to 
members and is attached as Appendix 1 to these minutes. 

 

   
 EEAST officers present to introduce the report and respond to members’ questions 

and comments were 
• Chris Hartley, Associate Director of Communications and Engagement 
• Paul Leaman, Associate Director of Urgent Care 
• Phil Parr, Assistant General Manager (operations manager for the North 

Cambridgeshire, Peterborough and March area). 
Apologies were given from Dave Fountain, the General Manager whose area 
included Cambridgeshire, who had been prevented by illness from attending. 

 

   
 Introducing the report, EEAST officers outlined the background to the recent 

redesign of services.  Members noted that the aim was to ensure that the same 
level of care was delivered to patients in all parts of the region; there were 
challenges in Cambridgeshire arising from the mixed urban and rural nature of the 
county.  Work was being undertaken to provide a service to callers that was more 
tailored to individual need, balanced against the requirement to spend and save 
wisely at a time of reduced income and increased activity.  Until recently, calls from 

 

Agenda Item 8

97



2 

Cambridgeshire had been split between two control centres, Norwich (covering 
most of the county) and Bedford (covering south Cambridgeshire), but all 
Cambridgeshire calls were now being dealt with by Bedford, on the grounds that 
resources could be deployed around the county more easily if one centre were 
responsible for the whole county. 

   
 In the course of discussion, members 

• pointed out that other emergency services were under similar financial 
pressures and enquired whether combined emergency services control might 
be a solution.  The Associate Director of Urgent Care said that no options would 
be ruled out.  EEAST was in regular dialogue with Fire and Police colleagues 
and undertook joint training, with the Fire Service providing breathing apparatus 
training to some EEAST teams.  Other areas, e.g. Wiltshire, shared control 
facilities, but the demand for ambulance services far outstripped that for fire 

• sought more information on the reasons for delays in handover of patients from 
ambulance to hospital staff at Addenbrooke's as compared with the two district 
hospitals (Hinchingbrooke and Peterborough); the local member’s observation 
was that ambulances were not obstructed on their way in and out of the site, 
which suggested that the delays were occurring after arrival. 
Officers acknowledged that there were handover delays as set out in the report, 
particularly at Addenbrooke's, though some hospitals in the region performed 
even less well in patient handover.  Some of the issues did relate to the building 
works at Addenbrooke's, but there were also questions of speeding up the 
process by which a patient passed through Accident and Emergency.  
Ambulances were now also using other routes to transfer a patient, for example 
by taking some patients booked in by GPs to the medical assessment unit, or to 
the minor injuries unit, or direct to the ward. 
Members were advised that meetings were held between Addenbrooke's and 
EEAST at Chief Executive level to establish the principle whereby ambulance 
crews would be released after 15 minutes, but they were still sometimes being 
kept for over two hours.  Efforts were also being made to reach tripartite 
agreement between NHS Cambridgeshire (NHSC), the Ambulance Trust and 
the Hospital Trust about keeping each other informed of problems at an early 
stage.  The Ambulance Service had put a liaison officer in to Addenbrooke's to 
work preventatively and proactively with the hospital  
The Assistant General Manager said that significant handover problems had 
been experienced at Peterborough District Hospital two years ago, largely 
caused in his view by processes within the A&E department or by capacity – the 
physical number of patients in A&E at one time.  Addenbrooke's had been 
invited to see the work done to remedy the problems in Peterborough, which 
was now being held up as a showcase system.  Peterborough City was not 
immune from handover delays, however, with several ambulances waiting for 
over an hour recently because of the large number of people arriving at once 

• noted that patients being brought to Addenbrooke's because they needed its 
centre of excellence facilities would not be delayed in A&E.  A seriously ill 
trauma patient would bypass any queue, and stroke patients, for example, 
would be taken straight to the hyperacute unit 

• expressed the wish to receive responses from all three hospitals on their 
experiences with patient handover, to assist members in forming a picture of 
what was happening across the county 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

98



3 

• in relation to those patients who had been identified as requiring an emergency 
response within 8 minutes, noted that the calls were not treated as lower priority 
if there was no likelihood of reaching them within 8 minutes.  The call remained 
prioritised as life-threatening; the caller would be contacted once it had become 
clear that the response would not arrive within 8 minutes, and the enhanced 
medical triage team would talk to the patient meanwhile. 
Once a 999 call had been made it could not be ignored, but it was necessary to 
ensure that care was delivered in the most appropriate way.   Community First 
Responders (CFRs) were volunteer lay people within local communities trained 
to deliver immediate care; using these volunteers to support the Ambulance 
Service made it possible to deliver much better care.  If a CFR could arrive 
more quickly than an ambulance, then one would be sent to provide care 
urgently 

• given the nearly 20% difference between the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough 
areas in achieving the 8-minute response target, enquired what proportion of 
that 20% was affected by the delayed handover, commenting that if there was a 
correlation, resolving that problem would go a long way to improve response 
times.  The Associate Director of Urgent Care confirmed that performance 
would be much improved if the hours lost waiting outside A&E could be 
recovered.  He and the Associate Director of Communications and Engagement 
undertook to translate delays into hours lost and supply that information to the 
Committee  

• enquired whether finding a patient’s exact location in a rural area ever proved a 
problem.  Officers advised that this was not usually a major difficulty.  The use 
of satellite navigation could be supplemented by map grid co-ordinates 
(eastings and northings), which were useful for the air ambulance service.  
There would always be a need for updates, but local crews would pick up maps 
from developers of local sites 

• noted that the procedure when an ambulance arrived to find that a patient had 
died depended on whether the death was unexpected or not.  If the patient had 
been seen by their GP within the previous fortnight and the death was 
expected, the ambulance crew would call the GP and depart, leaving the patient 
in situ; ambulance staff were able to declare life extinct, but were not 
empowered to sign a death certificate.  If a death was unexpected or 
suspicious, then the Police would be called, and the crew would remain at the 
scene, sometimes also caring for a member of the deceased’s family.  A duty 
officer from the Operations Manager’s team would sometimes be sent to take 
the crew’s place In order to release the crew for further calls 

• noted that ambulance staff were usually very resilient, but employees were able 
to self-refer to the occupational health service as necessary, and the employee 
assistance programme included psychological support 

• suggested that the high level of public expectation of the ambulance service, 
and the fly-on-the-wall presence of the media, might at times be unhelpful, 
giving the impression sometimes that a major response was required even to a 
relatively minor injury, such as sending the air ambulance to a footballer with a  
sprained ankle.   
The Associate Director of Urgent Care said that the level of public expectation 
was huge, and the public had a right to expect a response, but 50% to 60% of 
cases did not require hospital treatment.  There was a need to educate the 
public – the message was not that people should not call the ambulance 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CH, 
PL 

99



4 

service, but that they should not expect that the response would be always to 
send an ambulance, or that the ambulance would always take them to hospital.  
A new non-emergency number, 111, was being introduced for the ambulance 
service from April 2013, with 101 as the police equivalent 

• enquired how the 8-minute response time worked in practice in Fenland, a rural 
area with high levels of isolation and deprivation, whose patients went to one of 
four hospitals (Hinchingbrooke, Addenbrooke's, Peterborough and the Queen 
Elizabeth in Kings Lynn), and asked whether resources were easily available in 
Fenland. 
Officers advised that resources were not always easily available because they 
were often held elsewhere, and ambulance crews also required breaks for food 
and drink.  In 1996, when the response time standard was new, ambulance 
services had recognised that targets were more easily met in urban than in rural 
areas.  Essex Ambulance Service developed Community First Responders, and 
their use was adopted by EEAST; few ambulance services made use of 
volunteers in the way that EEAST did.  In Fenland, ambulances were sited at 
response posts as well as in ambulance stations, which increased flexibility.  
For example, when a March ambulance was already on its way to 
Peterborough, if needed an ambulance could be sent towards March from the 
response post at Whittlesey Fire Station. 
Use was being made of multi-disciplinary team meetings to address the 
demands on the service posed by frequent callers, and efforts were being made 
to secure help in their own homes for frequent fallers.  Efforts were also being 
made to manage staff sickness absence.  Improved turnaround times in 
Peterborough made it possible for crews to return to their bases more quickly, 
and rotas were being redesigned to adjust cover to later in the day, when 
demand was higher  

• noted that savings would not be sought at the expense of reducing vehicle 
maintenance or keeping vehicles longer – they were already worked hard.  
However, the deployment of a mixture of vehicles was being developed; 
Intermediate Tier Vehicles (ITVs) were cheaper both to buy or lease and to 
maintain.  They would be equipped for emergency care, and might well 
transport patients to hospital if required, but would not be used for blue light 
emergency calls.  No backroom staff were currently being recruited, but no 
savings were being made that would have an adverse effect on patients 

• enquired about arrangements for liaison with Magpas.  The Associate Director 
of Urgent Care said that he met regularly with the Magpas Chief Executive 
Officer, Daryl Brown, and that the Chairmen of EEAST and Magpas also met.  
In general working relationships with Magpas were good, though occasionally 
issues arose which required discussion.  EEAST valued the contribution of the 
third sector highly.  

   
 The Committee welcomed an invitation for members to visit the Bedford control 

centre, where they could see calls being taken and ambulances despatched.  They 
were also invited to spend time on a vehicle or go to hospital and talk to ambulance 
crews.  The Chairman thanked the EEAST officers for answering the Committee’s 
questions and said that he would be following up the invitation to Bedford. 

 

   

100



5 

 91. CAMBRIDGESHIRE AND PETERBOROUGH CLINICAL COMMISSIONING 
GROUP: GOVERNANCE, ACCOUNTABILITY AND PATIENT AND PUBLIC 
INVOLVEMENT 

 

   
 The Committee received a presentation on the development of clinical 

commissioning which focused on governance and accountability.  Officers of the 
Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) attended 
to respond to members’ questions and comments: 
• Dr Neil Modha, Chief Clinical Officer (designate) 
• Andy Vowles, Chief Operating Officer (designate) 
• Jessica Bawden, Director of Communications, Membership and Engagement 

(designate). 

 

   
 The Committee noted that 

• as part of the CCG authorisation process, a panel of assessors from the NHS 
Commissioning Board (NHSCB) was due to make a site visit on 26th October  

• the CCG would be undertaking about 70% of the commissioning work formerly 
done by NHSC, with the remaining 30% undertaken by the NHSCB 

• the CCG’s structures were not dissimilar to those of the primary care trust, 
NHSC, but the reasons for abolishing primary care trusts had not been 
connected with their governance arrangements 

• 106 of the 109 GP practices in the CCG area had a patient reference group 
• the central CCG Engagement Team was very small, but each Local 

Commissioning Group (LCG) would have a person with responsibility for 
engagement at local level. 

 

   
 Responding to the presentation, members of the Committee 

• commented that a focus on patient groups, which tended to be composed 
largely of middle-class, white, retired people, could leave some individuals 
feeling disenfranchised.  Officers advised that the CCG was commissioning a 
complaints service and providing an in-house patient advice line.  If it appeared 
that particular issues were emerging, they would be taken up with service 
providers or brought to the CCG Quality Committee; these arrangements would 
be reviewed after the first year of operation.  An alternative route for a 
dissatisfied patient would be through their GP, who would have a role as an 
advocate for the patient 

• looking at the CCG governance structure, suggested that it was excessively 
complicated, that it needed an audit and risk committee, and that being split 
across three groups could result in no group taking responsibility.   
The Chief Clinical Officer explained that the CCG was still in transition, with the 
primary care trust still as the parent body.  The CCG was reluctant to cause a 
major upheaval in structures, but prompted by the member’s suggestions, 
officers were re-examining arrangements.  The Chief Operating Officer 
explained that the CCG’s Audit Committee had responsibility for all financial 
and operation risk; it was the committee to which both Internal Audit and 
External Audit made their reports.  There was a statutory requirement that the 
CCG have a separate remuneration committee 

• enquired what arrangements were in place to ensure equality of clinical care 
across the CCG area.  Officers said that for example the LCGs that made most 
use of Addenbrooke's (CATCH and Camhealth) tackled Addenbrooke's 
problems with CCG support, including strategic meetings led by the Chief 

 

101



6 

Clinical Officer.  The CCG had responsibility for all LCGs, and conducted 
quarterly performance reviews with each LCG.  An escalation regime was in 
place, under which the initial response to LCG problems would be to provide 
more support, but if necessary, the CCG had the right to withdraw some of the 
LCG’s delegated powers 

• asked whether the CCG structure corresponded to what the Government had 
meant by putting the health service in the hands of local GPs, and asked what 
the difference was between the CCG and the primary care trust, apart from a 
more complicated structure.  The Chief Clinical Officer said that changes had 
been evolving in Cambridgeshire since 2009, with clinicians now leading 
decisions on how services were to develop; for example, the mental health 
service redesign had been clinician-led under delegated responsibility from 
NHSC.  It was complicated to capture the level of local involvement, and the 
presentation’s focus on governance arrangements made the CCG organisation 
appear top heavy, but the old order had been turned upside down – instead of 
one GP serving on the board of NHSC, local GPs were running their LCG 
board. 

   
 Change in running order: As the previous items had taken longer than expected, 

the Committee agreed to the Chairman’s suggestion of taking the Health and 
Wellbeing Strategy next, followed by the Forward work programme. 

 

   
92. CAMBRIDGESHIRE HEALTH AND WELLBEING STRATEGY  
   
 The Cabinet Member for Health and Wellbeing, Councillor Steve Tierney, 

introduced a report on the Cambridgeshire Health and Wellbeing Strategy, which 
had been agreed in its final form by the Cambridgeshire shadow Health and 
Wellbeing Board at its meeting on 11th October 2012.  He thanked those members 
who had responded to his earlier request to seek feedback on the draft strategy 
from local communities; their efforts had been very helpful. 

 

   
 The Cabinet Member said that a whole new priority, Working Together Differently, 

had been added as the result of consultation, and the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee’s observations had also been included.  The Director of Public Health, 
Dr Liz Robin, added that the process of action planning had already started; the 
first action plan would be taken to the shadow Health and Wellbeing Board in 
January 2013. 

 

   
 Commenting on the report, individual members 

• looking at the reference in priority 3 to encouraging healthy lifestyles “while 
respecting people’s personal choices”, suggested that people must take 
responsibility for the choices they made, including in drug and alcohol 
consumption, which cost money and were detrimental. 
The Cabinet Member replied that it was necessary to find a balance between 
leaving people to make their own choices and intervening in the interests of 
their health.  The Director of Public Health added that the background science 
and knowledge showed that if people were to change, it was important that 
they felt motivated and wanted to make that change  

• pointed out that for it to be useful, a public health strategy needed to target 
those people who needed help, and that the language in the report was not 
always helpful, because some things were not always realistic choices for an 
individual, but were responses to life circumstances. The Cabinet Member said 

 

102



7 

that the priority was to help those in the poorest circumstances most quickly; 
the intention was to help people to be healthy, but without interfering in their 
choices.  A member pointed out that when somebody was unable to buy fresh 
produce because it was not available locally, this was not a free choice  

• suggested that the report’s use of percentages was unhelpful, e.g. “most 
people (96%) were happy with the strategy overall”, when 52 of the 234 
responses had come from local groups rather than individuals.  The Cabinet 
Member responded that the percentages had been given under the 
consultation findings, and that these results were all that was available to form 
a picture of people’s views 

• welcomed efforts to engage people in responding to the consultation, though 
the overall numbers responding had been low; it was necessary to consider 
how to conduct consultation more effectively.  The Director of Public Health 
pointed out that many of the responses had been made on behalf of a larger 
number of people 

• noting that respondents’ postcodes had been obtained, asked whether it might 
have been helpful to ask about income or employment.   It was however 
pointed out that asking for too much personal detail could discourage people 
from responding  

• expressed some concern that the strategy’s priorities had been influenced by 
the age profile and special interests of the respondents 

• noted that the chart showing the age profile for unplanned hospital admissions 
(figure 2 of the strategy) included admissions for maternity 

• welcomed the commitment to seeking evidence-based solutions, commenting 
that people did not always appreciate that assembling proper evidence required 
time, for example five years rather than one, and that evidence-based solutions 
could be derailed by a public view that did not take evidence seriously – there 
was a need for public education 

• pointed out that there was a budgetary cost to running a prevention strategy, 
and that spending on prevention could benefit other organisations’ budgets; it 
was necessary to move away from silo budgeting.  The Cabinet Member 
pointed out that the Health and Wellbeing Board was a mechanism for bringing 
partners together to work together; one sign of its long-term success would be 
if budgets were to be shared between the partners 

• drew attention to the fact that the element of priority 3 that dealt with promoting 
sexual health referred only to pregnancy-related issues, and omitted any 
mention of the sexual health of lesbian or gay people; it was likely that sexually 
transmitted disease was of greater concern than pregnancy to gay men.  The 
Cabinet Member acknowledged the point 

• suggested that it might be appropriate to develop some sort of community 
contract, setting out what the local authority would do and what the individual 
would do – this approach had been seen to work well with some groups.  The 
Cabinet Member invited the member to give him a more detailed proposal and 
undertook to look into it 

   
 Several members explicitly welcomed the document, describing it as a good 

document, highly aspirational, and very comprehensive.  The Cabinet Member said 
that it was largely a strategic document; the next stage would be to look at 
outcomes and action planning from January 2013 onwards. 

 

   

103



8 

93. FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME  
   
a) Committee Priorities and Work Programme 2012/13  
   
 The Committee reviewed its work programme.  The Chairman advised that the next 

meeting, on 13th December, would be devoted to the Business Plan (known in 
previous years as the Integrated Plan), unless some other urgent business were to 
arise which would also demand the Committee’s attention.  

 

   
 Discussing the business plan process, members pointed out that the Committee 

now had an overview role, so it was particularly important that it received 
information early enough to enable it to influence the emerging plan.  It was 
suggested that it was important for the chairmen of all five Overview and Scrutiny 
Committees to get together and try to look at priorities for savings; the Chairman 
advised that such meetings had taken place in previous years, but had not gone 
into proposals in detail.  Others commented that it might be helpful if the group did 
not consist solely of Overview and Scrutiny chairmen. 

 

   
 Presenting officers were reminded that, at the meeting, it was not necessarily 

productive to go through material in detail which had already been supplied to 
members in advance. 

 

   
b) Cabinet Agenda Plan  
   
 A member drew attention to the Community Right to Challenge (on the Cabinet 

agenda for 27th November) and the Cambridgeshire Statement of Community 
Involvement (18th December), and in relation to the Transport Strategy for 
Cambridge and South Cambridgeshire Draft Strategy (28th May 2013) pointed out 
the importance of transport in relation to accessing health care. 

 

   
94. CALLED IN DECISIONS  
   
 There were no called in decisions.  
   
95. DATE OF NEXT MEETING  
   
 The next meeting of the Committee would be held at 11am on Thursday 

13th December, preceded by a preparatory meeting for members of the Committee 
at 10.00 am. 

 

  
Members of the Committee in attendance: County Councillors K Reynolds 
(Chairman), N Guyatt, G Heathcock (substituting for Cllr Batchelor), C Hutton, 
G Kenney (Vice-chairman), V McGuire, P Reeve, P Sales, S Sedgwick-Jell and 
F Yeulett; District Councillors S Brown (Cambridge City), R Hall (South 
Cambridgeshire) and R West (Huntingdonshire) 
 

Apologies: County Councillors S Austen, J Batchelor and F Whelan; District 
Councillor M Cornwell (Fenland) 
Also in attendance: County Councillor S Tierney 
 

Time: 10.05am – 12.35pm 
Place:  Kreis Viersen Room, Shire Hall, Cambridge 

 

 

 
 

Chairman 

104



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANELS   
(SOCIAL WELL-BEING)                                4TH DECEMBER 2012 
(ECONOMIC WELL-BEING)                                6TH DECEMBER 2012 
(ENVIRONMENTAL WELL-BEING)                            11TH DECEMBER 2012 

 
 

WORK PLAN STUDIES 
(Report by the Head of Legal and Democratic Services) 

 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to inform Members of studies being undertaken by the 

other Overview and Scrutiny Panels. 
 
2. STUDIES 
 
2.1 The Council has a duty to improve the social, environmental and economic well-

being of the District. This gives the Overview and Scrutiny Panels a wide remit to 
examine any issues that affect the District by conducting in-depth studies. 

 
2.2 Studies are allocated according to the Overview and Scrutiny remits. Details of 

ongoing studies being undertaken by the two other Panels are set out in the attached 
Appendix.  

 
2.3 Members are reminded that if they have a specific interest in any study area which is 

not being considered by their Panel there are opportunities for involvement in all the 
studies being undertaken. 

 
3. RECOMMENDATION 
 
3.1 The Panel is requested to note the progress of the studies selected. 
 
 
 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 
Minutes and Reports from previous meetings of the Overview and Scrutiny Panels. 
 
 
Contact Officers: Miss H Ali, Democratic Services Officer 
   01480 388006 
 
   Mrs J Walker, Democratic Services Assistant 
   01480 387049 
 
   Mrs C Bulman, Democratic Services Officer 
   01480 388234 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 9

105



ONGOING STUDIES 
 

STUDY 
 

OBJECTIVES PANEL STATUS TYPE 
 

Leisure Centre Financial 
Performance and 
Employment Structure 

To consider the future 
business model for “One 
Leisure” and the 
development of a 
methodology for the 
quantification of Social 
Value. 
 
 
 
 
 

Economic Well-Being 
and Social Well-Being 

Working Group met on 28th 
February 2012. Agreed to 
split into two sub groups to 
investigate each area. 
 
Meeting of the Sub-Group 
looking at the ‘Social 
Methodology’ held on 23rd 
August 2012. 
 
It has been agreed that the 
review of the business 
model will be put on hold, 
pending the completion of 
the Business Plan for the 
Service. The Business Plan 
will be considered by the 
Overview & Scrutiny Panel 
(Economic Well-Being) in 
January. 
 

Joint Working Group 

 A14 improvements. To review the implications 
to the local economy of 
the decision not to 
proceed with the A14 
improvements. 

Economic Well-Being 
 
 
 
 
 

The Panel has requested a 
presentation on 
developments relating to 
the A14 for all Members of 
the Council at an 
appropriate time. 
 
Updates on recent 
developments to continue to 
be provided by email. 
 

Whole Panel Study. 

106



Tree Strategy To form a strategy in 
conjunction with the Tree 
Officers for the retention 
and planting of trees. 

Environmental Well-
Being 

The draft tree strategy is 
being prepared - it should 
be ready for consultation by 
the end of 2012. 
 

Working Group. 

Land Use for Agricultural 
Purposes in the Context of 
Planning Policies and its 
Contribution to the Local 
Economy. 
 

To review the lack of 
promotion and protection 
of land for this purpose. 

Environmental Well-
Being 

The final report of the 
Working Group was 
considered at the Panel’s 
November meeting.  The 
report’s recommendations 
have been endorsed by the 
Head of Planning and 
Housing Strategy. 
 

Working Group. 

Rural Transport To review the provision of 
transportation in rural 
areas. 
 

Environmental Well-
Being 

Transport for 
Cambridgeshire report 
received in July 2011. 
Comments conveyed to 
Cabinet. Final report 
expected in due course. 
 

To be determined. 

Maintenance of Water 
Courses 
 

To receive a presentation 
on the maintenance 
arrangements in place for 
Water Courses within the 
District. 
 

Environmental Well-
Being 

Following consideration of 
the St Neots Surface Water 
Management Plan and 
discussions on widespread 
drainage problems within 
the District, a working group 
was convened to engage 
with Anglian Water in order 
to establish their general 
powers, responsibilities and 
the limitations on its ability 
to prevent flooding.  
 
Meetings have been held 
with representatives from 

Working Group 

107



Anglian Water and the 
Environment Agency. The 
Working Group has 
produced a report on its 
findings but is awaiting the 
outcome of negotiations 
between Anglian Water and 
the County Council on 
drainage in Yaxley. 
 

District Council Support 
Services 

To review the services 
provided by the District 
Councils Document 
Centre to form a view on 
its efficiency and cost 
effectiveness. 

Economic Well-Being Working Group has formed 
two sub groups to 
consider:- 

a) the financial cost of 
the service; and 

b)  the operation of the 
service 

 
The Working Group met on 
14th November. A summary 
of their findings is currently 
being compiled. 
 

Working Group 

Design Principles for 
Future Developments 
 

To examine issues that 
have arisen at Loves 
Farm, St Neots and to 
make recommendations to 
inform future 
developments. 

Environmental Well-
Being 

The Working Group has 
produced a report detailing 
its findings to date. The 
Working Group will now 
focus on detailed aspects of 
the design guide with the 
Council’s Urban Design, 
Trees and Landscape Team 
Leader. 
 

Working Group. 

Economic Development To be determined. Economic Well-Being The findings from the Local 
Economic Assessment 
were presented to the Panel 

Whole Panel. 

108



in November. 
 
The Panel will consider the 
new Local Economy 
Strategy at a meeting in the 
Spring.  
 

Corporate Plan To assist the Corporate 
Office with the 
development of a new 
Corporate Plan. 
 

All O&S Panels Meeting of the Working 
Group held on 12th 
November 2012. Agreed 
that a bi-monthly 
programme of meetings be 
arranged with a view to 
calling Executive Members 
to account on their 
respective activities 
contained within the 
Delivery Plan. 
 

Working Group 

Fraud Prevention To consider the 
implications from 
forthcoming changes to 
the Housing Benefits 
system. 
 

Economic Well-Being The Corporate Governance 
Panel have agreed to 
establish a working group to 
consider fraud risks, current 
and future approaches and 
single fraud issues. Their 
report will be considered by 
the Panel at their meeting in 
January.  
 

To be determined. 

Community Infrastructure 
Levy (CIL) 

To consider the 
implications of planning 
social housing 
requirements on 
Community Infrastructure 
Levy income and the 
housing waiting list. 

Economic Well-Being Managing Director 
(Communities, Partnerships 
& Projects) to discuss with 
Councillor M F Shellens 
directly. 

To be determined. 

109



Waste Collection  To identify options for 
improving the Council’s 
waste collection and 
recycling arrangements 
and for enhancing public 
satisfaction with the 
service. 

Environmental Well-
Being 

The Working Group has 
decided to focus on how 
best to engage with 
residents as to what should 
be placed in which bin. The 
Group may go on to study 
waste collection procedures 
in more detail, this is 
dependent on the work of 
RECAP. 
 
The Panel expressed its 
support for the use of 
wheelie bin stickers to 
convey messages with 
community benefits, such 
as speed restrictions.  
Contact will be made with 
Hilton Parish Council to 
determine the outcome of 
the Speedwatch pilot 
initiative undertaken there. 
 

Working Group 

Council Borrowing Agreed to establish a 
working group to develop 
an understanding of the 
District Council’s approach 
to borrowing. 

Economic Well-Being. First meeting held on 17th 
October 2012. The Group 
discussed various aspects 
of general approaches to 
borrowing and have asked 
for a report on a number of 
matters relating to the 
Council’s borrowing. A 
further meeting will be held 
when this information is 
available. 
 
 

Working Group. 

110



Budget Savings To identify possible 
Budgetary Savings 

Economic Well-Being An Informal Meeting of the 
Panel will be held on 
Thursday 29th November 
2012. 
 
Members have been asked 
to submit suggestions by 
email in advance. 
 

Whole Panel 

 

111



112

This page is intentionally left blank



Panel Date Decision Action Response Date for 
Future 
Action 

 
 
 
5/04/11 & 
2/10/12 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6/11/12 
 
 

 
 

Management of Hinchingbrooke Hospital 
 
With effect from 1st February 2012, Circle took over 
the management of Hinchingbrooke Hospital. 
Representatives of Circle and Hinchingbrooke 
attended the Panel’s meeting to deliver the Hospital’s 
Business Plan. Agreed to come back to report on 
progress against the Business Plan in the future. 
 
At a meeting of the O&S Joint Chairmen held on 10th 
September, the Chairman and Vice-Chairman 
agreed that half yearly/annual reports from 
PALS/Healthwatch should be submitted to the Panel. 
 
A meeting between relevant County Members and 
the Panel was held on 5th November 2012 to share 
information and issues relating to services at 
Hinchingbrooke Hospital. A report to this effect was 
tabled to Members at the meeting. 
 

 
 
Invitation extended 
to Circle to attend 
the Panel’s March 
2013 meeting – 
awaiting 
confirmation. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

5/03/13 

 
 
 
2/10/12 & 
6/11/12 

 

Huntingdonshire Citizens Advice Bureau 
 
Executive Leader addressed the Panel on the 
announcement by Huntingdonshire CAB to go into 
voluntary liquidisation. Attempts are being made to 
work positively with the CAB to manage the situation 
and to identify the next steps forward. Panel 
concerned over the implications of the 
announcement to residents of the District and its 
effect on the Council. Further update received in 
November 2012. 

 
 
Panel requested to 
be kept informed of 
recent 
developments. 

 
 
This item appears elsewhere on the 
Agenda. Executive Leader and 
Chairman of the CAB, Michael 
Mealing, will be in attendance at the 
meeting. 
 

 
 
4/12/12 A

genda Item
 10

113



Panel Date Decision Action Response Date for 
Future 
Action 

 
 
 
 
16/05/12 

 
 
7/06/11 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Corporate Plan 
 
Councillors S J Criswell and R J West appointed to 
Corporate Plan Working Group.  
 
The Panel expressed their wish for continued 
involvement by overview and scrutiny in monitoring 
the performance of the new Council Plan. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Meetings of the 
Corporate Plan 
Working Group held 
on 1st and 28th 
August 2012. Draft 
considered by 
Executive Leaders 
Strategy Group on 
10th September 
2012.  

 
 
 
 
 
Meeting of the Working Group held 
on 12th November 2012 to refine the 
Council Delivery Plan and to discuss 
future monitoring arrangements. 
Agreed that a bi-monthly programme 
of meetings be arranged with a view 
to calling Executive Members to 
account on their respective activities 
contained within the Delivery Plan. A 
brief update will be delivered at the 
meeting. 
 

 
 

 
 

 
4/12/12 

 
 
 
6/03/12 

 
 
 

12/06/12 
 

Consultation Processes 
 
Update received on a previous study undertaken by 
the Panel. Panel to partake in the review of the 
Consultation and Engagement Strategy. 
 
Councillors Mrs P A Jordan, P Kadewere, J W G 
Pethard and R J West appointed on to the 
Consultation Processes Working Group. 
  

 
 
Panel to appoint 
Members to 
undertake this work. 
 
Meeting of the 
Working Group held 
on 5th September 
2012. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Strategy and Guidance in the 
process of being reviewed. Draft 
expected to be ready for 
consideration by the Working Group 
mid- December 2012. Meeting being 
arranged. 

 

 

114



Panel Date Decision Action Response Date for 
Future 
Action 

 
 

 
03/01/12 

 
 
 
 
 

12/06/12 
 
 
 

03/07/12 

Social Value 
 
This study emerged following completion of a joint 
study with the Economic Well-Being Panel on One 
Leisure. Working Group tasked with the development 
of a methodology for the quantification of Social 
Value. 
  
Membership of the Social Well-Being Sub-Group 
reviewed. Mr R Coxhead is the only member of the 
Working Group to date. 
 
Councillors S J Criswell and R J West appointed to 
the Social Value Sub-Group. Meeting held on 2nd 
August 2012. Officers tasked with making a number 
of investigations into possible methodologies. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Meeting of the 
Working Group held 
on 23rd November 
2012. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A brief update will be delivered at the 
meeting. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

4/12/12 
 
 

 
 
 

04/09/12 
 

Grant Aid 
 
Annual Report on organisations supported by grants 
through Service Level Agreements received and 
noted by the Panel. Requested future reports under 
the new grants system to include evidence of need 
and demand for voluntary services.  
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Next monitoring report expected July 
2013. 

 
 
2/07/12 

 
 

 
 
 
 

6/11/12 
 

Potential Merger Between Cambridgeshire and 
Suffolk Fire and Rescue Services 
 
Councillor F Brown, Chairman of the Fire Authority 
and Mr M Warren, Director of Resources and 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
This item appears elsewhere on the 
Agenda.  

 
 
 
4/12/12 

 

115



Panel Date Decision Action Response Date for 
Future 
Action 

 
Treasurer to the Fire Authority delivered a 
presentation on the current consultation being 
undertaken by Cambridgeshire Fire and Rescue 
Service on proposals for further collaboration up to a 
full merger between Cambridgeshire and Suffolk Fire 
and Rescue Services. Agreed that a draft response 
would be presented to the Panel at its December 
2012 meeting for endorsement given that the 
consultation closes on 14th January 2013. 
 

 

 
 
 

1/11/11 
 
 
 
 

7/02/12 
 

Future of the CCTV Service 
 
Update received on the options for the future 
operation of the CCTV service. Efforts made to 
reduce the cost of the service to the Council was 
noted by the Panel. 
 
Further update delivered to the Panel following 
discussions with Town Councils. Panel requested for 
a further report on service changes in 2012/13 to be 
submitted to a future meeting. 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Request submitted 
to the Head of 
Operations. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Report expected at Panel’s February 
2013 meeting. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

5/02/13 
 

 
 
 
 
7/06/11 

 
 
 

6/09/11 

Review of Neighbourhood Forums In 
Huntingdonshire 
  
The Cabinet, at its meeting on 19th May 2011, 
requested the Panel to undertake a review of the 
Neighbourhood Forums in Huntingdonshire. 
 
 Background report considered. Councillors S J 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Working Group 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

116



Panel Date Decision Action Response Date for 
Future 
Action 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1/11/11 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6/03/12 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

03/07/12 
04/09/12 

 

Criswell, J J Dutton and R J West appointed onto a 
Working Group to initiate the Panel’s investigations. 
County and District Council Members and Town and 
Parish Councils views on the Neighbourhood 
Forums will initially be sought and reported back to 
the Panel in November.    
 
 
Views of interested parties reported at meeting. 
Chairmen of the Neighbourhood Forums for 
Huntingdon and Ramsey were in attendance for this 
item. Working Group established comprising 
Councillors S J Criswell, J J Dutton, S M Van De 
Kerkhove and R J West, together with Mr R Coxhead 
to pursue investigations. 
 
Draft proposals presented to Panel for comment prior 
to consultation commencing with the Town and 
Parish Councils and Partners.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Consultation response report endorsed for 
submission to the Cabinet for determination. Cabinet 
agreed that a pilot scheme will be trialled in the 
Norman Cross County Division for a twelve month 

meeting held on 19th 
September 2011. 
Letter sent to all 
those with an 
interest in the Forum 
on 21st September 
2011. 
 
Meetings of Working 
Group held on 23rd 
November, 12th 
December 2011 and 
19th January and 
27th February 2012. 
 
 
Proposals 
considered by 
Executive Leaders 
Strategy Group and 
Corporate 
Governance Panel 
on 12th and 28th 
March 2012 
respectively. Also by 
Cabinet on 19th 
April 2012.  
 
Deputy Leader met 
with the existing 
Neighbourhood 
Forum Chairmen on 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Consultation launched on 30th April 
to 8th June 2012 inclusive. 
Responses considered by Panel in 
July. Meeting of the Working Group 
held on 12th June.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

117



Panel Date Decision Action Response Date for 
Future 
Action 

 
period with the existing Neighbourhood Forums 
being subject to urgent review by the Deputy 
Executive Leader. Panel has been requested to 
undertake a review of the Norman Cross Pilot during 
its twelve months of operation. 
 

1st November 2012. 
Pilot meeting held 
on 7th November 
2012. 
 

 
 
 
 
12/06/12 

 

Equality Framework for Local Government – Peer 
Assessment 
  
Noted the recent accreditation achieved by the 
Council as an “Achieving” authority under the 
Equality Framework for Local Government. 
Councillors Mrs P A Jordan, P Kadewere and R J 
West appointed on to a Working Group to review the 
action plan arising from the assessment. 
 

 
 
 
Meeting of the 
Working Group held 
on 29th August 
2012. 
 

 
 
 
Councillor Mrs P A Jordan has 
agreed to attend the Equality 
Framework Steering Group on 
behalf of the Working Group. Action 
Plan has recently been updated and 
will be subject to further review by 
the Working Group – a copy has 
been circulated around electronically 
to the Working Group. 

 
 
 
 

 
 
   
 
7/06/11 

 
 
 
6/12/11 
12/06/12 

Housing Benefit Changes and the Potential 
Impact on Huntingdonshire 
  
Requested a background report to be provided on 
the emerging issue of homelessness arising as a 
result of changes to the Housing Benefit system. 
 
Report considered by the Panel. Further report on 
the wider housing policy implications arising from the 
Government’s Welfare Reform Bill submitted to the 
Panel in June 2012. Quarterly updates will continue 
to be provided. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Request submitted 
to the Head of 
Customer Services. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Members of the Economic Well-
Being Panel will be invited to attend 
for this item. Next quarterly report 
anticipated January 2013. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8/01/13 

 

118



Panel Date Decision Action Response Date for 
Future 
Action 

 
 
 
 

 
04/09/12 
and 

6/11/12 
 

Forward Plan 
 
 
Town and Parish Council Charter  
Panel requested sight of the report prior to its 
submission to the Cabinet. An update on the 
Charter’s development was presented to the Panel at 
its November 2012 meeting. 
 

 
 
 
 
Request submitted 
to the Head of 
Environmental and 
Community Health 
Services. 
 

 
 
 
 
Report expected to be presented to 
Panel and Cabinet in April 2013. 

 
 
 

 
2/04/13 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
03/04/11 

 
 
 
 
 
 

6/11/12 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Huntingdonshire Strategic Partnership (HSP) 
 
The Panel has a legal duty to scrutinise the work of 
the HSP, with three thematic groups of the HSP 
falling within its remit.  
 
Huntingdonshire Community Safety Partnership  
 
Annual review of the work of the Partnership 
undertaken. Members have expressed their 
satisfaction that appropriate accountability and 
reporting mechanisms are in place.  
 
Feedback received from the Partnership on the 
findings of a joint Member-led review on domestic 
abuse with the County and Fenland District Councils. 
Some concerns exist over the action plan developed 
for the Domestic Abuse Steering Group and the lack 
of funding currently available for the service. Panel 
wishes to have sight of the County Council’s review 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Due for consideration by the Panel in 
April 2013. 
 
 
 
 
 
Due to be considered by the Panel in 
December 2012/January 2013 – 
awaiting confirmation. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2/04/13 

 
 
 
 
 
 
04/12/12 

or 
08/01/13 
 

 

119



Panel Date Decision Action Response Date for 
Future 
Action 

 
 
 
 
05/10/10 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
7/02/12 

 
 
 
 

 

next year and agreed that they will revisit the matter 
as part of its annual scrutiny of the Partnership. 
 
Children and Young People 
 
Details of the thematic group’s outcomes and 
objectives have been received together with the 
latest report of the group, outlining its terms of 
reference, membership and current matters being 
discussed.  
 
Health and Well-Being 
 
Background information received on the thematic 
group’s outcomes, terms of reference, membership 
and Action Plan.  

 
 
 
 
 
Invitation extended 
to the Lead Officer 
of the thematic 
group. 
 
 
 
 
Invitation to be 
extended to 
representatives of 
the Group. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
TBC 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

05/02/12 
or 

05/03/12 

 

120


	Agenda
	1 MINUTES
	3 NOTICE OF EXECUTIVE DECISIONS
	4 NHS CAMBRIDGESHIRE AND PETERBOROUGH: FINANCE AND PERFORMANCE COMMITTEE REPORT
	Agenda Item 03.1.1 - Appendix A - Finance and Performance Committee Minutes 26 June 2012[1]
	Agenda Item 03.1.2 - Appendix B - Finance and Performance Committee Minutes 17 July 2012[1]
	Agenda Item 03.2a - NHS Cambridgeshire Finance Report Month 5[1]
	Agenda Item 03.2a.1 - Appendices to NHSC Finance Report[1]
	Agenda Item 03.3 - Combined Performane Report[1]
	Agenda Item 03.3a - Appendix Sept Performance Report[2]

	6 COUNCIL TAX SUPPORT  FROM 1ST APRIL 2013
	7 POTENTIAL MERGER BETWEEN CAMBRIDGESHIRE AND SUFFOLK FIRE AND RESCUE SERVICES: CONSULTATION RESPONSE
	CFRS: Consultation Response Appendix

	8 CAMBRIDGESHIRE ADULTS, WELLBEING AND HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
	9 WORK PLAN STUDIES
	10 OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL (SOCIAL WELL-BEING) - PROGRESS

